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AUDIT REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
To the Shareholders of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

I have audited the accompanying consolidated and the Bank-only balance sheets as at 31 December
2008 and 2007, and the related statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years
then ended of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiaries, and of
KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED, respectively. The Bank’s management is
responsible for the correctness and completeness of information presented in these financial statements.
My responsibility is to express an audit opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. [ believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my
opinion.

In my opinion, the consolidated and the Bank-only financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 and the results of
operations and cash flows for the years then ended of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY
LIMITED and its subsidiaries, and of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED,
respectively, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

I draw your attention to Note 4 to the financial statements regarding the change in accounting policy for
goodwill and negative goodwill arising from business combination.

%

{Thirdthong Thepmongkorn)
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 3787

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.
Bangkok
25 February 2009



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 1008 AND 2007

Bzht
Consolidated The Bank
$ Note 31 Decemnber 2008 31 December 2007 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
ASSETS
Cash 20.151,132. 19 18,050,910,229 27,749,839,530 18,050,394,496
Interbank and money market items 6
Domestic {tems
Interest bearing 187,804,506,628 23,955.521,230 188,235,960,376 23,839,548 330
Nonr-intarest beating 2,394,508,907 2,068.509,349 270,658,700 2,141,352,645
Foreign items
Interest bearing 6,911,249.953 31,758,252.444 6,911,249,953 31,758,252,444
Nom-inizrest bearing 1,624,097,788 941,653,023 1,624,097.788 941,651,023
Tota! [rterbank and Money Markes tems - net 198,734,363 ,276 58,723,936,046 199,141,966 817 58,681,206442
Securities purchased under resale agrecments 7 - 10,700,600,000 - 10,700,000,000
Invesmments 828
Current investments - net 68,497, 787.570 55,074,215,621 68,259,574,086 54.873,146,691
Long-term investments - net 34,233,331,066 39.862,883,907 34034314271 39,569,807,339
Investments in subsidiaries and d panies - net 213,919,871 538881492 9474176919 9357459219
Total Investments - net 102,945,038,507 95,525,981,020 111,818,065.276 103,800,413,249
Loans end accrued intenest receivables 9.10
Loans 904,008,482 345 762,504,956 478 900,587,438,783 161,304,679.205
Accrued interest receivables 1,485,402,.205 1,263,006,905 1,454,349,205 1,246,446,594
Total Lozns and Accrued Interest Receivables 905,493,884, 554 763,767.963,383 902,041,837.993 762,551,125,799
Less Allowance for doubtful accaunts 1 { 26,394,024,260) {24.217,164,752) (25,124,927,562) {22,616,459,945)
Less Revalustion allowance for debl restructuring 12 {3377,6771,854) { 1,634 565,710) {3,377,519,186) {1,630,308,817
Total Loans and Accrued Interest Receivables - net 875,722,182,440 737,916,232,921 873,539.371,245 738,304,357,037
Properties foreclosed - net 13 14,391.986.376 15,365479.015 11,228,783.969 11,252,507216
Customers' liability under acceptances 491,591,856 1461617321 491,591,856 1,461,617321
Premises and equipment - net 15 29,657,262 495 24,533,966,976 28,833,796.929 23,982,109,592
Intangible assets - net 16 9,223,691.205 ' 6,899,677,565 7912230042 5,610,638,542
Detivative revalustion 36,451,821.209 10,639,673, 300 36,451,821,209 10,639.678.300
Other asscts - nct 8,185.419.963 14,700,298,756 6.584,756.100 11,666.418.362
Total Assets 1303554490126 994.517,778,149 1,303,552.222973 994,149,340,957

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements,



KASIKGRNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSTDIARIES

AS AT }1 DECEMBER 1008 AND 2007

Note

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Deposits
Deposits in baht
Deposits in foreign currencies
Total Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Domestic items
Interest bearing
Non-interest bearing
Forcign items
Interest bearing
Non-interest bearing
Total Interhbank and Moncy Market ltems
Liabilitics payable on demand
Barrowings
Short«term borrowings
Long-term bomowings
Total Barrowings
Bank's |izhility under acceptances
Derivative revaluztion
Other linbllitics
Total Liabilitics

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements.

BALANCE SHEETS

19
20

Baht

Consolidatcd The Bank
31 December 2008 31 December 2007 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
952,855,541,282 774,692 209,728 953,693 804,451 775,278,056,653
15,094,230,401 9.129 597,621 15,694.230,401 9,129,597,621
967,949,771,683 783821907349 968,788,034 852 784,407,654,274
11,738,122,859 11,383,205,288 12,271.554,753 11,516,209,208
321895874 2611442211 3,237,940.863 2,614,103 480
3,619,132,586 131,673 3,619,132,586 131,673
33378816 190,267,593 334378816 190,267,593
18,910.592.935 14,185,046,765 19,463,007.018 14,320,711,954
10,882,926,540 11,116,765 544 10,882,805,054 11,116,765,544
97,635,654.976 39,074,886,887 97,453,984,460 38,678,337,602
40,523 226,790 19,024,504 ,223 40,523,226,79%0 19,024,904,223
138,158 881,766 58,099,791,110 137977211250 57,703,241.825
491,591 856 1,461,617,321 491,591,856 1.461,61732]1
31,899.969,720 6,593,620,276 31,899,965.720 6,593,620.276
21,598,161,213 19243695278 20,743,653,820 13,410,552,161
1,189,891,895,763 894,522 443,643 1,150,246,273,570 494,014,203 355




KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 1008 AND 2007

Baht
Censolidated The Bank
Notc 31 December 2008 31 December 2007 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Equity

Share capital 22

Authorized share capital

3,048,614,697 ondinary shares, Baht 10 par value 30,486,146 970 30,486,146,970 30.486,146,970 30,486,146,970

1ssued and paid-up share capital

2,393,260,191 ordinary shares, Bakt 10 par value 23,932,601,930 23,932,601.930

2,388,202,317 ordinary sharcs, Baht 10 par valuc 23,882,023,170 23,882,023,170
Premium on ordinary sharcs 18,103,109.977 18,012,978.628 18,103,109.977 18.012,978,628
Appraisal surptus on asset revaluation 15 10,941,912,694 9,741,700,334 10,941,912,694 9,741,700,584
Revaluation surplus on investments 8 2207,073,191 568,261,240 2207,793,632 567,324,250
Retained eamings

Approprizted

Legal reserve 24 3,050,000,000 2,920,000,000 3,050,000,000 2,920,000,000

Unappropristed 55,427 843,126 44,870,320,954 55,070.531,170 45011110670
Total equity aributable to equity holdets of the Bank 113,662,549,918 99,995,284 876 113,305,949,403 100,135,137,602
Minority intcrests 53,445 49,630 - -

Towl Equity 113,662,594,36) 99,995,334,506 113,305,949.403 100,135,137,602

Total Lisbilities and Bquity 1,303,554,490,126 994,517,778,149 1,303,552,222 973 994,149,340,957
Off-balance shest itema - contingencics 29

Aval 1o bills and guarantees of loans 1,563,959,968 1,142,268 369 1,563,959,968 1,142,268,369

Lisbility wnder unmamred import bills 643988027 5,674.257,724 5.643,988,027 5,674.257,724

Letters of credit 17,165,132,860 20,496,880,543 17,165,132,860 20,496,880,541

Ceher contingencies 2.250537,454,088 1,703,175,812,080 2,250,262911,827 1,702,844 324 803

(s MM’M)_ (ol Lorin,

{Pol.Gen. Pow Sarasin)

(Banthoon Lamsam)

Vice Chairman Director and Chief Executive Officer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2047

Not:

Interest and dividend income
Loans
Taterbank and mency market jtems
Finzace beases
[aveptments
Total Interest and Dividend [ncome
Interest expense
Deposits
Interbank and money markeq items
Short-term borrywingx
Long-term bormowings
Total Interest Expense
Net income from interest and dividends
Bad dzbt and doubtfial sccounts 26
Loss on debt restructuring. 21
Netincome from interest 2nd dividends after bad debt wid doubtful accounts
and kot on debt restrocturing
Non-interest income
Gain on invesmments ]
Share of profit from investments on cquity method 3
Fees and wcrvice income
Acceptances, aval and guarsntees
Others
Gain on exchanges
Orther income
Tow] Noa-inkrest incorne
Non-iaterest expenses
Pexsonncl ¢xpenscs
Premises and equipmeni expenscs 13
Taxes aad duties
Fees and service expenses
Direcion' rmuncration
Coatributions t Finascial Iogtitutions Development Fund sad Deposit
Protection Ageacy
Other expenses
Total Noo-interest Expenses
Income before income tax
locome tax cxpense
Net imoome
Net income atiributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Minority interest
Net income
Basic carnings per share n
Weighted average sumber of ondinary sharcs (shares) n

(s Mecae
/-
{PoLGen. Puw Samasin)
Vice Chairman

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Baht
Corusolidated The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
52,0%0,182,375 45,842,526,406 53055815112 46,494, 396,375
2,100,605,881 3,840,564,048 2,099,150,462 3,839,126,538
1,863,885,174 1,183,121,874 - -
4,115,286,384 4,650,150,821 4552955980 5509587924
60,129,959,815 55,516,363,149 59,707,921,554 55,843,610,837
14,368,772,601 15,546,420,44] 14372319474 15,956,732.82%
290,181,636 207,608,572 293,625,738 219,291,720
1,901,699 436 902,425 544 1922916526 917,700,987
1,133,071,568 1,028,808,707 1,115,987,564 1,028,749,233
17,693,725,241 18,085,263, 264 17,704,849.302 18,122,474,765
42,436,234 574 37,431 099,885 42,003,072,252 721,136,072
4,592.476,280 4,289,972.963 4464604424 4,279.506,141
3241322,602 1,596,768,338 3,231,966,770 1,379,938,751
34,602,235,682 31,544 258 584 34,306,501,058 32,061,691,180
§,570,872,008 1,176,103,020 1,546,846 577 1,080,251,125
36,008,888 120,034,778 - -
1,209,618,626 1,008,829,453 1,209,618,626 1,008,829,453
15,760,724 870 12,333,753,499 13,810,978.284 £0,966,820,582
3219451,166 717,533,649 3,278,475,942 2,T11,533,649
790271312 1,540,927,633 745,499,897 958,051,119
22,646,946,870 18,897,182,032 20591419726 16,731,485,928
12,341,345,995 9,344,190,639 10,219,082,177 8,636,041,267
6,797,034,950 6,169,664,771 1.364,618,732 5,991,167,001
2,217,313,807 2420454466 2,166,068,758 267,296,326
4,152,824,076 3.333,155,767 3,963,521,250 3,150,559,731
97,075,045 86,666,078 91,075,045 80,666,078
3,256,905,553 3,042,403,837 1,256,905,553 3,042,403,837
6,208,935,106 4,632,588,752 6,505,756,118 4,265,420,650
35071434512 29,029,124 310 33,567,027,633 27,535,554,8%)
22,177,748,020 21,412,416,306 21,330,893,181 21,257,622.218
6,844,479,399 6,407.529.830 6,523,595,109 6,254,104 387
15,333,268,621 15,004,856,426 14,807,298,042 15,003,517,811
15,333,265312 15,004,679,358 14,807,298,042 15,003,517,831
3309 7,068 - -
15,333,268,621 15,004,836,426 14,807,298,042 15,003,517,831
641 6.28 6.19 6.2
2,393,122,000 2,387438,198 2.393,122,000 1.387,438,198

(Bolime Lo

(Bantkeon Lamsam)
Dircetor and Chicf Executive Officer
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KASIKORNRANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income
Add(Less) Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash from operating activitics
Bad debts and doubtful accounts
Lok on deb restroucturing

Interest income from

ion of

Gain (loss) on foreign exchange mensiarion of long-tzrm borrowings

Gain on revaluation of investments

R 1 of loss co impat of i in

Amortization of goodwill
Gain on disposal of securities for investment
Discount amertization on debt instruments

Loss on impai of i in receivabl

Loss on i of foreclosed

Reversal of loss o0 inpairment of other rasets
Loas from a capital reduction in a subsidiary

Loss from sale of loans

(Gain} loss on disposal of p and equip

R | of loss on impail of p and equip
Gain on wanafer of Gasncisl assets

Share of profit from iavestments on cquity method
Dividend income from sssocisted companics
Effect from full consolidation

A iration of di ON pIONYISIONY ROt receivabl

Amortization of discount on debenturcs
(Decresse) increase in other eocroed expenses

Increasc in other reserves.

Net income from interest and dividends
Income tax cxpemse
Proceeds from interest and dividends
Interest paid
Tncome tax paid
Net income from operations before changes in operating
asscts and lisbilities
{Increase} decrease in operating assets
Interbank and moncy market iterns (asscts)
Securities purchased under resale agreements
Iovestment for reding
Loans
Properties foroclosed
Other assees

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of these financial statements,

Balt
Consolidated The Bank
Nowr 2008 2007 2008 2007
13,333, 268,621 15,004,826,426 14,807,298 042 15,003,517,831
2,889,766,527 1,967,529.914 2,482.772,839 1,847,547,104
4,592,476,280 4,289,972,963 4,464,604,424 4,279.506,141
3,241,522,612 1,596,768,338 3,231,966, 770 1,579,938,751
for debt restructuring {167,623.935) { 168,114,408) [ 165,502,386) { 136,663,966)
235,300,000 (453,214,487 235,300,000 [ 453,214,487)
{70,032,302) { 50,351,988) (70,032,302) (50351,988)
(414,398,336) (102,243,344 { 428,622,640) (94,056,921)
4 - 143,609,091 - .
{ 669,455,000) ( 650,348,664) (637.444,021) { 687.832,854)
(1.507,713.248) (323,493.423) { 1,507,441,341) ( 318,624,024)
71,405,840 106,756,662 52,314,181 9,072,931
430,399,855 545,080,538 385,814,601 428,010,197
(58,508,152} (44,985,334) (58,339,517 { 41,317,214)
- - - 43,140,000
199,579,718 - 299,579,718 -
(470,379 {800,669 {2,081,545) 5,909,587
(102,522,057 - (102,522,057 -
{950,750} (9,834,159 - { 5,055426)
( 36,008,888} (120,034,778) - .
22,745,000 48,785,000 - -
1,8 426,701,786 - - -
(26,759,695) {14,439.T17) (9,195.941) ( 5,056,154)
3,353,925 3,462,416 3,353,925 3462416
( 157,388,560) 833,134,516 52,105,111 635,957,060
1,113,744,113 429,549,899 1,113,744,113 429,549,899
25 443,472,881 22,991,674,992 24,147,665,824 22,343,436,892
(42,436,234,574) ( 37.431,099,335) (42,003,072,252) (37,721,136,072)
6,844,479,399 6,407,529,880 6,523,595, 105 6,254,104 387
60.266,264,019 56,993,989.,135 59,690,074, 729 57,206,769,772
{ 16,492,308,284) ( 18,820,509,641) { 16,506,065,124) { 18,864,310,724)
(6,837,647,687) (4,322,775,781) { 5,540,198,324) (4,163,131,238)
26,793,025,754 25,819,008,700 25,311,999.962 25,055,735,017
(140,324,422,002) 24,128, 138,229 ( 140,717,485,325) 24,207,884,293
10,700,000,000 11,500,000,000 10,700,000,000 11,500,000,000
{ 4,526,342.001) 3,592,670,599 { 4,526,342,001) 3,592,670,59
{148,364,390,336)  { 102,244,154,187) ( 145,669,652.875) ( 100,638,984.929)
3,672,037,775 4,902, 786,458 1,763,288327 3,615,897,603
(19,258,749,669) (6,894,827,107) {20,408 884,823) (5,055,718,068)
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Increase (decrease) in operating lisbilities
Deposin
Interbank and moncy market items (Liabilities)
Lisbilities payable on demand
Short-term borrowings
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of svailable-for-sale i
Procesds from redempeion of beld-to-maturity debe instruments
Procoeds from disposal of general investments

Proceeds from & capital reduction in & subsidiary

Purchase of svailable-for-salc investments

Proceods from collestion of i in reecivabl

Purchase of held-to-maturity debt instruments
Purchese of genenal investmenns
Proceeds from disposal of premiscs and equipment
Puichise of premiises and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of intangibic asscts
Purchase of intangible assets
Net Cash Used in by Investing Activitics
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in long-term bormowings
Increase in share capital
In¢rense in preminm on share capital
Payment of dividends
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Finsacing Activitics
Net increase (docrease) in cash and cash oquivalens
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents a1 the end of the year

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of these financial statements,

Note

5
5

Baht
Consolidated The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
184,127,864,334 32,891,066,648 184,380,330,578 32,408,698,678
4,725,546,220 (3,504,447,443) 5,142,295,064 (3,765,620,383)
(233,839,004) 4,359,499,292 (233,950,490} 4,359,499,292
58,560,768,089 12,455,355,893 58,775,646,858 11,870,437,602
25,488,990, 341 (2,055,735,933) 25,137,499.936 (2,239,295.705)
1,360,489,501 4,905,361,149 854,785,261 4,911,204,001
90,105,118,197 96,824,599,623 £9,933,134,194 96,802,608,033
2,107,043,954 4,641,580,573 1,927,029,434 4,152,580,573
656,268,495 603,422,935 650,724,045 592,854,454
- - . 440,000,000
91,960,143,391) {97,452,897,004) (91,570,914,666) (97.437,897,004)
266,468,763 226,079,048 37,506,063 33,627,649
(419,325,600 (253,183,413) (419,325,600) (253,183,413)
(119,654317) (29,197,850} (118,654,317 (129,197.850)
4,848,043 14,687,689 6,089,469 6,891,975
(5,753,503.315) (3,552,353,644) (5,133,677,454) (3,208,135,924)
5,863,213 - - -
(3,167,109,343) (2,580,002,837) (3,081,109,760) (2,563,248,349)
(8,274,125,296) ( 1,557,264,880) (7,769,198,592) (1,563,099,856)
21,259,668,642 300,702,947 21,259,668,642 300,702,947
50,578,760 50,545,840 50,578,760 60,545,840
90,131,349 109,235,393 90,131,349 109,235,393
{4,786,520,336) {4,178,500,233} (4,786,520,386) (4,178,500,233)
16,613,858,365 {3,708,016,053} 16,613,858,365 (3,708,016,053)
9,700,222.570 (359,919,784} 9,699,445,034 (359,911,908)
13.050,910,229 18,410,830,013 18,050,394,496 18,410,306,404
27,751,132,799 18,050,910,229 27,749,839,530 18,050,394,496
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

1  GENERAL INFORMATION

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED, (“the Bank™), is a registered public company located in the
Kingdom of Thailand and listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand on 9 February 1976. The registered office of the

Bank is at 1 Soi Kasikornthai, Ratburana Road, Ratburana, Bangkok.

The principal activity of the Bank is commercial banking and the Bank conducts its businesses through a network of

branches covering all parts of Thailand and certain major parts of the world. As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, the

Bank had a total staff of 13,560 and 12,320 persons, respectively,

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank consist of the Bank and its subsidiaries. Details of the Bank’s

subsidiaries are as follows:

Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“Phethai-AMC")

Kasikomn Research Center Co., Ltd. (“KResearch”™)

Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“KAsset™)*

Kasikorn Securities Public Co., Ltd. (“KSecurities™)

Kasikomn Factoring Co., Ltd. (*KFactoring”)

Kasikorn Leasing Co., Ltd. (“KLeasing™)

Progress Land and Buildings Co., Ltd, (“PLB")

KHAQ KLA Venture Capital Management Co., Ltd,
(“KHAOKLA™M*

K-SME Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (“K-SME™)

Progress Gunpai Co., Ltd.

Progress Plus Co., Lid,

Progress Facilities Management Co., Lid.

Progress Management Co., Ltd.

Progress Software Co., Lid.

Progress Storage Co., Lid.

Progress Service Support Co., Ltd.

Progress Service Co., Lid.

Progress HR Co., Lid.

Progress Appraisal Co., Ltd.

% Shareholding of the Bank
Directly and Indirectly
31 December 2008 31 December 2007
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
99.99 99.99
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.60 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100,00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 -

Progress Collection Co., Ltd.

* Kasikom Asset Management Co., Ltd. directly and indirectly holds 100% shares in KHAO KLA Venture Capital

Management Co., Lid.
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Phethai Asset Management Company Limited is a company registered in the K'.ingdom of Thailand and was
approved by the Bank of Thailand (BoT) on 13 October 1999 to register as an asset management company under
the Ministerial Regulation (B.E. 2541) issued with regard to the provisions of the Asset Management Company
Act (B.E. 2541). The company is located at 252/6 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower 1, Floor 13-14, Ratchadaphisek
Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok and was established with the objective of managing substandard assets transferred
from the Bank.

Kasikorn Research Center Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and
is located at 400/22 Kasikornbank Building, Floor 9, Phaholyothin Road, Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok.

The company’s main business is to support the Bank with research work and public relations.

Kasikom Asset Management Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand
and is located at 252/6 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower 1, Floor 30 - 32, Raichadaphisek Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok.

The company’s main business is assets and funds management.

Kasikom Securities Public Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and
is located at 400/22 Kasikornbank Building, Floor 19, Phaholyothin Road, Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok.

The company’s main businesses are securities and investment banking.

Kasikom Factoring Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is
located at 252/20 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower 1, Floor 16, Ratchadapisck Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok. The
company was established to fumish commercial financial services to businesses, including factoring, finance

leases, operating leases and hire purchase.

Kasikom Leasing Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located
at 400/22 Kasikornbank Building, Floor 17, Phaholyothin Road, Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok. The company’s

main businesses are leasing and hire purchase.

Progress Land and Buildings Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand
and is located at 252/9 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower 1, Floor 5, Ratchadapisek Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok. The
company was established to receive, manage and sell properties that have been foreclosed as well as the premises

of Phatra Thanakit Public Company Limited.

KHAO KLA Venture Capital Management Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom
of Thailand on 26 July 2007, and is located at 252/38 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower 1, Floor 30, Ratchadapisek Road,

Huaykwang, Bangkok, The company's main business is securities investment management.

K-SME Venture Capital Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on
12 October 2007, and is located at 252/38 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower 1, Floor 30, Ratchadapisek Road,
Huaykwang, Bangkok. The company's main business is venture capital.

Progress Gunpai Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located
at 400/22 Kasikombank Building, Floor 9, Phaholyothin Road, Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok. The company’s
main businesses are 1o provide transportation service of cash and valuable assets to the Bank, including cash count

service, packing and change of cash to Automatic Teller Machines.

13



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

1

Progress Plus Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located at
306 Suapa Road, Pomprab, Pomprab-satrupai, Bangkok. The company’s main businesses are to deal in the
business of agency/brokerage sales of inventories and/or service, contractor, particularly office stationery, printing

matiers and other goods,

Progress Facilities Management Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thaitand
and is located at 400/22 Kasikornbank Building, Floor 9, Phaholyothin Road, Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok.

The company's main business is to provide building management services to the Bank and related parties.

Progress Management Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is
located at 252/9 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower 1, Floor 5, Ratchadapisck Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok. The
company's main business is engaged as the custodian and management of assets, received from debt settlement of
the Bank including related .parties‘ assets which have been transferred in, in order to keep these assets in good

condition for sale or rent.

Progress Software Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is
located at 306 Suapa Road, Pomprab, Pomprab-satrupai, Bangkok. The company’s main business is to rendet the
service of designing computet program, and training in the use of hardware and software.

Progress Storage Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located
at 400/22 Kasikombank Building, Floor 9, Phaholyothin Road, Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok. The company’s

main business is to provide inventory management services, used as collateral for bank loans.

Progress Service Support Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is
located at 1 Kasikornbank Building, Soi Kasikornthai, Ratburana Road, Ratburana, Bangkok. The company's
main business is to provide information relating the Bank’s products and services through customer relationship

channels, including selling and marketing via telephone banking.

Progress Service Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located
at 400/22 Kasikombank Building, Floor 9, Phaholyothin Road, Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok. The company’s
main business is to provide drivers , security guards , cleaners and other related services for the Bank and

related parties.

Progress HR Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located at
1019/15 Kasikombank Building, Sanampao Branch, Floor 2-3, Phaholyothin Road, Samsennai, Phayathai,
Bangkok. The company main business is to provide outsourced employee services to the Bank and related parties.

Progress Appraisal Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is
located at 252, Phaholyothin Road, Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok. The company's main business is to appraise

assets.

Progress Collection Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on 20
March 2008, and is located at 1 Kasikombank Building, Soi Kasikornthai, Ratburana Road, Ratburana, Bangkok.
The company’s main businesses are collection and debt restructuring for consumer and corporate loans of the

Bank and its subsidiaries,
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

The conselidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 exclude the financial statements of

subsidiaries whose financial statements are not material to the Bank.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 include all financial statements of the
Bank's subsidiaries, (See impact of full consolidation in note 8).

The consolidated and the Bank only financial statements include the accounts of all branches; domestic and
outside Thailand. Interbranch transactions have been eliminated.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated and Bank-only financial statements are prepared in accordance with the regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand (SET), dated 22 January 2001, regarding the “Preparation and Filing of Financial
Statements and Reports Conceming the Financial Status and Results of Business Operations of Listed Companies”
(B.E. 2544), and with the Bank of Thailand (BoT) notification number SOR NOR SOR 70/2551, dated 3 August
2008, titled “Preparation and announcement of the financial statements of commercial banks and holding
companies which are parent company of group of companies offering financial services” and in accordance with
Thai Accounting Standards ("TAS") including related interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the
Federation of Accounting Professions and in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in

Thailand.

The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht, rounded to the nearest million unless otherwise stated and are

prepared under the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies.

The financial staternents issued for Thai reporting purposes are prepared in the Thai language. This English
translation of the financial statements has been prepared for the convenience of readers not conversant with the

Thai language.

k) USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TAS and generally accepted accounting principles in
Thaitand requires management 1o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These judgements, estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other faclors, including management’s assessment of
the potential impact on the Bank and subsidiaries’ operations and financial position of the globat economic crisis.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

In particular, information about significant impact is as of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in

applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements are described in note 4 significant accounting policies and in the following notes:

Note 8
10
11
12
13

16
19
20
26
27
29
32
35

Investments

Troubled debt restructuring

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Revaluation allowance for debt restructuring
Properties foreclosed

Premises and equipment

Intangible assets

Short-term borrowings

Long-term borrowings

Bad debt and doubtful accounts (reversal)
Loss on debt restructuring

Contingencies

Commitments

Financial instruments
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDMARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

4.1

4.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Bank, its subsidiaries and its interest in associates. Significant

intra-group transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Rank, Control exists when the Bank has the power, directly and
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial staternents from the date that

control commences until the date that control ceases.

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. The consolidated financial statements include the Bank’s share of the total recognized gains
and losses of associates on an equity accounting basis, from the date that significant influence commences until
the date that significant influence ceases. When the Bank’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the
Bank’s carrying amount of investment is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to

the extent that the Bank has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on bebalf of an associate.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the

fair value of the assets given at the date of exchange, plus cost directly attributable to the acquisition.
New and revised Thai Accounting Standards

In 2008, the Bank and its subsidiaries adopted the following new and revised Thai Accounting Standards (TAS)

which are relevant 1o their operations:

TAS 25 (revised 2007) Cash Flow Statements

TAS 29 (revised 2007) Leases

TAS 35 (revised 2007)  Presentation of Financial Statements

TAS 39 (revised 2007) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
TAS 41 (revised 2007) Interim Financial Reporting

TAS 43 (revised 2007) Business Combinations

TAS 51 Intangibie Assets

The adoption of these new and revised TAS does not have any material impact on the consolidated and the Bank—
only financial statements, except for the change in accounting policy discussed in Note 4.3 to the financial
statements in respect of goodwill and negative goodwill arising from business combination.
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

43 Change in accounting policy

The following change of accounting policy by the Bank and subsidiaries has no effect on the Bank oanly financial

statements.

Until 31 December 2007, the Bank and subsidiaries accounted for goodwill and negative goodwill arising from a
business combination at cost less accumutated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortization was charged to

the statement of income over the estimated useful life of 10 years.

During 2007, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued Thai Accounting Standard (TAS) 43 (revised 2007)
“Business Combinations™ which is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008. TAS 43
(revised 2007) requires that the acquirer shall, at the acquisition date, recognize goodwill acquired in a business
combination as an asset at cost. After initial recognition, goodwil! shall be measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Transitional provisions shall be applied to any goodwill carried in the financial statements at
the beginning of the first annual accounting period beginning on or afler 1 January 2008 that arose from a business
combination for which the agreement date was before 1 January 2008. The transitional provisions are to
discontinue amortizing such goodwill; eliminate the carrying amount of the related accumulated amortization with
a corresponding decrease in goodwill; and from the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2008 test all goodwill arising from business combinations for impairment in accordance with TAS 36

“Impairment of Assets”.

TAS 43 (revised 2007) also requires that any excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost, commonly referred to as “negative goodwill”,
shall be recognized immediately in profit or loss. Transitional provisions shall be applied to any negative goodwill
carried in the financial statements at the beginning of the first annual accounting period beginning on or after 1
January 2008 that arose from a business combination for which the agreement date was before 1 January 2008.
The transitional provisions are to derecognize such negative goodwill at the beginning of the year, with a

corresponding adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings.

The Bank and subsidiaries has, accordingly, changed its accounting policy for goodwill and negative goodwill as
discussed above. The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 have not been affected by this
change in accounting policy. The effect of the change in accounting policy on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 is to reduce the charge to the statement of income resulting from
the amortization of goodwill that would have been recognized under the previous accounting policy by
approximately Baht 144 million, with a corresponding increase in reported profit for the year. In addition, based
on impairment testing performed, management has determined that there is no impairment in the carrying value of

goodwiil as at 31 December 2008.




KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

4.4 Cash and cash equivalents

4.5

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash in hand and cash items in the process of collection.
Investments

Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates in the Bank only financial statements are accounted for using the cost

method.

Investments in other debt and equity securities

Investments in debt instruments or marketable equity securities held for trading are classified as trading
investments and are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss being recognized in the statement of

income.

Investments in debt instruments that the Bank and its subsidiaries intend and are able to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity investments and are stated at amortized cost after deduction of allowance for
impairment. The difference between the acquisition cost and redemption value of such debt securities is amortized

using the effective interest rate method over the period to maturity.

Investments in debt instruments or marketable equity securities other than those securities held for trading or
intended to be held to maturity are classified as available-for-sale investments and are stated at fair value with any
resultant gain or loss being recognized directly in equity. The exceptions are impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses, which are recognized in the statement of income. When these investments are
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized directly in equity is accounted for in the statement
of income. Where these investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest rate

method is recognized in the statement of income.

Investments in non-marketable equity securities that are not investments in subsidiaries or associated companies

are stated at cost, afier deduction of allowance for impairment.

Investments in receivables are stated at acquisition cost after deducting the allowance for impairment. When debt
restructuring is required, the balance is recorded as a loan at fair value, in accordance with the transfer of financial
asset accounting procedure. The difference between the book value and the fair value is recognized as gain or loss

on transfer of financial assets in the statement of income.

An impairment review for investments is carried out when there is a factor indicating that an investment might be

impaired. Losses on impairment for all classifications of investments are charged to the statement of income.

Interest and dividend income from investments is recognized on an accrual basis. Gains or losses on sales of
securities are recognized in the statement of income upon disposal. Interest income from investments in

receivables is recognized by using the effective yield method.

19



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Investments in marketable equity securities classified as trading investments and available-for-sale investments are

stated at fair value based on the last Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) bid prices as of the end of the year.

Investments in marketable unit trusts classified as trading investments and available-for-sale investments are stated at

fair value based on the net assets value as of the end of the year,

Investments in government securities and siate enterprise securities guaranteed by the government, classified as
trading investments or available-for-sale investments, are stated at fair value based on the Thai Bond Market
Association Government Bond Yield Curve as of the end of the year, State enterprise securities not guaranteed by the
government and private debt instruments are stated at fair value based on bid prices from the Thai Bond Market
Association as of the end of the year. If not available, the Government Bond Yield for the same period, adjusted by an

appropriate risk premium, is used.
Disposal of investments

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount together with the

associated cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is recognized in the statement of income.
Cost of investments sold is calculated by using the weighted average method.
4.6 Loans

Except in case of loans affected through overdraft agreements, loans represent only principal amounts. Uneamed

discounts received in advance are presented as a reduction in loans.
47 Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts is determined through methods based on the Bank of Thailand’s regulations and based
on the Bank's estimated loan loss. The allowance for non-performing loans has been specifically determined by the
natures of loans and the related factors such as payment ability, collateral, historical loss and estimated loss, ete. The
allowance for performing loans has been assessed based upon general related factors such as historical loss, credit risk,
economic conditions and management experience, etc. For corporate loans, the allowance is determined on a case by

case basis while the allowance for retail loans is determined on portfolio basis with similar risk characteristics.

Based on BoT’s regulations, the Bank and certain subsidiaries have classified their loan portfolios into six categories,
primarily based on the non-accrual period. For loans classified as pass and special-mention, the caleulation of
allowances for doubtful accounts is based on the regulatory minimum percentage requirement, taking into consideration
the collateral value, where the collateral type and date of the latest appraisal are qualifying factors. For loans classified
as sub-standard, doubtful and doubtful of loss, the allowances on these accounts will be set at 100 percent for the
difference between the outstanding book value of the debt and the present value of future cashflows expected to be

received or the expected proceeds from the disposal of coltateral in accordance with the BoT’s regulations.
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4.8 Troubled debt restructuring

The Bank and the asset management subsidiary record foreclosed assets acquired from troubled debt restructuring
at fair value up 1o the legal claim for the debt, inctuding interest reccivable. Where restructuring a loan involves
modification of its terms, the present value of the expected futre cash collections is calculated by using discount
rates equivalent to the market rates of interest at the time of restructuring. The difference between the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be received and the outstanding balances of investment in loans is
recorded in the revaluation allowance for debt restructuring. This revaluation allowance for debt restructuring is
amortized to the statement of income according to the amounts received over the remaining period of the debt-
restructuring contracts except for restructured loans with a high probability of default on their contractual
obligations and agreement. In this latter case, the Bank will stop amortizing 1o the statement of income. The

recognition in the statement of income occurs when such risk is eliminated.
49 Properties foreclosed

Properties foreclosed are recorded at the lowet of market value or the amount of the legal claim on the related
debt, including interest receivable. The market value is estimated by using the latest appraisal value afier

deduction of estimated disposal expenses and holding cost.

Losses on impairment are charged to the statement of income. Gains or losses on disposal of properties foreclosed

are recorded as other income or expenses upon disposal.
4,10 Premises and equipment and depreciation

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accurnulated depreciation and impairment losses except for land
and buildings which are stated at their revalued amounts, The revalued amount is the fair value determined on the
basis of the property's exisling use at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

- Revalued assets (See note 15 for revaluations performed during the current year.)
Land and buildings revaluations are performed by independent professional appraisers according to the Bank of
Thailand’s criteria with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does not differ

materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is credited directly to equity
under the heading of revaluation surplus. However, a revaluation increase is recognized as income to the extent

that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized as an expense.
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When an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognized as an
expense. However, a revaluation decrease is charged directly against any related revaluation surplus to the extent
that the decrease does not exceed the amonnt held in the revaluation surptus in respect of that same asset. The

remainder is recognized as an expense for that period.

Upon disposal, any related revaluation surplus is transferred directly from the revaluation reserve to retained

earnings and is not taken into account when calculating the gain or loss on disposal.

- Leased assets

Leases under which the Bank and its subsidiaries substantially assume all the risk and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Equipment acquired by way of finance leases is capitalized at the lower of its fair
value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction
of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are charged directly to the staterents of income.

- Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating 10 an itemn of premises and equipment is added to the carrying amount of the asset
when it is probable that the future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance
of the existing asset will flow to the Bank and its subsidiaries. All other subsequent expenditure is recognized as

an expense in the year in which it is incurred.

= Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to the statement of income over the estimated useful lives of each item of premises and
equipment.
Depreciation on buildings acquired before July 1996 is computed using the declining-balance method.
Depreciation on buildings acquired after July 1996 and on equipment is computed using the straight-line method,
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 50 years

Equipment 5-15 years

Gains or losses on disposal of premises and equipment are recorded as other income or expense upoa disposal.
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4.11 Intangible assets

- Goodwill (See change in accounting policy disclosure in Note 4.3)
Goodwill in a business combination represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Bank’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired. Negative goodwill in a business combination represents the

excess of the fair value of the Bank’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition.

For the financial statements whose period begins before 1 January 2008, goodwill and negative goodwill are
stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.
For the financial statements whose period begins on or afier 1 January 2008:

- goodwill and negative goodwill, carried in the financial statements that arose from a business
combination for which the agreement date was before 1 January 2008, are stated at cost less
accumulated amortization as of 31 December 2007 and impairment losses.

- goodwill arose from a business combination for which the agreement date begins on or after 1 January

2008, are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Negative goodwill is recogmized as

income in the statement of income in the year of the business combination.
- Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accurnulated amortization and impairment losses.
- Amortization
Amortization is charged 1o the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are
systematically tested for impairment at each balance sheet date. Goodwill and negative goodwill presented in

the financial statements whose periods begin before 1 January 2008 and other intangible assets are amortized

from the date they are available for use. The estimated usefurl lives are as follows:

Goodwill presented in the financial statements

whose period begins before 1 January 2008 10 years
Leasehold rights Over the lease periods
Software licenses 5-15 years

Deferred underwriting license fee and deferred stock exchange membership fee 5 years
4.12 Impairment

The carrying amount of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are
estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognized in the statement of income unless it reverses a previous

revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.

23



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

4.13 Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction charges. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing liabilities are stated at amortized cost with any difference between cost and

redemption value being recognized in the statemnent of income over the period of the borrowings.
4.14 Provisions

A proviston is recognized in the balance sheet when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and

a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions for commitments as off-balance sheet items are determined by credit risk transactions ie., Avals on bills,
Acceptances, letters of indemnity - borrowing, other guarantees and letters of credit, etc. A provision is recognized
when the transactions relate to loans that are classified as sub-standard, doubtful, doubtful of loss and loss assets. The
provisions have been specifically determined by using the same rate as the allowance for doubtful accounts on each of

those loans.
4,15 Derivatives

Trading Derivative Trading derivatives are carried at fair value. The fair vatue of derivatives is determined based
upon liquid {observable} market prices evidenced by exchange traded prices, broker/dealer quotations, or prices of
other transactions with similarly rated counterparties or based upon a valuation technique incorporating observable
market data. It includes an adjustment for individual counterparty credit risk and other adjustments, as appropriate, to
reflect liquidity and ongoing servicing costs. The changes in fair value which include realized and unrealized gains or
losses are recognized in the statement of income as part of gain on exchange and assets or liabilities in the balance
sheet.

Hedging Derivative The Bank manages its banking exposures to market rale movements outside the trading activities
through the use of derivatives, including interest rate swaps, interest rate future and forward exchange contracts. Gain
or loss resulting from the changes in fair values of contracts are recognized in accordance with the standard
accounting treatment for revenues or expenses on hedged items as follows:

1.  Where hedged items are carried at fair value, hedging instruments are carried at fair value consistently.

2. Where hedged items are carried on an accrual basis, then hedging instruments carry the accrual consistently.

Hybnd Instrument includes a non-derivative host contract and an embedded derivative. The host contract shall be
accounted for under the classification of the host contract. An embedded derivative shall be separated from the host
contract and accounted for as a derivative which is carried at fair value, if and only if:
1. The economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the embedded derivative are not closely related;
2. A separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative and;

3.  The hybrid instrument is not recognized at fair value through the statement of income.
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If an embedded derivative is not separated, the hybrid instrument shall be acoounteci for under the classification of

the host contract. Changes in the fair value of separable embedded derivatives are recognized in the statement of

income.

The Bank's management approach relating to accounting and fair value assessment relating to deposit and
borrowing transactions with embedded derivatives {structured notes} are consistent with those of Intemnational
Accounting Standard No. 39 (IAS 39) and the BoT notification number SOR NOR SOR 13/2551, dated 3 August
2008, titled “Permission for Commercial Banks to Undentake Deposit or Borrowing Transactions with Embedded

Derivatives”, which requires commercial banks to apply IAS 39 to structured note products.

Day One Profit Gains or losses from trading derivative and hybrid instrument are recognized at inception in the
statement of income when the fair value of that derivative is determined based upon observable market data or
supported by comparison to other observable market imnsactions, or based upon a valuation technique
incorporating observable market data. The Bank amortizes initial gains or losses on derivative transactions on a
straight-line basis or on an effective interest rate basis over the life of the contract where the fair value is based
upon unobservable market data. The unamortized gains or losses are recognized in the statement of income when

the market data becomes observable.
4.16 Employee benefits
- Staff retirement benefits

Staff members are entitled to retirement pay upon fermination of employment depending upon length of service

and other conditions, It is management’s policy to recognize an appropriate amount as a provision for each year.
- Provident fund

The Bank established a provident fund urnder the Provident Fund Act (B.E. 2530), and registered this Fund with
the Ministry of Finance on 16 August 1994. According to the Fund’s Articles, every employee is entitled to apply
for membership, and each member must contribute to the Fund at the rate of 3% of their basic salary, while the
Bank contributes an additional 3.0 - 4.5%. Upon termination of employment, employees are entitled to receive

this benefit except when terminated “without compensation”,
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4.17 Recognition of interest income

Interest and discount income on loans are recognized on an accrual basis, except when interest payments are in

arrears for more than three months when, regardless of collateral, the cash basis is adopted.

In compliance with the Bank of Thailand's regulation, the Bank reverses accrued interest receivable on loans for

which repayments are more than three months in arrears.

The asset management subsidiary recognizes interest income on investments in receivables and loans on a cash

basis.

Income from factoring of a subsidiary is recognized on an accrual basis.

The lease income of a subsidiary is recognized as follows:
- Income under finance lease agreements is recognized on the basis of installment payments due by using the
effective interest rate method, calculated from the balance of the net investment in each installment. When

installment payments are in arrears for more than three months, the cash basis is adopted.
- Income under operating lease agreements is recognized on the basis of installment payments due. When
installment payments are in arrears for more than three months, the cash basis is adopted.
4.18 Recognition of interest expense
Interest expense is recognized on an accrual basis,
4.19 Income tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted at the balance

sheet date.
420 Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year.
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4.21 Translation of foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Thai Baht at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities including the balance sheet of the Bank’s foreign
branches that are denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the year are translated into Thai Baht at the
reference rates announced by the BoT on that date, The statements of income of the Bank’s foreign branches are

translated into Thai Baht at the reference rates announced by the BoT at the month end rate.

Exchange gains or losses on translation and on transactions in foreign currencies including foreign exchange
differences arising on the translation of financial statements of the Bank’s foreign branches are included in
revenues and expenses for the year.

5 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION OF CASH FLOWS

Non-cash items are as follows:

The Bank and its subsidiaries have provided for a revaluation surplus on investments and have presented it as a

change in equity for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 as follows:

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2008 2007
Revaluation surplus on investments 1,639 725
The Bank
2008 2007
Revaluation surplus on investments 1,640 727

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Bank recognized the realized portion of the appraised
surplus on asset revaluation amounting to Baht 169 million and Baht 137 million, respectively, by transferring
these amounts to retained earnings from appraisal surplus on asset revaluation. See note 15 for revaluations

performed during the current year.

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Bank and its subsidiaries received foreclosed properties
arising from debt settlement amounting to Baht 1,422 million and Baht 1,591 million, respectively, on a

consolidated basis, and Baht 1,356 million and Baht 1,364 million, respectively, for the Bank only.
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6 INTERBANK AND MONEY MARKET ITEMS (ASSETS)

{nterbank and money market items (assets) as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of :

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2008 2007
Atcall Term Total Atcall Tem Total
1. Domestic
The BoT and FIDF 2,006 179,700 181,706 1,925 23,000 24,925
Commercial banks 1,758 5,235 6,993 859 40 899
Finance, securities and

credit foncier companies 873 - 873 200 - 200

Other financial institutions - 606 606 - - =
Total Domestic 4,637 185,541 190,178 2,984 23,040 26,024
Add Accrued interest receivables 3 69 72 - 8 8
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (03] (50} (51} _® s —8
Total 4,639 185560 190,199 2,976 23.048 26,024

2. Foreign

US Dollar 6,106 803 6,909 4,483 26,678 31,161
Japanese Yen 123 - 123 6 - 6
Other cumrencies 1,347 __153 _1,500 _741 __476 1217
Total Foreign 1,576 956 8,532 5,230 27,154 32,384
Add Accrued interest receivables - 7 7 6 314 320
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts {4) - ()] _(4) _ - 4
Total 1312 _ 963  _83535 2232 27.468 22,700
Total Domestic and Foreign 12211 186,523 198,734 £.208 50,516 58,724
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(Million Baht}
The Bank
2008 2007
Algall Term Total Atgcall Tem Total
1. Domestic
The BoT and FIDF 2,006 179,700 181,706 1,925 23,0060 24,925
Commercial banks 2,166 5,200 7,366 816 40 856
Finance, securities and
credit foncier companies 873 - 873 200 - 200
Other financial institutions - __ 606 __ 606 - - -
Total Domestic 5,045 185,506 190,551 2,941 23,040 25,981
Add Accrued interest receivables 3 69 72 - 8 3
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts _ M _ (15 __16) (8) - (8)
Total 5,047 185,560 190,607 233 23,048 25,981
2. Foreign
US Doltar 6,106 803 6,909 4,483 26,678 31,161
Japanese Yen 123 - 123 6 - 6
Other currencies 1,347 __153 _1.500 _ 741 __476 _1,.217
Total Foreign 7,576 956 8,532 5,230 27,154 12,384
Add Accrued interest receivables - 7 7 6 314 320
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts {4) - (4) {4} - {(4)
Total 1572 _ 963 _8.335 2232 27468 32,700
Total Domestic and Foreign 12,619 186,523 199,142 8165 50,516 58,681
7 SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS
Securities purchased under resale agreements at of 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of:
(Million Baht)

Consolidated and The Bank

2008
Govemment Bonds and BoT Bonds -
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8 INVESTMENTS
Investments as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of:
{Million Baht)

2008
Cost Value/
1. Current Investments
1.1 Trading investments

t.1.1 Government and state enterprise

securities 6,116 53 (12) 6,157
i.1.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 1,642 8 - 1,650
1.1.3 Marketable equity securities - domestic 326 42 - 368
Total 8,084 103 (12) 8,175
Add Allowance for revaluation 9 _—
Total _BI75 _B.175
1.2 Available-for-sale investments

1.2.1 Government and state enterprise securities 52,668 1,408 - 54,076

1.2.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 46 - (46) -
1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 1,398 - - 1,398
1.2.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic 377 233 (222) 388
1.2.5 Others 237 —1 - _.238
Total 54,726 1,642 (268) 56,100

Add Allowance for revaluation 1,566 -
Less Allowance for impairment _(192) -
Total 56,100 56,100

1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

1.3.1 Government and state enterprises

securities 2,400 6 - 2,406
1.3.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 841 5 - 845
1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments __982 - - __ 982
Total 4223 1t - 4,234

1.4 General investments

1.4,1 Non-marketable equity securites -

domestic 248 - (248) -
Less Altowance for impairment _(248) L
Total _- —_—
Total Current Investments - net 68,498 £8.509

30



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

(Million Baht)

2008
Cost Value/
2. Long-term Investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprise securities 24,222 608 - 24,830
2.1.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 1,193 19 - 1,212
2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 1,538 3 (33) 1,508
2.1.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic .88 46 2 132
Total 27,041 6§76 (35) 27,682
Add Allowance for revaluation _ 641 -
Total 21682 27,682
2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
2.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities 4,435 149 - 4,584
2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments _ 534 - (584) -
Total 5,019 149 (584) 4,584
Less Allowance for impairment _(384) -
Total 4435 —4.584

2.3 General investments

2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities -

domestic 1,786 - (134) 1,652

2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities - overseas 306 - (264) 42
2.3.3 Investments in receivables 140 - {318) v
Total 2,832 - (716) 2,116

Less Allowance for impairment _{716) _—
Total 2116 _2.116

Total Long-term Investments - net 34233 34,382
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4

(Million Baht)

Cost Value/
ized Cost V. Unrealized Gai Unrealized 1 Fair Val
L. Current Investments
1.1 Trading investments

L.5.1 Government and state enterprise

securities 1,816 15 (8) 1,823
1.1.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 1,339 1 {1} 1,339
1.1.3 Marketable equity securities - domestic 325 _10 — 33
Total 3,480 26 (9) 3,497
Add Allowance for revaluation 1 -
Total —3.497 _3.497
1.2 Available-for-sale investments

1.2.1 Government and state enterprise securities 32,279 315 (138) 32,456
1.2.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 445 5 - 450
1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 17,217 39 (6) 17,250
1.2.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic 949 247 (661) 535
1.2.5 Others 20 —1 _— ——21
Total 50,910 607 (80%) 50,712

Add Allowance for revaluation 395 -
Less Allowance for impairment _(593) -
Total 50712 50712

1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

1.3.1 Government and state enterprises

securitics 561 - ) 560
1.3.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 28 - - 28
1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments _ 21 —_— —_ 271
Total ___860 - )] 859

1.4 General investments
t.4.1 Non-marketable equity securites - domestic 253 - (248) 5
Lgss Allowance for impairment _ {248) e
Total -1 -5
Total Current Investments - net 55074 55073
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{Million Baht)

Cost Value/
ized Cost Val U zed Gain  Unrealized | Fair V.
2. Long-term Investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprise securities 25,351 50 (105) 25,296
2.1.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 560 3 @n 516
2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 1,496 13 (5) 1,504
2.1.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic __ 8§ 218 - __ 303
Total 27,492 284 (157 27,619
Add Allowance for revaluation 173 -
Less Allowance for impairment __(46) -
Total 27,619 21619
2,2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
2.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities 7,437 37 (20) 7,454
2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1,467 15 (585) 897
2.2.3 Foreign debt instruments L3520 - - —1.520
Tetal 10,424 52 (605) 9,871
Less Allowance for impairment _(585) -
Total _9.339 _9871
2.3 General investments
2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities - domestic 1,730 - {102) 1,628
2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities - overseas 106 - 264) 42
2.3.3 Investments in receivables _1.009 - {274) 7
Total 3,045 - (640) 2,405
Less Allowance for impairment _{640) -
Total _2.405 245
Total Long-term Investments - net 39,863 39,895
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2008
Cost Value/
1. Current Investments
1.1 Trading investments

1.1.1 Government and state enterprises 6,116 53 {12) 6,157
1.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1,642 8 - 1,650
1.1.3 Marketable equity securities - domestic 326 _a —_ 369

Total 8,084 104 (12) 8,176

Add Allowance for revaluation __92
Total _8.176 8,176

1.2 Available-for-sale investments

1.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities 52,668 1,408 - 54,076
1.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 46 - (46) -
1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 1,398 - - 1,398
1.2.4 Marketable equity secutities - domestic 377 _232 222) 387
Total 54,489 1,640 (268) 55,861
Add Allowance for revaluation 1,564 -
Less Allowance for impairment _(192) -
Total 55,861 55,861
1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
1.3.1 Government and state enterprises securities 2,400 6 - 2,406
1.3.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 841 5 - 846
1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments __ 982 - o 982
Total _4,223 11 - _4234
1.4 General investments
1.4.1 Non-marketable equity securities - domestic 248 (248) -
Less Allowance for impairment _(248) -
Total - R
Total Current Investmenis - net 68,260 68,271
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Cost Value/
70 C jue Unrealized Gain Unrealized | Fait Val
2. Long-term Investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprises securities 24,221 608 - 24,829
2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1,193 19 - 1,212
2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 1,538 3 (33) 1,508
2.1.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic __85 46 - _ 131
Total 27,037 676 (33) 27,680
Add Allowance for revaluation _ 643 -
Total 27,680 27,680

2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
2.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities 4,435 150 - 4,585
2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 584 - (584) -
Total 5,019 150 (584) 4,585
Less Allowance for impairment _(584) -
Total 4433 4585

2.3 General investments

2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities - domestic 1,639 - (103) 1,536
2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities - overseas 306 - (264) 42
2.3.3 Investments in receivables 695 - (304) 391
Total 2,640 - (671) 1,969
Less Allowance for impairment _{671) -
Total _1.969 -1.969
Total Long-term Investments - net 34,084 34234
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Cost Value/
ized Cost Val Unrealized Gain  Unrealized I Fair Val
1. Current Investments
1.1 Trading investments

1.1.1 Government and state enterprises 1,816 15 (8) 1,823
1.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1,339 1 (1) 1,339
1.1.3 Marketable equity securities - domestic 325 10 —_ 335
Total 3,480 26 (9) 3,497
Add Allowance for revaluation 17 -
Total -3.497 3,497
1.2 Available-for-sale investments
1.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities 32,279 315 (138) 32,456
1.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 445 5 - 450
1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 17,217 39 (6) 17,250
1.2.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic _ 949 247 {661) _ 535
Total 50,890 606 (805) 50,691
Add Allowance for revaluation 394 -
Less Allowance for impairment _(593) -
Total 30,691 20,691
1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
1.3.1 Government and state enterprises securities 381 - m 380
1.3.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 28 - - 28
1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments _ 20 - — 27
Total __680 - (1) 679
1.4 General investments
1.4.1 Non-marketable equity securities - domestic 253 - (248) 5
Less Allowance for impairment _(248) -
Total 3 -3
Tota! Current Investments - net 54,873 54872
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2. Long-term Investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprises securities

2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments
2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments

2.1.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic

Total
Add Allowance for revaluation
Less Allowance for impairment
Total
2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

2.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities

2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments
2.2.3 Foreign debt instruments

Total
Less Allowance for impairment

Total

2.3 General invesiments

2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities - domestic

2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities - overseas

2.3.3 Investments in receivables
Total

Less Allowance for impairment
Total

Total Long-term Investments - net

Cost Value/

(Million Baht)

ized C lue Unsealized Gain Unrealized L Fair Val

25,351
560
1,496

27,492
173

7,437
1,467

10,424

1,673
3066

fEesb
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37
15

52

(105)
47
5

(157)

(20)
(585)

(6053)

(84)
(265)

- (251}

(600)



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FEINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

#

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, investments in held-to-maturity debt instruments, which are government or state
enterprise securities, included promissory notes from Thai Asset Management Corporation of Baht 3,435 million and

Baht 3,981 mitlion, respectively.

Gain on investments presented in the statements of income for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of

{Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Gain on disposal of investments
Held for trading investments 679 565 654 565
Available-for-sale investments 564 878 562 871
(General investmenis 611 228 609 226
Investments in receivables 8 __68 - -
Total 1.882 1,739 1,825 1.662
Loss on disposal of investments
Held for trading investments (192) (159) (191) (158)
Available-for-sale investments (533) (363) (533) (363)
General investrnents - _{96) - _(88)
Total (725) {618) (724) {609}
Gain on transfer of financial assets 1 10 - 5
Loss from a capital reduction in a
subsidiary - - - (43)
Gain from revaluation of investments 70 50 70 50
Reversal (loss) on impairment
Investments in securities 414 102 428 94
Investments in receivables an (197 (52 (19
Total 343 —(5 376 — 15
Total Gain on investrents 1571 1,176 1,547 1,080
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Revaluation surplus on investments as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of:
{Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Revaluation surplus on investments
Debt tnstruments 2,005 170 2,005 170
Equity securities 201 397 203 397
Share of revaluation surplus in
subsidiaries and associated companies
using the equity method 1 _1 —_ -
Total 2207 268 2,208 367
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007 a maturity analysis for debt instruments resulted in the following:

1. Available-for-sale investments
1.1 Government and state
enterprise securitics
1.2 Private enterprise debt
Instruments
1.3 Foreign debt instruments
Total
Add (Less) Allowance for
revaluation
Less Allowance for impairment
Total
2. Held-to-maturity debt
Instruments
2.1 Government and state
enterprise securities
2.2 Private enterprise debt
instruments
2.3 Foreign debt instruments
Total
Less Allowance for impairment
Total

Total Debt Instruments

{(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2007
Maturity Maturity
Over Over
lyearto5  Qvers Lyearto5  QOverd

1 year years years Total Lyear years years Total
46,233 25,222 5,435 76,890 15,764 26,058 15,808 57,630
46 1,193 - 1,239 1,005 - - 1,005
_1,398 _1,538 - 2,936 17217 _14% - 18713
47,677 27,953 5,435 81,065 33,986 27,554 15,808 77,348
358 734 867 1,959 36 (26) 161 171
- - - - - (46) - (46)
48,035 28,687 6,302 83,024 34,022 27482 15969 774713
2,400 3,317 1,058 6,835 561 6,355 1,082 7,998
841 - 584 1,425 28 882 585 1,495
4,223 3,377 1,642 9,242 859 8,758 1,667 11,284
- - (584) A584) - - _(585) _(585)
_4.223 _3371 1,058 B.638 __85%% _B8758 _ 1082 10699
£2,258 32,064 1360 91,682 4881 36240 17,051 88,172
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

1. Avatlable-for-sale investments

1.1 Government and state
enterprise securitics

1.2 Private enterprise debt
instruments

1.3 Foreign debt instruments
Total

Add (Less) Allowance for

revaluation

Less Allowance for impairment
Total
2, Held-to-maturity debt
instruments
2.1 Government and state
enterprise secutities
2.2 Private enterprise debt
instruments
2.3 Foreign debt instruments
Total
Less Allowance for impairment
Total

Total Debt Instruments

(Million Baht)
The Bank
2007
Maturity Maturity
Over Over
lyeartos  Qverd lyearto5  Over3

1year years years Total 1year years years Total
46,233 25,222 5,435 76,890 15,764 26,058 15,808 57,630
46 1,193 - 1,239 1,005 - - 1,005
_1,398 _1,538 - 2,936 17217 _14% - 18713
47,677 27,953 5,435 81,065 33,986 27,554 15,808 77,348
358 734 867 1,959 36 (26) 161 171

- - - - - (46) - (46)
48,035 28,687 6,302 83024 34,022 27482 13968 77473
2,400 3,377 1,058 6,835 381 6,355 1,082 7,818
841 - 584 1,425 28 882 585 1,495
__982 _- - _ 982 __ 270 _l>s21 - ~L791
4223 3,377 1,642 9,242 679 8,758 1,667 11,104
- - {584) Gy - - _(58%) _(58%)
4,223 331 L1038 _8658 __ 679 _8758 _1.082 10519
52258 32,064 1360 91682 34700 36240 17051 81,992
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, investrnents held by the Bank and its subsidiaries in financial institutions that were closed
on 8 December 1997, or investments in listed companies which meet SETs criteria for delisting, and are in default on debt
instruments, or companies whose ability to continue as a going concern is uncertain, or unlisted companics whose financial
position and operating results are the same as companies which meet SET’s criteria for delisting or investments in receivables

with uncertainty in settlement or in default, were as follows:

(Million Baht)
nsoli
2008
_ Cost Value / Book Vatue Fajr Value
Investments Equity Debt Investments  Equity Debt  Allowance for

1. Closed financial institutions - - 131 - - - (131)
2. Listed companies which meet

SET’s criteria for delisting, and

are in default on debt instruments - - - - - - -
3. Companies whose ability to

continue as a going concern is

uncertain, or unlisted companies

whose financial position and

operating results are the same as

companies which meet

SET’s criteria for delisting - 646 498 - - - (1,144)
4. Investment in receivables with

uncertainty in settlernent

or in default 122 - - 419 - — _{303)

Total m 646 629 419 — — (1,578)
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

{Million Baht)
Consolidated
2007
Cost Value / Book Value Fair Value
Investments Equity Debt Investments  Equity Debt  Allowance for
In Receivables  Securjties Instruments In Receivables Securities Instruments Impairment

1. Closed financial institutions - - 131 - - - (131
2. Listed companies which meet

SET’s criteria for delisting, and

are in default on debt instruments - - - - - - -
3. Companies whose ability to

continue as a going concem is

uncertain, or unlisted companies

whose financial position and

operating results are the same as

companies which meet

SET’s criteria for delisting - 896 498 - 1 - (1,393)
4. Investment in receivables with

uncertainty in settlement

or in default 979 - - 105 —_— - (2749

Total 99 896 629 05 =1 — (L,798)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

£

{Million Baht)
The Bank
2008
— CostValue/BookValue Fair Value
Investments Equity Debt Investments  Equity Debt  Allowance for
In Receivables  Securitics Instruments En Receivables Securities Instruments Impairment

1. Closed financial institutions - - 131 - - - (131)
2. Listed companies which meet

SET’s criteria for delisting, and

are in default on debt instruments - - - - - - -
3. Companies whose ability to

continue as a going concem is

uncertain, or unlisted companies

whose financial position and

operating results are the same as

companies which meet

SET'’s criteria for delisting - 646 498 - - - (1,144)
4. [nvestment in receivables with

uncertainty in settlement

or in default 671 - - 374 = - —(303)

Total 677 646 629 374 = = (1,578)



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

{(Million Baht)
The Bank
2007
— Cost Value / Book Value Fair Value
Investments Equity Debt  Investments  Equity Debt  Allowance for
InReceivables  Securities Instruments In Recejvables Securities Instruments mpairment

1. Closed financial institutions - - 131 - -
2. Listed companies which meet

SET's criteria for delisting, and

are in default on debt instruments - - - - -
3. Companies whose ability to

continue as a going concern is

uncertain, or unlisted companies

whose financial position and

operating results are the same as

companies which meet

SET’s criteria for detisting - 896 498 - 1
4, Investment in receivables with

uncertainty in settlement

or in default

S
|
B E
|

Total
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, change in the investments in subsidiaries and associated corpanies were as

follows:
(Million Baht)
Note Consolidated The Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007
Net book value at 1 January 589 483 9,357 9,740
Share of profit from investments on equity method 36 120 - -
Establishment of a new company 1 - - 5 -
Effect from full consolidation 1 {427) - - -
Buy - - - 100
Sale - 2 - (14)
Dividend income (23) (49) - -
Reversal of allowance for impairment 6 16 - 14
Capital increase - - 112 -
Capital decrease - - - (483)
Others _33 21 - -
Net book value at 31 December =214 589 2474 2,357
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

The recording of investments in subsidiaries and associated companies using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements is based on financial information obtained from audited or unaudited financial statements and from management

information that has not been audited or reviewed by the auditors.

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, investments held by the Bank and its subsidiaries, that were more than 10% of those

companies’ shares and were not investments in subsidiaries and associated companies, classified by industry were as follows:
p Y

(Million Baht)

nsoli The Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

Agricultural and mining - 49 - -
Manufacturing and commerce 20 20 20 20
Property development and construction 550 568 550 568
Infrastructure and services 276 276 271 27
Others 330 _336 330 _336
Total 1,176 1.249 Lin L195
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KASTKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

The summary of financial position and results of operations of its subsidiaries which are not included in the consolidated

financial statements are as follows:

(Million Baht}
Balance Sheets
2008 2007

Total Total Total Total Total Total

Assets Lishilities  Equify  Assets Lishilitis  Equity
Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd. 4,937 570 4,367 8,123 3,855 4,268
Kasikorn Research Center Co., Ltd. 47 15 32 44 16 28
Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Lid. 1,151 264 887 1,032 238 794
Kasikorn Securities Public Co., Ltd. 1,641 931 710 1,587 940 647
Kasikom Factoring Co., Ltd. 4,582 4,085 497 4,335 3,927 408
Kasikorn Leasing Co., Ltd. 34,801 34,006 795 22,944 22,153 791
Progress Land and Buildings Co., Ltd. 486 2 484 488 4 484
KHAQO KLA Venture Capital Management Co., Ltd.* 5 - 5 5 1 4
K-SME Venture Capital Co,, Lid. 197 - 197 100 1 99
Progress Gunpai Co., Ltd. 344 166 178 293 149 144
Progress Plus Co., Lid. 121 86 35 115 84 3
Progress Facilities Management Co., Ltd. 4 20 14 i1 16 15
Progress Management Co., Litd. 38 7 3] 15 8 27
Progress Software Co,, Ltd. 230 123 157 165 58 107
Progress Storage Co., Ltd. 31 6 25 2 4 18
Progress Services Support Co., Lud. 51 27 24 30 23 7
Progress Services Co., Ltd. 35 13 22 29 10 19
Progress HR Co., Ltd. 63 44 19 50 41 9
Progress Appraisal Co., Ltd. 101 5 66 63 24 39
Progress Collection Co., Lid. 13 7 6 - - -

48958 40407 8531 39491  3L552 2233

* The Bank holds 100.00% shares indirectly through Kasikom Asset Management Co., Ltd.
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

{Million Baht except for Earnings (Loss) per Share)
Statements of Ingome

For the Years Ended 31 December
2008 2007
Net Earnings Net Earnings
Profit  (Loss) per Profit  (Loss) per
Revenue Expenses (Loss) Share (Baht) Revenye Expenses (Loss) Share(Baht)
Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd. 200 99 101 0.17 863 678 185 0.31
Kasikorn Research Center Co., Ltd. 75 71 4 319.39 68 58 10 94.61
Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd. 1,528 1,042 486 17.91 1,179 823 356 13.12
Kasikom Securities Public Co., Ltd. 178 331 47 .79 350 314 36 .60
Kasikom Factoring Co., Ltd. 407 318 89 55.45 392 269 123 76.69
Kasikorn Leasing Co., Ltd. 2,117 2,113 4 0.05 1,337 1,312 25 0.28
Progress Land and Buildings Co., Ltd. 7 7 - 0.05 23 30 &) (0.64)
KHAO KLA Venture Capital
Management Co., Ltd.* 3 7 ey (5.93) - 1 (1 (2.06)
K-SME Venture Capital Co., Lid. - 3 3 (0.15) - 1 n {0.03)
Progress Gunpai Co., Ltd. 449 415 34 171.51 365 329 36 179.64
Progress Plus Co., Ltd. 402 396 6 2521 319 316 3 13.72
Progress Facilities Management Co., Ltd. 81 76 5 91.69 77 72 5 100.89
Progress Management Co., Ltd. 68 63 5 86.90 62 57 5 78.06
Progress Software Co., Lid. 503 451 52 519.12 241 218 23 226.83
Progress Storage Co., Lid. 51 41 10 34438 36 30 6 192.60
Progress Services Support Co., Ltd. 137 121 16 406.39 102 100 2 56.35
Progress Services Co., Ltd. 196 183 13 634.54 167 157 10 520.10
Progress HR Co., Lid. 460 450 10 958.46 415 417 2) (155.00)
Progress Appraisal Co., Ltd. 274 247 27 5,463.74 205 195 10 1,982.05
Progress Collection Co.,Ltd. —28 27 -1 13.49 - _— - -
1364 6461 903 6,201 5377 R4

* The Bank holds 100.00% shares indirectly through Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd.
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Disclosure of The Statements of Cash Flows of The Asset Management Company (*AMC™)

In accordance with the Bank of Thailand’s notification number Sor Nor Sor (01) Wor 3258/2543 dated 27 November 2000,
relating to the operational regulations of the asset management company, the Bank is required to disclose the statements of
cash flows of the AMC in the notes to the financial statements, The statements of cash flows of Phethai Asset Management

Co,, Lid, are as follows;

Phethai Asset Management Company Limited
Staternents of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

Million Baht
2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit 101 185
Adjustments to reconcile net profit from operating activities

Loss on impairment of investments in receivables 1 99
Reversal of bad debt and doubtful accounts (55) (81)
Loss on debt restructuring 10 217
Interest income from amortization of revaluation allowance for debt restructuring (2) 32)
Depreciation and amortization 2 8
Loss on impairment of properties foreclosed 45 103
Loss (gain) on investment in securities 18 mn
Amortization of discount on promissory note receivables (13) (9
Net (income) loss from interest and dividends (43) 2
Gain on transfer of financial assets (25) (36)
Reversal of loss on impairment of other assets - 4
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses 30y 1

9 452

Interest and dividends received 78 176
Interest paid (49) (193)
Income tax (paid) received (3 1
Net profit from opemtions before changes in operating assets and liabilities 40 436
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Phethai Asset Management Company Limited

Statements of Cash Flows {Continued)

For the Years Ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

Decrease in operating assets
Investments in receivables
Loans and receivables
Properties foreclosed
Other assets
(Decrease) increase in operating liabilities
Other liabilities
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash paid for purchases of long — term investments
Proceeds from disposal of long-term investments
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash paid for repayment of borrowings from financial institutions
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

53

Million Baht

2008 2007
218 151
484 1,044
948 659
1,546 453
(31 __28
3,205 2171

4 -
e __16
3 __16
(3.215) (2,805)
(3.215) (2.805)
(7 (18)
32 0
—23 —d2



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

9 LOANS AND ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLES
Loans and accrued interest receivables as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of:
1. Classified by Type of Loans
(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

Overdrafis 158,187 143,053 157,389 141,737
Loans 368,050 305,247 398,038 325,268
Bills 309,199 262,254 314,556 268,992
Others 68,572 51951 _30.604 _25.308
Total 904,008 762,505 900,587 761,305
Add Accrued interest receivable _ 1,486 _ 1,263 _ 1,455 _ 1,246
Total 905,494 763,768 902,042 762,551
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (26,394) (24,217) (25,125) {22,617

Less Revaluation allowance for

debt restructuring (.378) {1.635) (,378) {1,630}

Total 875,722 231,916 873,539 238,304

2. Classified by Maturity of Contracts
(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

Within 1 year 539,911 453,108 539,289 454,264

Over | year 365,583 310,660 362,753 308,287

Total 905,494 163,768 202,042 262,551
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

3. Classified by Currencies and Residency of Borrowers

Baht
US Dollars
Other currencies

Total

Baht
US Dollars
Other currencies

Total

Domestic
870,077
31,534
—3201
204,818

Domestic
866,625
31,534
3,207
201,366

2008
Foreign

Bk g

55

Consolidated

Total  Domestic  Foreign ~ Total

870,077 737,926

31,822 22,504

205156 763,304
The Bank

{Million Baht)
2007
- 737,926
459 22,963
-] —2879
464 163,768
(Million Baht)
2007

Total  Domestic  Foreign  Total

866,625

31,822
—3257
201,704

736,708

22,504
2875
162,087

B L &

736,708

22,963
2,880
262,551



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

4. Classified by Type of Business and Account Status

{Million Baht)
Conselidated
2008
Special Sub- Doubtful
Bass Mention  Standard Doubtful of Loss Total

Agricultural and mining 22,262 2,118 262 57 552 25,251

Manufacturing and commerce 477,338 24,797 4,113 3,207 12,307 521,762
Property development and

Construction 54,086 3,261 274 1,394 1,930 60,945

Infrastructure and services 74,731 4,019 194 500 4,834 84,278

Housing loans 109,534 4,221 438 291 1,621 116,105

Others 921269 _2815 610 _a 233 95,968

Total 829220 41,231 5,891 5,790 22,177 904,309

Kasikorn Securities Pubtic Co., Ltd. —L185

Total 905,494

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2007
Special Sub- Doubtful
Pass Mention  Standard Doubtful of Loss Total

Agricultural and mining 21,828 506 225 176 723 23,458

Manufacturing and commerce 434,363 6,015 3,458 6,014 10,982 460,832
Property development and

Construction 40,938 1,041 365 1,366 2,220 45,930

Infrastructure and services 61,234 1,042 260 2,633 1,459 66,628

Housing loans 91,093 1,177 455 649 2277 95,651

Others _ 67,048 1,244 _656 444 __ 816 10,208

Total 716504 11,025 5419 11282 18477 762,707

Kasikorn Securities Public Co., Ltd. 1,061

Total 163,768
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(Miltion Baht)
The Bank
2008
Special Sub- Doubtful
Pass Mention  Standard Doubiful of Loss Total

Agricultural and mining 19,738 1,782 183 -2 537 22,260

Manufacturing and commerce 463,851 23,997 3,973 3,093 11,432 506,346
Property development and

Construction 52,791 3,122 249 1,378 1,354 58,894

Infrastructure and services 72,133 3,838 163 488 4,290 80,912

Housing loans 109,502 4,203 438 291 1,396 115,830

Others 114,435 1,879 _458 252 _ 116 117,800

Total 832,450 38,821 5464 2,322 19,785 902,042

(Million Baht)

The Bank
2007
Special Sub- Doubtful
Pass Mention  Standard Doubtful of Loss Total

Agricultural and mining 20,694 381 210 172 688 22,145

Manufacturing and commerce 424,487 5,526 3,380 6,000 9,863 449256
Property development and

Construction 39,967 964 356 1,364 1,508 44,159

Infrastructure and services 59,183 695 239 2,619 944 63,680

Housing loans 91,021 1,142 455 649 2,010 95,277

Others _85.707 109 347 __416 633 _88,034

Total 121,039 9417 3,187 1L220 15,668 162,551
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5. Loans and accrued interest receivables classified by account status

{Million Baht)
Consolidated
2008
Outstanding Debt
after Deduction of
Loans and Collateral Value/ % Used for
Accrued Interest NPV of Cash Flow from Calculating Allowance for
Recgivables Debtors or Sale of Collateral  The Alfowance Doubtful Accounts
Pass 829,220 303,112 1 3,031
Special Mention 41,231 10,974 2 219
Sub-Standard 5391 2,350 100 2,350
Doubtful 5,790 2,437 100 2,437
Doubtful of Loss 22,177 11,954 100 11,954
Allowance established in
Excess of BoT regulations - - 6,403
Kasikomn Securities Public
Co.,Ltd. _ 1,185 - -
Total 905.494 330,827 26,394
(Million Baht}
Consolidated
2007
Outstanding Debt
after Deduction of
Loans and Collateral Value/ % Used for
Accrued Interest NPV of Cash Flow from Calculating Allowance for
Receivables Debtors or Sale of Collateral The Allowance Doubtful Accounts
Pass 716,504 330,160 1 3,302
Special Mention 11,025 3,802 2 85*
Sub-Standard 5419 2,505 100 2,505
Doubtful 11,282 5,863 100 5,863
Doubtful of Loss 18,477 8,906 100 8,906
Allowance established in
Excess of BoT regulations - - 3,556
Kasikorn Securities Public
Co.,Ltd. __ L0861 _— -
Total 763,768 351,236 24217

* Includes the allowance for doubtful accounts of asset management companies as per the BoT’s audit results, which has

been transferred from the allowance provided in excess of the BoT's regulations.
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(Million Baht)
The Bank
2008
Qutstanding Debt
after Deduction of
Loans and Collateral Value % Used for
Accrued Interest NPV of Cash Flow from Calcufating Allowance for
Receivables Debtors or Sale of Collateral The Allowance Doubtful Accounts
Pass 832,450 337,059 1 3,371
Special Mention 38,821 10,782 2 216
Sub-Standard 5,464 2,332 100 2,332
Doubtful 5,523 2,384 100 2,384
Doubiful of Loss 19,784 11,089 100 11,089
Allowance established in
Excess of BoT regulations - - 5,233
Total 202,042 363,646 23,125
(Million Baht)
The Bank
2007
Outstanding Debt
afier Deduction of
Loans and Collateral Value % Used for
Accrued Interest NPV of Cash Flow from Calculating Allowance for
Receivables Debtors or Sale of Collateral The Allowance Doubtful Accounts
Pass 721,059 355,265 1 3,553
Special Mention 9417 3,708 2 74
Sub-Standard 5,187 2,477 100 2,477
Doubtful 11,221 5,847 100 5,847
Doubtful of Loss 15,667 7,813 100 7,813
Allowance established in
Excess of BoT regulations - _- 2853
Total 162,551 375,110 22617
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Uneamed interest are as follows:

(Miltion Baht)
2008 2007
The Bank and The Bank and
Unearned interest 322 4,439 347 3,228

Non-performing loans (NPL)

According to the BoT's directive number SOR NOR SOR 68/2551, dated 3 August 2008, titled “Preparation and
announcement of condensed report of assets and liabilitles of commercial banks” non-performing loans (NPL) are
defined as sub quality loans, being outstanding loans of sub-standard, doubtful, doubtful of loss and loss loan
accounts in accordance with the BoT's directive number SOR NOR SOR 31/2551, dated 3 August 2008, titled
“Classification and provision criteria of financial institution”.

Non-performing loans, net {NPL net) refers to the non-performing loan value, net of total allowances for doubtfid
accounts.

In accordance with the BoTs regulations, commercial banks are required to report the following information:

- Non-performing loans (NPL gross).

- The ratio of NPL to total loans.

- Non-performing loans, net (NPL net).

- The ratio of total loans, net of allowances for doubtful accounts, which is referred to the ratio of NPL net to total

loans after deduction of allowances for doubtful accounts.
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As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, non-performing loans, gross, (including financial institutions) based on the

above directive can be summarized as follows:

{Million Baht)
2008
The Bank and
The Bank Subsidiaries
Nen-performing loans, gross 30,630 33,686
Total loans used for NPL gross ratio calculation 1,088,109 1,090,345”
Ratio of total loans 2.81 3.09
(Million Baht)
2007
The Baok and
The Bank idiari
Non-performing loans, gross 31,915 34,980
Total loans used for NPL gross ratio calculation 785,557 787,222%
Ratio of total loans 4.06 4.44

® Total loans used for NPL ratio calculation are loans to general customers as presented in the balance sheet and

loans to financial institutions as included in interbank and money market iterns.

@ Excluding loans to subsidiaries, as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 amounting to Baht 38,366 million and Baht

29,406 million, respectively.
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¥

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, non-performing loans, net, (including financial institutions) based on the above

directive can be summarized as follows:

Non-performing loans, net
Total loans used for NPL net ratio calculation

Ratio of total loans

Non-performing loans, net

Total loans used for NPL net ratio calculation

Ratio of total loans

The Bank
13,591
1,071,070
1.27

The Bank
15,776
769,419
205

2007

{Miilion Baht)

The Bank and
Subsidiaries
15,712

@

1,072,371
1.47

(Million Baht)

The Bank and

Subsidiar
17,600
769,842~

2.29

“T'otal loans used for NPL ratio calculation are loans to general customers as presented in the balance sheet and

loans to financial institutions as included in interbank and money market items, net of allowance for doubtful

accounts.

@ Excluding loans to subsidiaries, as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 amounting to Baht 38,366 million and Baht

29,406 million, respectively.
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As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, non-accrual loans, gross, (including financial institutions) based on the accrual

basis can be summarized as follows:

(Million Baht)
2008
Phethai — AMC Kasikorn Kasikom The Bank and
The Bank (Original principal) Factorin Leasing Subsidiari
Non-accrual loans 58,059 2,065 292 843 61,259
Total loans used for ratio
Calculation* 1,088,109 2,065 4,663 33,874 1,090,345**
Percentage of total loans 5.34 100.00 6.26 249 5.62
(Million Baht)
2007
Phethai - AMC Kasikorn Kasikomn The Bank and
The Pank  (Original principal)  Factorin Leasing Subsidiari
Non-accrual loans 48,357 7,118 241 204 55,920
Total loans used for ratio
Calculation* 785,557 7,118 3,718 20,234 787,221+
Percentage of total loans 6.16 100.00 6.48 1.01 7.10

* Total loans used for NPL ratio calculation are loans to general customers as presented in the balance sheet and

loans to financial institutions as included in interbank and money market items.

** Excluding loans to subsidiaries, as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 amounting to Baht 38,366 million and Baht

29,406 million, respectively.
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As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, loans to listed companies that meet SET’s criteria for delisting were as follows:

2008
Loans and
Accrued
Interest Collateral

Receivables Value
Listed companies which
meet SET's

criteria for delisting 348 65

2008
Loans and
Accrued
Interest Collateral
Receivabl Valug
Listed companies which
meet SET’s
criteria for delisting 348 65

Consolidated
2007
Allowance Loans and
for Accrued
Doubtful Interest Collaterai
Accounts  Receivables Value
219 37 31
The Bank
2007
Allowance Loans and
for Accrued
Doubtful Interest Collateral
Accounts  Receivables Yalue
219 37 3

{Million Baht)

Allowance
for
Doubtful
Accounts

(Million Baht)

Allowance
for
Doubtful
Accounts

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007 the outstanding balances of loans to the Bank’s wholly owned subsidiaries were

as follows:
Type of foans
Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd. Bills
Kasikorn Factoring Co., Ltd. Bills
Bills
Loans
Kasikom Leasing Co., Ltd. Bills

Loans

3 Months
i-6 Months

At Call

1-4 Years

7-120 Days
I-6 Years

2008
Interest rate
3-Month Fixed Deposit
Money Market Rate +
Spread 1% at least
Money Market Rate +
Spread 1% at least
Fixed Rate
Money Market Rate
Fixed Rate

(Million Baht)

530

1,435

1,000

1,550

900
32,808
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{Million Baht)
2007
Type of loans Maturity Interest rate Amount
Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd. Bills 3 Months 3-Month Fixed Deposit 3,745
Kasikorn Factoring Co., Ltd. Bills 1-6 Months Money Market Rate + 2,305
Spread 1% at least
Bills AtCall Money Market Rate + 560
Spread 1% at least
Loans 1-4 Years Fixed Rate 960
Kasikorn Leasing Co., Ltd. Bills 7-120 Days Money Market Rate 240
Loans 1-5 Years Fixed Rate 21,596

Transferring of Sub-Standard Quality Assets to Thai Asset Management Corporation (TAMC)

In accordance with the Emergency Decree on the Thai Asset Management Comporation B.E, 2544, on 12 October 2001, the
Bank signed an Asset Transfer Agreement with TAMC to transfer eligible sub-standard quality assets outstanding as of
31 December 2000 to TAMC. All rights and duties associated with each transferred sub-standard quality asset were
transferred to TAMC at a price determined by the appraised value of the undertying collateral assets, provided that the price
did not exceed the book value of credits extended, less existing provisions outstanding, as required by law on the transfer
date. TAMC has 180 days from the date of each transfer to examine any transferred assets. TAMC will then quote the
transfer price within seven days after the end of the examination period. Afler confirming the price, TAMC will issue non-
transferable 10-year callable promissory notes guaranteed by FIDF, The notes bear interest equal to the weighted average of
the deposit rates of five major banks, and are paid at the end of each year by means of a non-transferable, extendable one-
year promissory note, puaranteed by FIDF. The rights to these notes and the received notes are included in investments in

held-to~-maturity debt instruments.

In accordance with the Emergency Decree and the Asset Transfer Agreement, TAMC and the Bank will share jointly the
profits and responsibility for any losses on transferred assets, which are payable on the fifth and the tenth anniversaries of the
transfers, starting from 1 July 2001. In the case of losses, the Bank will first be responsible for any loss, not exceeding 20%
of the transfer price. The second portion of losses, again not exceeding 20% of the transfer price, will be equally shared by
TAMC and the Bank. Any remaining loss would then be absorbed by TAMC. [n addition, expenses of TAMC are included
in the calculation of the gain or loss sharing. In the case of profit, the first portion of profits up to 20% of the transfer price is
to be shared equally by TAMC and the Bank. Should there be any profit over and above this, the Bank is entitled to the
remainder up to the gross book value of the assets, less the transfer price and the Bank’s share in the first portion of the
profits. As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Bank has set up an estimate for loss sharing amounting to Baht 1,100 million

and Baht 782 million, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Bank did not transfer any sub-standard quality assets to TAMC.The gross book
value of the assets transferred before deducting allowance for doubtful accounts up to 31 December 2008 was Baht 14,557
million and the estimated total transfer price up to 31 December 2008 was Baht 10,072 million. As of 31 December 2008, the

Bank received promissory notes from TAMC of Baht 10,072 million.

As at 31 December 2008, the Bank was informed that loss sharing amounting to Baht 29 million was allocated to the Bank

from TAMC.

10

TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURING

During the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Bank and its subsidiaries engaged in debt restructuring

contracts as follows;

{(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Total Total Total Total
Quistanding Outstanding Outstanding Qutstanding
Debt Before Debt Before Debt Before Debt Before

Cases Restructuring Cases Restructuring Cases Restructuring Cases Restrucuring

Debt restructuring contracts
that incurred losses 778 13,912 738 7,469 751 13,844 630 6,674

Debit restructuring contracts
that incurred no losses 31444 34216 23457 22491 31,398 23852 2340 22270
Total 32222 48128 24195 29960 32,149 47.696 24,033 28944
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Lasses on debt restructuring for the three-month periods ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Types of Restructuring

Transfers of assets

Changes of repayment conditions

Debt restructuring in various forms

Total

Types of Restructuring

Transfers of assets

Changes of repayment conditions

Debt restructuring in various forms

Total

(Million Baht)

Loss on

Debt

Eair Value Restructuring

Consolidated
2008
The Qutstanding Debt Trmnsferred Assets
Before After
Cases Restructuring  Restucturing Types
38 297 - Cash, land, 204
premises
and investments
702 12,311 12,311 - -
38 1,304 847 Cash, land, 458
premises
- - - and investments .
8 13912 13,158 662
Consolidated
2007
The Quistanding Debt Transferred Assets
Before After

135 1,029
586 6,084
17 356
38 1469

67

- Cash, land,
premises

and investments

5,956 -
302 Cash, land,
premises
- and investments
0,258

51

B |

93

2,654
246

(Million Baht)

Loss on

Debt

398

967
59
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L)

(Miilion Baht)
The Bank
2008
The Quistanding Debt Transferred Assets Loss on
Before After Debt
Types of Restructuring Cases  Restructuring  Restructuring Types FairValue Restructuring
Transfers of assets 19 242 - Cash, land, 157 &5
premises
and investments
Changes of repayment conditions 694 12,298 12,298 - - 2,653
Debt restructuring in various forms 38 1,304 847 Cash, land, 458 245
premises
_ . _ and investments _ _
Total 51 13,844 13,145 615 2983
(Million Baht)
The Bank
2007
The Quistanding Debt Transferred Assets Loss on
Before After Debt
Types of Restructuring Cases Restucturing  Restructuring Types Fair Valye  Restructuring
Transfers of assets 78 697 - Cash, tand, 374 323
premises
and investments
Changes of repayment conditions 536 5,628 5,629 - - 828
Debt restructuring in various forms 16 349 298 Cash, land, 51 56
premises
S — - and investments _ _
Total <530 6,674 5927 425 1207

The Bank and its subsidiaries measure the expected recoverable amounts of loans restructured by changing repayment

conditions by using the present value of future cash flows discounted by the market rate.
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The terms of debt restructuring agreements with debts which were restructured by changing the repayment conditions
and restructured in various other ways and which resulted in losses on debt restructuring during the years ended 31

December 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2008 2007
The Outstanding Debt The Outstanding Debt
Terms of debt Before Afer End of Before After End of
Less than 5 years 527 6,322 5,876 5,866 468 4,326 4,223 3,749
5to 10 years 98 3,955 3,944 3,938 54 1,511 1,461 1,406
Over 10 years 115 3,338 3338 3,289 81 _603 374 _528
Total 140 13,615 13,158 13,093 603 6.440 6,258 5,683
{Million Baht)
The Bank
2008 2007
The Qutstanding Debt The Quistanding Debt
Terms of debt Before After End of Before After End of
Less than 5 years 522 6,314 5,868 5,865 430 4,101 4,061 3,680
5to 10 years 96 3,952 3,941 3,935 49 1,344 1,334 1,308
Over 10 years 114 3,336 3,336 3,287 13 _532 _532 _521
Total 132 13,602 13,145 13,087 32 5971 1927 3509

The Bank and its subsidiaries recognized interest income from debt restructuring for the years ended 31 December 2008

and 2007 as follows:

(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 516 678 513 625

69




KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Bank had commitments to extend additional loans to these borrowers as follows:

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses

{(Million Baht)
Consolidated and The Bank
2008 2007
181 237

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Bank and its subsidiaries had outstanding balances on debtors which were

restructured during the years as follows:

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses
Debt restructuring contracts that incurred no losses

Total

Consolidated
2008 2007
13,093 5,571
21272 13922
40,365 19,493

(Million Baht)
The Bank
2008 2007
5,510
13910
19.420

13,088
27,019
40,107

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Bank and its subsidiaries had outstanding balances relating to all restructured

debtors which had been performing in accordance with debt restructuring agreements as follows:

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses
Debit restructuring contracts that incurred no losses

Total

Consolidated
2008 2007
17,585 12,196
37,734 28441
33319 40,637
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{Million Baht)

The Bank
2008 2007
17,557 11,714
37,687 28,334
33,244 40.048
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n ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the years were as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Transferred from investments in
receivables

Doubtful accounts {reversal)

Bad debts recovered

Bad debts written off

Others

Balance at the end of the year

Balance at the beginning of the year

Transferred from investments in
receivables

Doubtful accounts (reversal)

Bad debts recovered

Bad debts written off

Others

Balance at the end of the year

3,302

Q70

n

3,157

145

Special

Mention Standard  Doubtful  of Loss

85

Special

42

43

Sub-

2,505

(155)

Sub-
Standard
3,242

(731

T

(Million Baht)

Allowances
Established in

Doubtful  Excess of BoT’s

Regulations Total
5,863 8,906 3,556 24,217
- 1 - 1
(3.426) 5.432 2,864 4,582
- 490 - 490
- (4,322) - (4,326)
—_— 1447 _(17n 1430
2437 11.954 6.403 26,394

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
Allowances
Established in
Doubtful  Excess of BoT’s

Doubtful of Loss Regulations Total

3.805 14,130 7327 31,703

- 9 - 9

2,058 6,414 (3,629) 4,294

- 456 456

- (6,548) - (6,548)

- (5.555) {142) (5.697)

5,863 8,206 3,356 24217
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Balance at the beginning of the year
Doubtful accounts {reversal}

Bad debt recovered

Bad debt written off

Others

Balance at the end of the year

Balance at the beginning of the year
Doubtful accounts {reversal}

Bad debt recovered

Bad debt written off

Others

Balance at the end of the year

Pass
3,553
(182)

Pass
3,313
240

Special Sub-

Meation Standard Doubtful

74 2,477

142 (145)

216 2,332
Special Sub-

Mention  Standard

40 3,226

34 {749)
24 2477

(Million Baht)
The Bank
2008
Allowances
Established in

Doubtful Excess of BoT’s

of Loss  Regulations Total
5,847 7,813 2,853 22,617
(3,463) 5224 2,880 4,456
- 490 490
- (4,044) (4,044)
— _L.606 — _L,606
2,384 11,089 2733 25125
{Million Baht)

The Bank

2007
Allowances
Established in

Doubtful Excess of BoT’s

Doubtful  ofloss  Regulations

3,794 10,201 6,138
2,053 5,991 (3,285)
- 456 -

- (4,609) -
—_ (4.226) -_
2,847 —L813 2,853

Total
26,712
4,284
456
{4,609)
(4.226)
22617
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12 REVALUATION ALLOWANCE FOR DEBT RESTRUCTURING

The movements in the revaluation allowance for debt restructuring during the years were as follows:

(Million Baht)
Conselidated The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,635 1,289 1,630 1,259
Increase 3,149 1,068 3,148 1,057
Decrease due to write off - (630) - (630)
Change of classification 3) (5) - -
Amortization to interest income {168) (168) (166) {137)
Others (1.233) — 81 (1,234) _ 81
Balance at the end of the year 3378 1,635 3378 1,630
13 PROPERTIES FORECLOSED
Properties forectosed as of 31 Decernber 2008 and 2007 consisted of :
(Million Baht)
Coensolidated
| 2008
Beginning Ending
Type of Foreclosed Properties Balance Addition Disposal Balance
1. Assets acquired from debt repayment
1.1 Immovable assets 16,682 3,499 (4,655) 15,526
1.2 Movable assets 28 _ _ —28
Total 16,710 3,499 (4,655) 15,554

2. Others — 633 251 (309 381

Total Foreclosed Properties 17,343 3,756 (4,964) 16,135

Less Allowances for impairment {1,978} {458) _693 (1,743)

Total Foreclosed Properties — net 15,365 3,298 {4,271} 14,392
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£

(Million Bzht)

nsoli

2007

Beginning Ending

1. Assets acquired from debt repayment
1.1 Immovable assets 18,021 4,549 (5,888) 16,682
1.2 Movable assets 28 - - — 28
Total 18,049 4,549 (5,888) 16,710
2. Others — 679 28 (4 633
Total Foreclosed Properties 18,728 4,577 (5,962) 17,343
Less Allowances for impairment (2,232) _{695) _ 949 (1.978)
Total Foreclosed Properties — net 16,496 3,882 (5,013 15,365

(Million Baht)
The Bank
2008

Beginning Ending
Tynpe of Foreclosed Properties Balance Addition Disposal Balance

1. Assets acquired from debt repayment
1.1 Immovable assets 12,627 3,279 (3,353) 12,553
1.2 Movable assets __28 _ L 28
Total 12,655 3,279 (3,353) 12,581
2. Others __65 —3 33 -3
Total Foreclosed Properties 12,720 3,282 (3,386) 12,616
Less Allowances for impairment (1,468) (389) _470 (1,387}
Total Foreclosed Properties - net 11,252 2,893 2,916) 11,229
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{(Million Baht}
The Bank
2007

innin Ending

1. Assets acquired from debt repayment
1.1 Immovable assets 13,301 3872 {4,546) 12,627
1.2 Movable assets 28 _- —_ 28
Total 13,329 3872 (4,546) 12,655
2. Others 106 2 (64 65
Total Foreclosed Properties 13,435 3,895 (4,610) 12,720
Less Allowances for impairment (1,796) _(429) 157 {1.468)
Total Foreclosed Properties - net 11,639 3,466 {1,853) 11,252

Transfer of Non-Performing Assets to Bangkok Commercial Asset Management Co., Ltd. (BAM)

On 9 October 2006, the Bank entered into an agreement with Bangkok Commercial Asset Management Co., Ltd.
{BAM) for the transfer of non-performing assets (NPA), as of 30 November 2006. The transfer price would be
prorated by the appraised value of each property varied by liquidity condition of the asset. This is in compliance
with Bank of Thailand Directive, Re: “Requirements and Operational Procedures for Asset Management Companies,”
dated 27 November 2000, and the Royal Decree on Asset Management Companies, B.E. 2541, The Bank is
required to complete the classification of NPA within 120 days from the agreement-signing date. BAM will
examine the assets before confirming to the Bank the purchase price on individual assets within 30 days from the
date of asset classification made by the Bank. The Bank and BAM will enter into a sell and purchase agreement
within 30 days from the signing date of a NPA transfer agreement. The Bank will then submit relevant ownership
documents to BAM within 30 days from the signing date of the NPA transfer agreement. Payment for NPA will
be in the form of non-interest bearing promissory notes. The term of the promissory notes will depend upon the
liquidity of NPA being transferred.

As of 31 December 2008, the Bank has transferred NPA under the terms stated above and received non-interest
bearing promissory notes in the amount of Baht 305 million. The stated non-interest bearing promissory notes are

accounted for using the amortized cost method.
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CLASSIFIED ASSETS

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, assets of the Bank and its subsidiaries, classified as investments, loans and

accrued interest receivable (including financial institutions), properties foreclosed and other assets, were categorized

by quality in compliance with the BoT"s regulations, taking into account analyses of each loan and appraisal of the

financial standing of each borrower, as follows:

Investments
Pass -
Special Mention -
Sub-Standard -
Doubtful -
Doubtful of Loss 4,132
Total 4,132
Investments
Pass -
Special Mention -
Sub-Standard -
Doubtful -
Doubtful of Loss 4712
Total 4,712

Loans and Accrued

n ivabl
1,020,363 - -
40,992 - -
5,891 - -
5,790 - -
22177 985 386
1095213 285 386
Consolidated
2007
Loans and Accrued  Properties
Interest Receivables  Foreclosed Other Assets
739,772 . -
10,924 - .
5,419 - -
11,282 - -
18477 1200 617
185,874 1,200 617
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Consolidated
2008

Properties

{Million Baht)

Foreclosed ~ OtherAssets — Total

1,020,363
40,992
5,891
5,790
—27.880
1100916

(Million Baht)

Total
739,772
10,924
5,419
11,282
25,006
292,403
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Pass

Special Mention
Sub-Standard
Doubtful
Doubtful of Loss

Total

Pass

Special Mention
Sub-Standard
Doubtful
Doubtful of Loss

Total

4,085

Investments

4,672

The Bank
2008
Loans and Accrued  Properties
Interest Receivables  Foreclosed
1,018,897 -
38,582 -
5,464 -
5,523 -
_ 19,784 116
1,088,230 16

The Bank
2007
Loans and Accrued  Properties
Interest Receivables Foreclosed
744,328 -

9,315 -
5,187 -
11,221 -
-15,668 193
285,719 193
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{Million Baht)

Other Assets  Total

1,018,897
38,582
5,464
5523
25,168
L.093,634

{Million Baht)

Total
744,328
9,315
5,187
11,221
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

17 DEPOSITS
Deposits were classified as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 follows:

1. Classified by Type of Deposits

(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Current 47,778 42,507 47,686 42,753
Savings 442,433 391,866 443211 392,206
Term
- Less than ¢ months 315,273 211,269 315,426 211,269
- 6 months and less than 1 year 88,776 66,032 88,775 66,032
- | year and over | year 13,690 72,148 ~13.690 12,148
Total 267,950 183,822 968,788 124,408
2. Classified by Maturity of Contracts
(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Within 1 year 952,240 781,963 953,078 782,549
Over | year _15710 _ 1859 15219 1859
Total 967,950 183822 968,788 184,408
3. Classified by Currencies and Residency of Depositors
{Million Baht)
Consolidated
2008 2007
Baht 933,042 19,814 952,856 754,724 19,968 774,692
US Dollars 12,266 1,202 13,468 8,003 195 8,198
Other currencies _ 1369 237 __L.g26 — 778 154 ——932
Total 246,677 21273 967,950 263505 20317 183,822
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I

Baht
US Dollars
Other currencies

Total

Domestic
933,880
12,266
— 1369
947,515

19,814
1,202

The.Bank
Total Domestic
953,694 755,310
13,468 8,003
1626 778
268,788 764,001

18 INTERBANK AND MONEY MARKET ITEMS (LIABILITIES)

Interbank and money market items (liabilities) as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of :

1. Domestic
The BeT and FIDF
Commercial banks
Other banks
Finance, securities and
credit foncier companies
Other financial institutions
Total Domestic
2. Foreign
US Dollars
Yen
Other currencies
Total Foreign
Total Domestic and Foreign

93
3,692
143

6,023

2,151
1,004

3,954

2,973
49

775

86

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
Total Atcall
3,066 -
3,741 1,628
143 276
6,798 2,250
1.209 _922
14,957 3076
2,151 11
1,004 27
_199 152
3954 _190
18911 5,266

2007
Foreign Totual
19,968 775,278
195 8,198
154 932
20317 184,408
(Million Baht}
2007
Term Total
7475 7,475
1 1,629
- 276
26 2,276
1417 2,339
8,919 13,995
- 11
- 27
_- _1.52
.._-u_- -———12Q
8919 14,185
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

(Million Baht)
The Bank
2008 2007
Ataill Term Total At call Term Total
1. Domestic
The BoT and FIDF 93 2,973 3,066 - 7,475 7,475
Commercial banks 3,775 1 3,176 1,628 1 1,629
Other banks 143 - 143 276 - 276
Finance, securities and
credit foncier companies 6,540 775 7,315 2,386 25 2411
QOther financial institutions _LI116 93 1,209 923 1417 _2.340
Total Domestic 11,667 3.842 15,509 2213 8918 14131
2. Foreign
US Dollars 2,151 - 2,151 11 - 1
Yen 1,004 - 1,004 27 - 27
Other currencies 199 _— __ 799 152 - —152
Total Foreign 3954 —_ 35954 190 —_ __190
Total Domestic and Foreign 15,621 3842 19,463 5403 8918 14,321
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19 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

The Bank issued short-term unsubordinated debentures in name certificates without security and not convertible,
without debenture holder representative in Thai Baht currency not exceeding Baht 50,000 million (excluding other
borrowings), with a maturity of no more than 270 days in order to allow the Bank better flexibility and a wider variety
of administration of its funding structure and to expand the investment alternatives to the public and/or depositors of

the Bank.

Short-term botrowings as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of :

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2008 2007
1/2548 - - - 63-84 3.30-3.40 1,523
2/2548 22-132 3,55-3.85 9,829 1-2 3.00 4,255
1/2549 5-139 3.45-3.85 8,033 - - -
2/2549 8-194 3.45-3.85 9,248 2-71 3.00-3.35 8,300
Other borrowings 3-363 0.50-4.50 10,526 1-278 0.50-3.60 24,997
Total 97,636 39,075
(Million Baht)
The Bank
2008 2007
1/2548 - - - 63-84 3.30-3.40 1,523
2/2548 22-132 3.35-3.85 9,829 1-2 3.00 4,255
1/2549 5-139 3.45-3.85 8,033 - - -
22549 8-194 3.45-3.85 9,248 2-71 3.00-3.35 8,300
Other borrowings 3-363 0.50-4.50 70,344 1-278 0.50-3.60 24,600
Total 97,454 38,678
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20

LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Long-term borrowings as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of :

(Million Baht)
lidat B
2008 ‘ 2007

Other borrowings 4,561 - 4,561 301 - 301
Subordinated Debentures - 6,962 6,962 - 6,724 6,724
Subordinated Debentures

KASIKORNBANK PCL No.3 12,000 - 12,000 12,000 - 12,000
Subordinated Debentures

KASIKORNBANK PCL

NQO.1/2008 12,000 - 17,000 - - -
Total 33,561 6,962 40,523 12,301 6,724 19,025

SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES
The Board of Directors in its meeting on 25 July 1996 approved the issuance of US$ 200 million of unsecured
subordinated debentures, having a face value of US$ 100,000 each, with a twenty-year maturity offered at a price of

US$ 98,997 each on 21 August 1996 and carrying an 8.25 percent coupon rate payable semi-annually.

SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES NO. 3

The Board of Directors in its meeting on 25 September 2003 approved the issuance of these Subordinated Debentures
in name certificate without security and not convertible, having debenture holder representative in Thai Baht currency
not exceeding Bahi 12,000 million, with a maturity of no more than 10 years in order to raise long-term funding at a
reasonable cost, to efficiently manage the interest rate and liquidity risks, as well as to strengthen the status of the
Banks tier two capital funds. On 16 October 2003, the Bank issued the Subordinated Debentures of
KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED No.3 Due A.D. 2013 in the amount of Baht 12,000 million, with
a ten-year maturity. In accordance with certain terms and conditions and with the approval of the Bank of Thailand,
the Bank may redeem the debentures before maturity as follows: (1) on the fifth anniversary of the issue date or any
subsequent interest payment date afier the fifth anniversary of the issue date; or {2) if the Bank can demonstrate that
interest payments under the Debentures are no longer, or will no longer be, deductible as an expense for income tax
purposes; or (3) in any other case as may be later stipulated by the Bank of Thailand. The debentures bear interest at
the fixed interest rate for the first five years of 3,75 % per annum and the fixed interest rate for the second five years of

4.25 % per annum. Interest is payable quarterly.
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KBank Subordinated Debenture No.1/2008

The Board of Directors in its meeting on 25 September 2008 approved the issuance of these Unsecured Subordinated
Debentures in name certificate and having debenture holder representatives in Thai Baht currency not exceeding Baht
17,000 million with a maturity of 10 years in order to raise long-term funding at a reasonable cost, to efficiently
manage the interest rate and liquidity risks, as well as to strengthen the status of the Banks tier two capital funds. On
19 December 2008, the Bank issued the Subordinated Debentures of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY
LIMTED No.1/2008 Due A.D. 2018 in the amount of Baht 17,000 million, with a ten-year maturity, In accordance
with certain terms and conditions and with the approval of the Bank of Thailand, the Bank may redeem the debentures
before maturity as follows: (1) Before the fifth anniversary of the issue date, under a notice by the Bank of Thailand
that (1.1) The debenture will no longer be classified as a financial instrument, which can be counted as Tier two capital
fund of the Bank; or (1.2) The debenture can be counted as Tier two capital fund, at the proportion less than 50 percent
of Tier one capital fnd of the Bank; or (2) on the fifth anniversary of the issue date or any subsequent interest
payment date after the fifth anniversary of the issue date; or (3) The Bank is under court order for complete
receivership, or for business rehabilitation or for bankruptcy under the Bankruptey Act or other applicable laws or
under the Bank’s tiquidation process; or (4) if the Bank can demonstrate that interest payments under the Debentures
are no longer, or will no longer be, deductible as an expense for income tax purposes; or (5} in any other cases as may
be later stipulated by the Bank of Thailand. The debentures bear interest at the fixed interest rate for the first three
years of 5.25 % per annum, the fixed interest rate for the second four years of 5.75 % per annum and the fixed interest

rate for the third three years of 6.50 % per annum, Interest is payable quarterly.

90



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 3t DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

21

Warrants issued to Bank employees (except directors) consisted of:

1.
2,
3
4.

5

6.

7.
8.
9.
10.

WARRANTS

A resolution was passed by the Exiraordinary Meeting of Shareholders held on 11 August 1999 authorizing (i) the

issuance and offering for sale of 50,000,000 units of warrants for ordinary shares of the Bank to the Bank’s employees,

except for directors, under a three-year scheme and (ii) allocating 50,000,000 new ordinary shares from the increase of

the authorized share capital, with a par value of Baht 10 each, to support the exercise of the warrants for ordinary

shares of the Bank to be issued and offered for sale to Bank employees, except for directors, under the above scheme.

Details of Warrants Phase 1
Offering date 1 -31 August 2000
Maturity five-year and four-month
Offering price zero Baht
Right to exercise 1 warrant : 1 ordinary share

. Exercise price 30 Baht

Exercise date June and December

(every last business day)

Term of exercise period 28 Dec 2001 — 30 Dec 2005
Total offered 18,500,000 units
Total allocated 15,612,600 units
Total allocated and accepted 15,586,300 units

vemn ing th

Beginning balance as of 1 January 2007

Less Exercised
Less Exercise right terminated by employee’s retirement

Less Exercise right expired

Ending balance as of 31 December 2007
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Phase 2
7 — 28 December 2001
five-year and one-day
zero Baht
1 warrant : 1 ordinary share
30 Baht

June and December

30 Dec 2002 - 29 Dec 2006
5,000,000 units
3,962,500 units
3,885,300 units

Number of Unit
Phase3
6,869,580

(6,652,068)
(60,176)
_(157.336)

Phase 3
2 - 30 December 2002
five-year
zero Baht
1 warrant : 1 ordinary share
27.82 Baht
March, June,
September and December
30 Dec 2003 — 30 Dec 2007
26,500,000 units
26,490,560 units

26,048,380 units



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

22

SHARE CAPITAL AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the consolidated and the Bank only basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2008 was based on profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of Baht 15,333 million and Baht 14,807 million,
respectively (2007: Baht 15,005 million and Baht 15,004 million, respectively) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2008 of 2,393,122,000 shares (2007: 2,387,438,198
shares).

The calculation of the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended 31 December
2008 and 2007 is as follows:
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Issued ordinary shares as of 1 January 2007

Add:

- The Bank registered the change in its
paid-up share capital as a result of the
increases in paid-up capital from the
exercise of warrants for ordinary shares
which were issued and offered for sale
to Bank employees (except for directors)

2007

L} January :
11 April :

1 July:

10 October

Issued ordinary shares
as of 31 December 2007

Issued ordinary shares as of 1 January 2008

Add:

- The Bank registered the change in its
paid-up share capital as a result of the
increases in paid-up capital from the
exercise of warrants for ordinary shares
which were issued and offered for sale
to Bank employees {except for direclors)

2008

1} January :

[ssued ordinary shares

as of 3t December 2008

Share capital

Number Amount

of (Million

shares Baht}
2,382,147,733 23,821
4,460,392 45
1,004,336 10
356,852 4
233,004 2

2.388,202,317 23,882
2,388,202,317 23,882

2.393.260.193 23932
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Consolidated and The Bank

Number of the weighted average
number of ordinary shares
{Shares)

For the years
Ended 3| December
2008 2007
2,382,147,733

4,338,189

729,175

170,116

— 52983

2,387,438 198
2,388,202,317
— 4919683
2.393,122.000
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CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The ratios of capital to assets {Capital Adequacy Ratio) as of 31 December 2008 were calculated from the financial

statements of the Bank (2007: calculated from the financial statements of the Bank and include the risk assets of the

Bank’s asset management company subsidiary) as follows:

2008*
Tier 1 Capital
Issued and fully paid up share capital, premiums on
share capitat 42,036
Legal reserves 2,920
Net income afier appropriation 48,608
Total Tier 1 Capital 93564
Tier 2 Capital
Surplus on land revaluation 4,587
Surplus on premises revaluation 2,191
Surplus on marketable equity securities revaluation 91
Provision for normal assets 9,124
Subordinated debentures 33,519
Total Tier 2 Capital 49,512
Total Capital Requirerments 143,076

(Million Baht)
2007

41,895

2,160

The BoT’s regulations requires that banks registered in Thailand maintain a ratio of capital funds to assets and

contingencies of not less than 8.5% and that tier-1 capital must not be less than 4.25% of such assets and

contingencies. Capital adequacy ratios maintained by the Bank were as follows:

2008*
Total Capital Requirements 15.05
Tier-1 Capital 9.84

2007
14.62

10.74

*Reported in compliance with the Bank of Thailand directive number Sor Nor Sor 87/2551, dated 27 November 2008,

titled "Supervision criteria for capital requirements of commercial banks". As of December 2008, BOT requires

commercial bank to report its Capital adequacy ratio in compliance with BASEL I Accord, which the Bank has

chosen to adopt the Standardized Approach.
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25

26

RESERVES

Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 requires that the Bank shall allocate not less than 5 percent of its
annual net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a reserve account (“legal reserve”), until this account
reaches an amouni not less than 10% of the registered authorized capital. In addition, The provisions of the Civil and
Commercial Code of Thailand requires that subsidiary companies shall allocate not less 5 percent of its annual net
profit each time a dividend is declared, to a reserve account (“legal reserve”) until the reserve reaches 10 percent of

authorized share capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

DIVIDEND PAYMENTS

On 28 August 2008, the Board of Directors Meeting of the Bank approved to pay dividends from the six-month
operating results of 2008 at the rate of Baht 0.50 per share, totaling Baht 1,197 million, which was paid on 25

September 2008.

On 3 April 2008, the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank approved to pay dividends from the operating
results of 2007 at the rate of Baht 2.00 per share, totaling Baht 4,784 million, in which Baht 1,194 million was paid on
27 September 2007 and the remaining balance of Baht 3,590 million was paid on 28 April 2008,

On 30 August 2007, the Board of Directors Meeting of the Bank approved to pay dividends from the six-month
operating results of 2007 at the rate of Baht 0.50 per share, totaling Baht 1,194 million, which was paid on 27
September 2007,

On 5 April 2007, the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank approved to pay dividends from the operating
results of 2006 at the rate of Baht 1,75 per share, totaling Bahi 4,175 million, in which Baht 1,191 million was paid on
27 September 2006 and the remaining balance of Baht 2,984 million was paid on 3¢ April 2007.

BAD DEBT AND DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS (REVERSAL)
Bad debt and doubtful accounts (reversal) for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of:

{Million Baht)
lidate The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
General customers 4,584 4,294 4,457 4,284
Financial institutions 8 )] 8 {4
Total 4,592 4,290 4,465 4.280
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28

LOSS ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING

Loss on debt restructuring for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of:

Consolidated
2008 2007

Net present value of cash flows lower

than investments in receivables (reversal

for non-performing restructured loans) 3,149 1,068
Transferred assets lower

than investments in receivables _92 _529

Total 3241 1597

ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL
Assets pledged as collateral as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of:

Deposits
Govemnment bonds
State enterprisc bonds
Foreign bonds

Total

{Million
The Bank

2008

3,148

84

3,232
(Million
Consolidated and The Bank
2008 2007
2,391 33
- 3,147
2,781 3,155
—_ _137
5172 6472

Baht)

2007

1,057

323

Baht)

The Bank has pledged these assets as collateral for derivatives, for electricity consumption, for court collateral and for

repurchase agreements.
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29 CONTINGENCIES
Contingencies as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of:

Consolidated
2008
Baht Foreign Currencies Total Baht

Avals on bills 1,343 - 1,343 925
Letters of indemnity-

borrowing 2 219 22] -
Other guarantees 75,458 8,022 83,480 65,438
Letters of credit 1,084 16,081 17,165 1,277
Exchange rate agreements

Purchase agreements 51,543 318,468 370,011 38,162

Sale agreements 40,088 340,229 380,317 8,057
Interest raie agreements

Purchase agreements 567,180 66,646 633,826 318,979

Sale agreements 566,726 66,646 633,372 318,579
Credit Default Swap 100 874 974 -
Unused credit line of

overdraft 140,491 - 140,491 126,933
Others 4,891 _8.820 13,711 — 1456

Total L.448.906 826,005 2274911 879,206
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(Mmil

Foreign Currencies

217
7,157
19,220

299,976
364,414

67,813

84,325
1,520

6,041

ion Baht)}

Total
925

217
72,595
20,497

338,138
372,471

186,792
402,904
1,520

126,933
— 1497
L730.489
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§

(Millicn Baht)
The Bank
2008 2007

Avals on bills 1,343 - 1,343 925 - 925
Letters of indemnity-

botrowing 2 219 221 - 217 217
Other guarantees 75,458 8,022 83,480 65,341 6,941 72,282
Letters of credit 1,084 16,081 17,165 1,277 19,220 20,497
Exchange rate agreements

Purchase agreements 51,543 318,468 370,011 38,162 299,976 338,138

Sale agreements 40,088 340,229 380,317 8,057 364,414 372471
Interest rate agreements

Purchase agreements 567,180 66,646 633,826 318,979 67,813 386,792

Sale agreements 566,726 66,646 633,372 318,579 84325 402,904
Credit Default Swap 100 874 974 - 1,520 1,520
Unused credit line of

overdraft 140,491 - 140,491 126,933 - 126,933
Others __4616 —BB20 _ 13436 — 1438 6041 __ 7479

Total 1448631 826,005 2.274.636 879,691 250,467 1730158

Under normal business operations, the Bank is a defendant in various litigation against the Bank, These include cases of
wrongful acts brought against the Bank, with total claims amounting to Baht 9,937 million and Baht 9,201 million as of
31 December 2008 and 2007, respectively. The Management believes that any liability resulting from this litigation will not

be material to the Bank’s financial position or on the results of its operations.
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

1. Loans and contingencies made to officers” and to business entities where the Bank and its subsidiaries, their

directors or ofﬁcemm, hold 10% or more of their paid-up capital are summarized as follows:

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2008 2007
End of the Year End of the Year
Loans
I. Officers’ 17 18
2. Business entitics where the Bank and subsidiaries,
their directors or ofﬁcersm, hold 10% or more
of the paid - up capitalm 785 820
Total 802 838
Contingencies
1. Officers” - -
2. Business entities where the Bank and subsidiaries,
their directors or oﬁicersm, hold 10% or more
of the paid - up capital 2 4
Total 22 A

“ For the year ended 31 December 2008, officers include directors, managers, and those who hold management
positions (department head level and above) in the Financial Accounting Management and Financial Planning
Departments (For the year ended 31 December 2007, officers include all executive officers).

e}

Transactions occurring between the Bank and related business entities are charged at market price as with other

normal business.

99



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

{Million Baht)
The Bank
2008 2007
nd of the Y End of the Year
Loans
I. Officers” 17 18
2. Business entities where the Bank,
its directors or ofﬁcersm,hold 10% or more
of the paid - up capital® 39,008 30,226
Total 39,025 30244
Conti .
1. Officers’ - -
2. Business catitics where the Bank,
its directors or officers"”, hold 10% or more
of the paid - up capital 36 __ 36
Total __36 1]

“ For the period ended 31 December 2008, officers include directors, managers, and those who hold management

positions (department head level and above) in the Financial Accounting Management and Financial Planning
Departments (For the year ended 31 December 2007, officers include all executive officers).
@ Transactions occurring between the Bank and related business entities are charged at market price as with other

normal business.
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2. Related Party

Relationships between the Bank and other business entities where control exists consisted of:

Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Kasikorn Research Center Co., Ltd.

Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Kasikom Securities Public Co., Ltd.

Kasikom Factoring Co., Ltd.

Kasikom Leasing Co., Ltd.

Progress Land and Buildings Co., Ltd.

KHAO KLA Venture Capital
Management Co., Ltd.*

K-SME Venture Capital Co., Ltd

Progress Gunpai Co., Ltd.

Progress Plus Co., Ltd.

Progress Facilities Management Co., Lid.

Progress Management Co., Ltd.
Progress Software Co,, Ltd.
Progress Storage Co., Ltd.
Progress Service Sepport Co., Ltd.
Progress Service Co., Ltd.
Progress HR Co., Ltd.

Progress Appraisal Co., Ltd.
Progress Collection Co., Lid.

Type of

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

% Shareholding

2008
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

99.99%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

Relationski Dircctly and Indirecd
31 December 31 December

2007
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

99.99%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share

Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share

Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share

Asset Management
Service
Mutual Fund
Management
Securities Business
Lending
Lending
Property Development
Venture Capital
Management
Venture Capital
Service
Service
Service
Service
Service
Service
Service
Service
Service
Service

Service

* Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd. directly and indirectly holds 100% shares in KHAO KLA Venture Capital Management Co., Ltd.
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3. Significant transactions occurring between the Bank and related parties are summarized as follows:
(Million Baht)
The Bank
31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Loans
Subsidiary Companies
- Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Beginning balance . 3,745 6,550
Deduction (3.215) (2.805)
Ending balance 530 -t 145
Ac in ivabl
Subsidiary Companies
- Phethai Asset Management Co., Lid. 2 10
Deposits
Subsidiary Companies
- Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd. 26 1n
(Million Baht)
The Bank
For the Years Ended 31 December
2008 2007
Interest income
Subsidiary Companics
- Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd. 36 178

Loans to Phethai Asset Management Company Limited are 3-month bills with interest rates equal to the interest rate
of a 3-month fixed deposit. Deposits were pledged as collateral. As of 31 December 2008 and 2007 the pledged

deposits were Baht 18 million and Baht 19 million, respectively.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Bank has provided an allowance for doubtful accounts for Phethai Asset
Management Company Limited, classified as normal loans, amounting to Baht 5 million and Baht 38 million,
respectively.

Income and expenses shared between the Bank and Phethai Asset Management Company Limited are charged at cost,

except for fee income, which is charged at market price.

The Bank has provided an allowance for doubtful accounts for related business entities using the same method as for

general customers and in accordance with the BoT’s regulations.
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4, Additional transactions occurring between the Bank and related business entities, which are charged at market price as
with other normal business or the price as stipulated in the agreement, are as follows:

4.1 Assets, liabilities and contingencies between the Bank, its subsidiary and associated companies as of 31 December

2008 and 2007 are summarized as follows:

{Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Loans
Subsidiary Companies
- Kasikorn Leasing Co., Ltd. - - 33,709 21,836
- Kasikorn Factoring Co., Ltd. - - 3,985 3,825
Other Assets
Subsidiary Companies
- Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd. - - 39 13
- Kasikom Leasing Co., Ltd. - - 3 15
Deposits
Subsidiary Companies
- Progress Gunpai Co., Ltd. - 164 214 164
- Kasikorn Leasing Co., Ltd. - - 187 156
- Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd. - - 142 84
- Kasikom Factoring Co., Ltd. - - 11 162
- Progress Software Co., Ltd. - 62 73 62
- Progress Appraisal Co., Ltd. - 21 65 21
- K-SME Venture Capital Co., Ltd - - 58 100
- Progress Plus Co., Lid. - 42 53 42
- Progress Service Support Co., Ltd. - 5 48 5
- Kasikorn Research Center Co., Ltd. - - 37 30
- Progress HR Co., Ltd. - 19 34 19
- Progress Services Co., Lid. - 26 32 26
- Progress Management Co., Lid. - 23 27 23
- Progress Land and Buildings Co., Ltd. - - 27 19
- Progress Facilities Management Co., Ltd. - 23 25 23
- Progress Storage Co., Ltd. - 15 23 15
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4

(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Deposits
Associated Company
- Processing Center Co., Ltd. 17 17 17 17
n Mon | i
Subsidiary Company
- Kasikorn Securities Public Co., Ltd. - - 518 324
B .
Subsidiary Companies
- Kasikom Asset Management Co., Ltd. - - 615 306
- Kasikorn Leasing Co., Ltd. - - 111 -
Other Liabilit
Subsidiary Companies
- Progress Software Co., Ltd. - 73 161 73
- Progress Plus Co., Ltd. - 47 50 47
- Progress HR Co., Ltd. - - 18 -
- Progress Appraisal Co., Ltd. - 14 14 14
- Kasikom Securities Public Co., Ltd. - - 11 -
- Progress Service Support Co., Ltd. - 23 - 23
Associated Company
- Processing Center Co., Ltd. 1 11 | 11
Contingencies
Subsidiary Companics
- Kasikomn Factoring Co., Ltd. - - 15 10
- Kasikomn Securities Public Co,, Ltd. - - 4 11

Certain subsidiaries and associated companies have entered into 2-year building lease agreements with the Bank.
Rentals are charged at cost plus additional expenses. As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Bank and its related

parties have rental agreements with remaining tenures amounting to Baht 18 miliion and Baht 4 million, respectively.

The Bank and subsidiaries have entered into 5-year car leasing agreements with KASIKORN LEASING CO., LTD.
Such agreements are classified as finance lease agreements, charged at market rates. As at 31 December 2008 and 31
December 2007, the book value of finance lease liabilities, before elimination, amounts to Baht 129 million and nil,

respectively
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42 Revenue and expenses occurring between the Bank, its subsidiary and associated companies for the years ended
31 December 2008 and 2007 are summarized as follows:

{Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Subsidiary Companies
Revenue:
Interest income - - 1,377 994
Dividend income - - 394 830
Fee income - - 430 298
Other income - - 55 67
Expenses:
Interest expenses - - 35 40
Personnel expenses - - 287 174
Other expenses - 1,802 2,226 1,916
Associated Companies
Expenses:
Other expenses 48 58 48 58

The Bank has entered into a staff secondment agreement with Kasikorn Securities Public Company Limited,
commencing from January 2006. The agreement shall be terminated at any time by the Bank giving notice 60 days
prior to the termination date. The Bank is responsible for salaries, welfare and other benefits and any liabilities that

arise or may arise from the actions of the employees.

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Bank incurred expenses amounting to Baht 287 million and Baht

174 million, respectively, presented as personne! expenses in the statements of income.
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4.3 Assets, liabilities and contingencies between the Bank and other business entities in which the directors, key
executive officers and close members of their families have significant influence as of 31 December 2008 and 2007

were summarized as follows:

(Miltion Baht)
Congolidated and The Bank
2008 2007
Loang
= Jutha Maritime Public Co., Ltd. 669 66
- Bangkok Glass Industry Co., Ltd. 300 164
- Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Co., Ltd. 111 357
- Yip In Tsoi & Jacks Ltd. 53 49
- Dole Thailand Co., Ltd. - 393
Deposits
- PTT Public Co., Ltd. 6,304 0
- Serm Suk Public Co., Ltd. 538 162
- Muang Thai Life Assurance Co., Ltd. 469 408
- Muang Thai Insurance Public Co., Ltd 376® e
- Thai British Security Printing Public Co., Ltd. 138 67
- Mitsubishi Eievator Asia Co., Ltd. 87 83
- Bangkok Glass Industry Co., Ltd. 73 33
- Smithithada Co., Ltd. 70 77
- Nithi Thamrong Co,, Ltd. 45 50
- The Deves Insurance Public Co,. Ltd, 22 18
- Infomax System Solutions & Services Co., Ltd. 21 0
- National ITMX Co., Ltd. 19 14
- Sermsuk Beverage Co., Ltd. 16 14
- Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Co., Ltd. 6 18
- Phatra Insurance Public Co., Ltd. o 159

 As of 31 December 2007, the company was not related to the Bank

@ During 2008, Patra Insurance Public Co., Ltd. merged into Muang Thai Insurance Public Co., Ltd.
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Contingencies
- Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Co., Ltd.
- PTT Public Co., Ltd.
- Quality Houses Public Co., Ltd.
- Dole Thailand Co., Ltd.

- Yip In Tsoi & Jacks Lid.

- Thai British Security Printing Public Co., Ltd.

- Samart Telcom Public Co., Ltd.

- Jutha Maritime Public Co,, Ltd.

- Bangkok Glass Industry Co., Lid.
- Internet Thailand Co., Lid.

- Serm Suk Public Co., Ltd.

(Million Baht)
Consolidated and The Bank

2008 2007
1,514 956
401 L0
207 274
150 140
108 47
44 41
30 30

30 -

14 4
7 12

- 20

™ As of 31 December 2007, the company was not related to the Bank,

4.4 Assets, liabilities and contingencies between the Bank and its directors and key executive officers or the Bank’s

employees who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Bank

are summarized as follows:

Deposits

(Million Baht)
Consolidated and The Bank

2008 2007
21 32
1,370 1,345
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N

32

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The Bank and its subsidiary companies have not paid other benefits 10 directors and executives except for the benefits

that are normally paid such as directors' fee, directors’ bonus (if any) and income tax, executives’ salary and bonus

(if any).

COMMITMENTS

Capital Commitments

Contracted but not provided for
Authorized but not contracted for

Total

Contracted but not provided for
Authorized but not contracted for

Total

Long-Term Lease Agreements

1. Lease Agreements

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2008 2007
5,884 4,194
] — 89
5962 4283
(Million Baht)
The Bank
2008 2007
5,880 4,186
_ 85 —89
5965 4275

The Bank and its subsidiary companies have entered into land/building lease agreements for branch offices and vehicle

lease agreements. The Bank and its subsidiary companies were committed to pay future rentals, which are summarized

as follows:

T men

Land/building lease agreements
Vehicle lease agreements
Others

Total

Remaining Period

1 January 2009 — 12 February 2033
1 January 2009 — 22 December 2013
i January 2009 - 31 March 2013
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{Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank
2008 2008
620 602
221 674
42 —_—
883 1276
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3

(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Baok
Land/building lease agreements | January 2008 — 4 August 2031 698 658
Vehicle lease agreements 1 January 2008 — 2 December 2012 254 533
Others 1 January 2008 — 29 February 2012 _1s —_—
Total 968 L1891

2. Service Agreement

On 12 November 2002, the Bank entered into an Information Technology Service Agreement with [BM Thailand Co.,
Ltd., under which the service will be provided until 31 December 2012; in which the Bank has increased the scope of
such agreement in October 2008. As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Bank is committed to pay total service fees
of Baht 4,264 million and Baht 2,622 million respectively.

ENACTED LAWS DURING THE YEAR
Financial Institution Businesses Act 2008 and Deposit Protection Act 2008

On 3 August 2008, the Financial Institution Businesses Act 2008 and the related notifications, circulars and notices as

issued by the Bank of Thailand become effective, as announced in the Government Gazette on 5 February 2008.

On 11 August 2008, the Deposit Protection Act 2008 and the related notifications, circulars and notices as issued by

the Bank of Thailand become effective, as announced in the Government Gazette on 13 February 2008.

As of 31 December 2008, compliance to such laws by the Bank and its subsidiaries have no material impact on the

consolidated and the Bank only financial statements.
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THE FINANCIAL POSITIONS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS DIFFERENTIATED BY DOMESTIC

AND FOREIGN BUSINESS

The financial positions and results of operations differentiated by domestic and foreign business can be summanzed

as follows:

|, Financial Position Classified by T ¢ Busi

Total assets

Interbank and money market items - net (assets)
Investments - net

Loans

Deposits

Interbank and money market items {liabilities)
Borrowings

Contingencies

Total assets

Interbank and money market items - net (assets)
Investments — net

Loans

Depasits

Interbark and money market items (liabilities)
Borrowings

Contingencies

Domestic
Business
1,295,323
196,338
99,058
903,680
967,939
18,911
131,197
2,293,303

Domestic

Business
985,316
48,640
74,607
762,044
783,811
14,185
51,376
1,742,477

110

Foreign
Business
9,605
2,396
3,887

328

11
6,962
23,540

Foreign
Business
31,540
10,084
20,919

461
11
6,724
15,026

Consclidated

31 December 2008

Total
1,304,928
198,734
102,945
904,008
967,950
18,911
138,159
2,316,843

Consolidated

Eliminated

(Million Baht)

Transactions  Total

{1,374

(41,932)

31 December 2007

Eliminated

1,303,554
198,734
102,945
904,008
967,950

18,911
138,159
2,274911

(Million Baht)

Total  Transactions ~  Total

1,016,856
58,724
95,526
762,505
783,822
14,185
58,100

1,757,503

(22,338)

(27,014)

994,518
58,724
95,526

762,505

783,822
14,185
58,100

1,730,489
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(Million Baht)

The Bank
31 December 2008

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business Total Transactions Total
Total assets 1,295,321 9,605 1,304,926 (1,374) 1,303,552
Interbank and money market items-net (assets) 196,746 2,396 199,142 - 199,142
Investments — net 107,931 3,887 i11,818 - 111,818
Loans 900,259 328 900,587 - 900,587
Deposits 968,777 1 968,788 - 968,788
Interbank and money market items (liabilities) 19,463 - 19,463 - 19,463
Borrowings 131,015 6,962 137,977 - 137,977
Contingencics 2,293,028 23,540 2,316,568 (41,932) 2,274,636

(Million Baht)
The Bank
31 December 2007

Domestic Foreign Eliminated
Total assets 984,547 31,540 1,016,487 (22,338) 994,149
Interbank and money market items-net (assets) 48,597 10,084 58,681 - 58,681
Investments - net 82,881 20,919 103,800 - 103,800
Loans 760,844 461 761,305 - 761,305
Deposits 784,397 11 784,408 - 784,408
Interbank and money market items (liabilities) 14,321 - 14,321 - 14,321
Borrowings 50,979 6,724 57,703 - 57,703
Contingencies 1,742,146 15,026 1,757,172 (27,014) 1,730,158
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2. Results of Operations Classified by Types of Business

{Million Baht)
Consolidated
For the Year Ended 31 December 2008
Domestic Foreign Eliminated
Interest and dividend income 59,961 769 60,730 (600) 60,130
Interest expense 17,331 _963 18,294 (600) 17,694
Net income (expense) from interest and dividend 42,630 (194} 42,436 - 42,436
Non-interest income 22,074 573 22,647 - 22,647
Non-interest expense 42,768 138 42,906 - 42,906
Incorne before income tax 21,936 241 22177 _ 2177
{Million Baht)
Consolidated
For 2
Domestic Foreign Eliminated
Interest and dividend income 54,966 1,727 56,693 {1,177 55,516
Interest expense 12,500 1762 19,262 (1177} 18,085
Net income (expense) from interest and dividend 37,466 35) 37,431 - 37441
Non-interest income 18,791 106 18,897 - 18,897
Non-interest expense 24,788 128 34916 - 34,916
Income (loss) before income tax 21,469 _(57) 21,412 - 21412
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Interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Net income (expense) from interest and dividend

Non-interest income
Non-interest cxpense

Income before income tax

Interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Net income {(expense) from interest and dividend

Non-interest incomne
Non-interest expense

Income (loss) before income tax

Domestic

59,539
_ll_m
42,197
20,018
41,126
21,089

(Million Baht)

59,708
12,705
42,003
20,592
41.264
21,331

(Million Baht)

The Bank
n 1 r 2
Foreign Eliminated

769 60,308 {600)
963 18305 (600)
(194} 42,003 -

574 20,592 -
_138 41,264 —_—
242 21,331 _

The Bank
For.the Year Ended 31 December 2007
Foreign Eliminated

Domestic

Business Business  Total

55,293

17,537
37,156

16,626

33.067
21315

113

1,727
L162
(33)
106
—128
57

57,020

19,299
37,721

16,732
33,195
21,258

(1,177
(L177}

Transactions Total

55,843

18,122
Erarr)

16,732
33,195
21238
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one enterprise and a financial liability

or equity instrument of another enterprise.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty or a borrower may default on its contractual obligations and
agreements. Such default may be caused by the counterparty’s inability to pay due to financial encumbrances or

their intention not to abide by the contractual agreements, resulting in a loss to the Bank.

The Bank has implemented credit risk management processes to measure and control credit risk. Through the use
of credit risk rating tools for assessing customers’ credit risk rating, the Bank is capable of granting better quality
loans, In addition, for retail customers, the Bank used credit scoring as a tool to determine an appropriate return
given the risk level of each loan. In addition, the Bank allocates credit concentration to various business sectors

and industries, so as to diversify credit risk as a whole.

In the credit approval process, the Bank considers the customer’s ability to repay and the loan objectives as key
factors in the approval of credit and may obtain sufficient collateral or other securities, where appropriate, as a
means of mitigating the risk of financial losses from default. To maximize the effectiveness of the credit approval
process, credit analysis and approval functions are separated from the units responsible for maintaining customer
relationships. The Bank also has processes for regularly reviewing customers’ credit rating and performance on
all approved transactions. For non-performing loans (NPL), the Bank has closely and continuously monitored,

resolved and/or restructured them to retain maximum benefits for the organization,

For the “loans” item shown in the balance sheet, the Bank's maximum credit loss is the carrying amount of net
loans after deduction of applicable allowance for losses without considering the value of collateral, In addition,

credit tisk may arise from off-balance sheet items or contingencies.
Market risk

Market risk is any risk due to changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates or securities prices that will have an
effect on the Bank's funding costs, investment position or foreign currency position, resulting in possible loss to
the Bank. Market risk for the Bank can be categorized as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and equity
posttion risk.
1. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to any risk that arises from changes in interest rates which may affect the value of the
Bank's financial instruments or may cause volatility in the Bank's earnings or fluctuations in the value of the
Bank's financial assets and liabilities, both in the current reporting period and in future years. Interest rate
risk also arises from the structure and characteristics of the Bank's assets, liabilities and equities. Most of the

Bank's credit is based on the Bank's floating interest rates (MLR, MOR and MRR). Deposit interest rates are
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in line with the announcements made by the Bank. As a result, the interest rate risk faced by the Bank is
generally low. However, the Bank actively manages such risk by adjusting its asset and liability structure in
order to maximize returns under the acceptable risk levels in order to best fit current market conditions and
trends. Management of interest rate risk is under the supervision of the Bank's Asset and Liability
Management Sub-Committee.
An analysis of loans {including financial institutions) at fixed and floating interest rates (MLR, MOR and MRR) as of
31 December 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

{Million Baht)
Conselidated The Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Fixed interest rate 223,862 157,614 225,368 161,426
Floating interest rate —B867.668 629,144 _862,741 624,131
Total Loans (including financial institutions) 1,091,530 186,758 1.088,109 185,557
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¥
The average balances of the interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities of the Bank and its subsidiaries, calculated
by using the average of the beginning and the ending balances, and the average interest and dividend rates for

the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

Z (Million Baht)
Consolidated

i 2008 2007

| Interest and Interest and

' Dividend Dividend

! Average Income/ Average Average Income/  Average

Balance  Expense  Ratg(%)  Balance Expense  Rate (%)

‘ Interest-bearing Financial Assets

| Interbank and money market items 128,763 2,089 1.62 75,107 3,502 466
; Securities purchased under resale agreements 5,350 12 0.22 16,450 338 205
| Investments 101,989 4,115 4.03 101,973 4,650 4.56
‘ Loans _833.257 53,914 6.47 119.856 47,026 653
i “Total L.069,359 60,130 5.62 913,386 55516  6.08
Interest-bearing Liabilities
Deposits 875,886 14,369 1.64 767,363 15,946  2.08
Interbank and money market items 16,548 290 1.75 15,937 203 1.27
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - - - 2,833 5 018
Borrowings 98,129 23035 3.09 51,947 19831 372
Total 290,563 17,694 1.79 238,080 18,085 2.6
(Million Baht)
The Bank
2008 2007
Interest and Interest and
Dividend Dividend
Average Income/ Average Average Income/  Average

Balance Expense Rate (%)  Balance Expense  Rate (%)

Interest-bearing Financial Assets

' Interbank and money market items 114,742 2,087 1.82 70,630 3,501 4,96
Securities purchased under resale agreements 5,350 12 0.22 16,450 338 2.05
Investments 110,520 4,553 4,12 111,159 5,510 496
Loans 830,946 53,056 6.39 117,320 46495 648

Total 1,061,528 59,708 5.62 915,559 35844  6.10
Interest-bearing Liabilities
Deposits 876,598 14,372 1.64 768,190 15957  2.08
Interbank and money market items 16,892 294 1.74 16,203 214 1.32
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - - - 2,833 5 0.18
Borrowings _97.840 _3.039 in _S1.843 _1.946 3.75
Total 991,330 12,703 1.79 839,069 18122 216
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Financial assets and liabilities, classified by maturity of interest repricing, as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 are

shown below:

Financial Assets

Cash

Interbank and money market
Items

Investments

Loans

Accrued interest receivable

Customers' liability under
acceptances

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

inanci fliti

Deposits

Interbank and money market
Items

Liabilities payable on demand

Borrowings

Bank’s liability under
acceptances

Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

On-balance sheet items

Immediate

Less than

Repricing 6 months

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2008
6 months 1 Year Over  Non-interest Stop

tolYcar toSYeas S5Years  Bearing Accrued — Total

- - - - - 27,751 . 27,751
8,466 186,191 - - - 4,132 - 198,789
6,700 26,687 25592 31,212 7,370 5,900 1,194 104,655

624,641 105241 7172 52,843 52,338 2,573 59200 904,008

- - - - - 1,485 - 1,485

- - - - - 492 - 492

: - - : - 4876 : 4876

639,807 318119 32764 84033 59,708 47209 60,394 1,242,056
442984 315675 146,384 15,680 - 47,227 - 967,950
10,446 3,289 569 140 896 3,571 - 18,911

- - - - - 10,883 - 10,883

- 82,900 15227 33,054 6,962 16 - 138,159

- - - - - 492 - 492

. ) . ] . 1151 _ 7.151

433.430 401,864 162,180 48874 1858 69340 —-  L143.546
186,377  (83,745) (129416) 35181 51,850  (22,131) 60,394 __98,510
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{Million Baht)
Consolidated
2007
Immediate Lessthan 6 months 1 Year Over  Non-interest  Stop

inancial
Cash - - - - - 18,051 - 18,051
Interbank and money market
Items 4,952 50,398 62 - - 3,324 - 58,736

Securities purchased under

resale agreements - 10,700 - - - - - 10,700
Investments 18,432 1,633 16,737 312 17,763 12,176 1,469 99,322
Loans 552,810 85,304 1,087 34,624 27,7111 8,945 52,024 762,505
Accrued interest receivable - - - - - 1,263 - 1,263

Customers' liability under

acceptances - - - - - 1,462 - 1,462
Other assets - - - - - 4873 - 4873
Total Financial Assets 576,194 148,035 17,886 65,736 45474 50,094 53493 936912
Financial Liabilities
Deposits 392,692 313,778 33,832 1,839 - 41,681 - 783,822

Interbank and money market

Items 1,677 8,763 600 343 - 2,802 - 14,185
Liabilities payable on demand - - - - - 11,117 - 11,117
Borrowings - 38,198 877 301 18,724 - - 58,100

Bank's liability under

acceptances - - - - - 1,462 - 1,462
Other liabilities - - - - - _3.848 - 5848
Total Financial Liabilities 394369 360,739 35.309 2483 18,724 62910 - 874534
On-balance sheet items 181,825 (212.704) (17,423} 63,253 26,250 (12,816 53493 82,378
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(Million Baht)
The Bank
2008

Immediate Less than 6 months 1 Year Over  Non-interest  Stop

Repricing 6months tol Year 1o Years 3 Years Bearing  Accrued Total
Fi ial A
Cash - - - - - 27,750 - 27,750

Interbank and money market

items 8932 186,156 - - - 4,074 - 199,162
Investments 6,700 26,687 25,592 31,212 7,370 14,727 1,194 113,482
Loans 621,165 109,840 7,932 51,941 52,116 1,593 56,000 900,587
Accrued interest receivable - - - - - 1,454 - 1,454

Customers' liability under

acceptances - - - - - 492 - 492
Other assets - - - . . _3,866 - __ 3866
Total Financial Assets 636797 322,683 33524  B3133 59486 53,936 57194 1.246,793
Deposits 443,761 315,828 146,384 15,680 - 47,135 - 968,788
Interbank and money market

items 11,045 3,241 569 140 896 3,572 - 19,463
Liabilities payable on demand - - - - - 10,883 - 10,883
Borrowings - 82,718 15,227 33,054 6,962 16 - 137,977

Bank’s liability under

acceptances - - - - - 492 - 492
Other liabilities - - - - - _1159 - 71,159
Total Financial Liabilities 454806 401,787 162,180 48,874 _7.858 69257 —= 1144762
On-balance sheet items 181991 (79104) (I28656) 34279  SLER (15300  SL194 10201
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Fi ial A
Cash
Interbank and money market
items
Securities purchased under
resale agreements
Investments
Loans
Accrued interest receivable
Customers' liability under
acceptances
Other assets
Total Financial Assets
nancial Liabili
Deposits
Interbank and money market
items
Liabilities payable on demand
Borrowings
Bank’s liability under
acceptances
Other liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

On-balance sheet items

2. Foreign exchange risk

The Bank
2007
Immediate Lessthan & months 1 Year Over  Non-interest
Repricing émonths 101 Year 105Years 5Years  Bearing
- - - - 18,050
5,142 50,154 - - 3,397
- 10,700 - - -

18,432 1,453 16,737 31,112 17,763 20,867
551,419 89,514 1,359 34,112 27,599 8,945
- - - - 1,246

- R - - 1,462

_ . _ _ 4,174
574993 151,821 18,096 £5.224 45,362 58,141
393,032 313,778 33,832 1,839 41,927
1,810 8,763 600 43 2,805

_ . . - 11,117

- 37,801 877 301 18,724 -

_ . - - 1,462

- - - - 851
394842 360,342 _ 35,309 2483 18,724 63,162
180,151 (208,521) (17.213) 02,741 26,038 (5,021)

(Million Baht)

Stop

Accrued  Total

1,193
48,357

49,550

18,050

58,693

10,700
107,557
761,305

1,246

1,462
—4.]114
963,187

784,408

14,321

11,137

57,703

1,462

874,862
88,325

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that occurs from changes in exchange rates which may affect the value of the Bank's

financial instruments or may cause volatility in the Bank's earnings or fluctuations in the value of the Bank’s assets and

liabilities.
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The Bank engages in foreign exchange related transactions, which may create foréign exchange risk. However, the
Bank believes that such risk is low, as most foreign currency transactions are protected by customers’ underlying
transactions, The Bank's policy is to minimize foreign exchange risk by closing its foreign exchange position on a daily
basis. Management of foreign exchange risk is under the supervision of the Asset and Liability Management Sub-

Committee.

Foreign currency positions in Baht equivalent, as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

(Million Bahi)
Consolidated
2008
Currency
US Dollar Yen Pound Euro Others Jotal

Assets
Cash 523 71 63 512 193 1,364
Interbank and money market

items - net 7,509 123 64 121 729 8,546
Investrnents - net 3,934 - - 2 23 3,959
Loans and accrued interest

recejvables - net 31,822 1,597 77 1,259 324 35,079
Other assets 8310 6,759 — 2,616 ) 17.690

Total assets 52,098 8.550 _206 4,510 1274 06,638
Linbilities
Deposits 13,468 101 284 785 456 15,094
Interbank and money market items 2,607 1,005 - 466 - 4,078
Liability on demand 5,937 118 125 694 308 7,182
Borrowings 6,962 - - - - 6,962
Other liabilities 8852 2316 13 3661 62 19.97¢

Total liabilities 37,826 8,600 _422 _5,612 _826 53,286
Foreign cutrency position of

on-balance items-net J4.272 _(50) 216) {1,102) 448 13,352
Off-balance sheet items-net (15,716) __68 _220 __543 1l (14,874)
(Forward exchange contracts,

cross currency swaps and FX options)
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{Million Baht)
Consolidated
2007
Currency
US Dollar Yen Pound Euro Others Tol
Assets
Cash 607 44 99 402 232 1,384
Interbank and money market
items - net 31,688 5 89 236 889 32,907
Investments - net 20,896 - - 2 23 20,921
Loans and accrued interest
receivables - net 23,047 1,140 86 1,395 255 25,923
Other assets 190 _2 _ 2 25 10 — 229
Total assets —16.428 L191 276 2,060 1.409 81364
Liabili
Deposits 8,196 101 73 572 186 9,128
Interbank and money market items 236 27 - 2 2 267
Liability on demand 4,869 83 70 296 449 5,767
Botrowings 6,724 - - - - 6,724
Other liabilities __a67 1 _ 20 _ 26 _ 97 521
Total liabilities 20,392 222 _163 __ 896 134 _22.407
Foreign currency position of
on-balance items-net 56,036 _969 113 1,164 015 38957
Off-balance sheet items-net (60,339} (963) {1i1} (,191) _248 {62,356)
(Forward exchange contracts,

cross currency swaps and FX options)
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{Miliion Baht)
The Bank
2008
Currency
US Dollar Yen Pound Euro Others Total
Assets
Cash 523 71 65 512 193 1,364
Interbank and money market
items - net 7,509 123 64 121 729 8,546
Investments - net 3,934 - - 2 23 3,959
Loans and accrued interest
receivables - net 31,822 1,597 7 1,259 324 35,079
Other assets 8310 6,759 _- 2616 -] 17,690
Total assets 52,098 8.550 200 4510 L2714 66,638
Deposits 13,468 101 284 785 456 15,094
Interbank and money market items 2,607 1,005 - 466 - 4,078
Liability on demand 5,937 118 125 694 308 7,182
Borrowings 6,962 - - - - 6,962
Other liabilities _8.852 1376 _13 3,667 _62 19,970
Total liabilities 32.826 8,600 422 S612 _826 33,286
Foreign currency position of
on-balance items-net 14272 _(50) 216) (1,102} 448 13,352
Off-balance sheet items-net (15,216) __68 220 —3d3 11 (14,874)
(Forward exchange contracts,

cross currency swaps and FXoptions)
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{(Million Baht}
The Bank
2007
Currency
US Dollar Yen Pounds Euro Others Total

Assets
Cash 607 44 99 402 232 1,384
Interbank and money market

items - net 31,688 5 89 236 289 32,907
Investments - net 20,896 - - 2 23 20,921
Loans and accrued interest

reccivables - net 23,047 1,i40 86 1,395 255 25,923
Other assets __19% _2 2 5 —_10 229

Total assets _76,428 L191 276 2,060 L1409 _81.364

iabiliti
Deposits 8,196 101 73 572 186 9,128
Interbank and money market items 236 27 - 2 p 267
Liability on demand 4,869 83 70 296 449 5,767
Borrowings 6,724 - - - - 6,724
Other lLiabilities ___ 366 _1 _14 — 26 97 514

Total liabilities _20,391 222 _157 __R96 _734 22,400
Foreign currency position of

on-balance items-net _56,037 969 _11i9 1164 675 38,964
Off-balance sheet items-net (60,339) {963) (i11) (1,191) _248 {62,356)
(Forward exchange contracts

cross currency swaps and FX options)

3. Equity position risk
Equity position risk is any risk that arises from changes in the price of equities or common stock that may cause

volatility in the Bank's earnings or fluctuations in the value of the Bank's financial assets.

The Bank's policy is not to increase its equity investments, but to divest any equity position that is not directly
related to its main banking business. The Bank manages and monitors market situations closely in order to acquire

supportive information for proper management and retain maximum benefits for the Bank.
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Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may not be able to meet its obligations as they fall due, because of inability to

realise its assets or to cover funding requirements at an appropriate price which results in a loss to the Bank.

The Bank manages its liquidity position under the Bank of Thailand's liquidity reserve regulations and other applicable

regulations. The Treasury Department is accountable for managing the Bank's liquidity position by providing short-term

and long-term funding sources as well as investing in highly liquid assets in both domestic and foreign currencies. The

Bank also ensures that its liquidity position is suitable and sufficient for the current and foreseeable market conditions.

The Assets and Liabilities Management Sub-Committee supervises management of liquidity risk.

A maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

Financial Assets

Cash

Interbank and money market items
investments

Loans

Accrued interest receivables
Customers' liability under acceptance
Other assets

Total Financial Assets

Fi ial Liabiliti
Deposits

Interbank and money market items
Liability payable on demand
Borrowings

Bank's liability under accpetances
Other liabilities

Totat Financial Liabilities

Liquidity-net

Atcall

12,215
578
200,733
16

490,211
14,019
10,883

Less than
6 months

186,574
27,679
320477
1,443
492
—L178
537,841

315,675
3,289
82,900
492
2332
404,708
133,133

Consolidated
2008

6 months 1 Year Over
ol Year (035 Years 3 Years
26,990 35,536 8,032
17,240 181,847 183,711
1 19 6
44,231 217,402 191,749

146,384 15,680 -
569 31 109
14,736 16,561 23,962
— 1420 __207 -
_163,109 32479 24,071
{118 R7R) 184,923 167,678

125

(Million Baht)

No

Maturity Total

27,751 21,751
- 198,789
5,840 104,655
- 904,008
- 1,485
- 492
2700 4876
37291 1.242.056
- 967,950
894 18,911
- 10,883
138,159
- 492
2041 LIS
3935  Li43.546
31356  _98510
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Atcall

inancial
Cash -
Interbank and money market items 8,220
Securities purchased under

resale agreements -
Investments 172
Loans 173,842
Accrued interest receivables 12
Customers' liability under acceptance -
Other assets -
Total Financial Assets 182,246

inancial Li
Deposits 434373
Interbank and money market items 4,615
Liability payable on demand 11,117
Borrowings -
Barnk's Liability under accpetances -
Other liabilities _ 121
Total Financial Liabilities 450,226
Liguidity-net (267,980}

Less than
6 months

50,516

10,700
14,359
269,735
1,220
1,462

— 1,088
349,080

313,778
8,127
38,198
1,462
2481
364,046
(14,966)

126

6 months

ol Year 1035 Years

1 Year

Over

No

(Million Baht)

SYears  Mawrity — Total

21,985 37,817 18,463
8,299 157,722 152,907
- 13 18
30,284 195,352 171,388
33,812 1,859 -
- 1,143 300
877 301 18,724
__ 234 80 -
34,923 3,383 _19.024
{4,639) 192,169 152,364

18,051
58,736

10,700
99,322
762,505
1,263
1,462
48713
956,912

783,822
14,185
1,117
58,100

1,462

_ 5848

874,534

82,378



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Fi ial A
Cash

Interbank and money market items
Investments

Loans

Accrued interest receivables
Customers' liability under acceptances

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Deposits

Interbank and money market itemns
Liability payable on demand
Borrowings

Bank's liability under acceptances
Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities
Liquidity-net

Atcall

12,623
550
199,371

490,896
14,617
10,883

Less than

6 months

186,539
27,669
320,474
1,454
492
_10i3
531,641

315,328
3,241
82,718
492
2,360
404,639
133,002

127

The Bank
2008
6 moaths 1 Year Over

folYear ToS Years 5 Years
26,990 35,519 8,032
17,990 179,754 182,998
44,980 215,273 191.030

146,384 15,680 -
569 31 109
14,736 16,561 23,962

1420 207 -
163,109 32479 24,071
(118,129} 182,794 166959

(Million Baht)
No

Maturity Total
27,7150 27,750
- 199,162
14,722 113,482
- 900,587
- 1,454
- 492
2,853 3,866
45,325  L.246793
- 968,788
896 19,463
- 10,883
- 137,977
- 492
.41 7159
3937 1144762
41,388 102,031



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

+

Financia] Assets
Cash
Interbank and money market items
Securities purchased under

resale agrecments
Investments
Loans
Accrued interest receivables
Customers' liability under acceptances
Other assets

Total Financial Assets

Fi ial Liabiliti
Deposits

Interbank and money market items
Liability payable on demand
Bormowings

Bank’s liability under acceptances
Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities
Liquidity-net

Less than

Atcall S months

8,177 50,516

- 10,700

131 14,179

171,148 273,337

- 1,246

- 1,462

- 921

179,456 352,361

434,959 313,778

4,615 8,263
11,117 -

- 37,801

- 1,462

121 2,483

430812 363,787

(271.356)  (11426)

128

The Bank
2007

6 months 1 Year Qver
tol Year ToJlYears S5 Years
21,985 37,592 18,453
8,532 156,611 151,677
230,517 194,203 170,130

33,812 1,859 -

- 1,143 300
877 301 18,724
235 __ 80 -
34,924 _ 3383 -19.024
4,407} 190,820 151,106

(Million Baht)
No
Maturity Total

18,050 18,050
- 58,693
- 10,700
15,217 107,557
- 761,305
- 1,246
- 1,462
_3.253 _4,174
36,520 963,187
- 784,408
- 14,321
- 11,117
- 57,703
- 1,462
2,932 874.862
33,588 88,325



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Fair value

Fair value is the estimated value that the Bank and its subsidiaries could receive from the sale of financial assets, or
the estimated cost of redeeming their financial liabilities. Fair values are based on market value, or estimated values

derived from using general market principles of calculation,

The following is a sumnmary of carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial assets and liabilities and

off-balance sheet items as of 31 December 2008 and 2007.

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2008 2007
Carrying Canrying
Amount Fair value Amount Fair value

nangial Ass
Cash 27,751 27,751 18,051 18,051
Interbank and money market items — net 198,734 198,734 58,724 58,724
Securities purchased under resale agreements - - 10,700 10,700
Investments — net 102,945 103,105 95,526 92,362
Loans and accrued interest receivables — net 875,722 875,722 737916 737,916
Customers’ liability under acceptances 492 492 1,462 1,462
Other assets 4876 4876 4873 4873

Total Financial Assets 1,210,520 1,210,680 927,252 924,088

Financial Liabilitieg

Deposits 967,950 967,950 783,822 783,822
Interbank and money market items 18,911 18,911 14,185 14,185
Liabilities payable on demand 10,883 10,883 11,117 11,117
Borrowings 138,159 137,190 58,100 58,596
Bank's tiability under acceptances 492 492 1,462 1,462
Other liabilities L1531 — 7151 _ 5,848 —5.848

Total Financial Liabilities 1,143,546 1,142,577 874,534 875,030
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(Million Baht)
The Bank
2008 2007
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair value Amount Fair value
Financial Assets
Cash 27,750 27,750 18,050 18,050
Interbank and money market items — net 199,142 199,142 58,681 58,681
Securities purchased under resale agreements - - 10,700 10,700
Investments — net 111,818 111,979 103,301 100,179
Loans and accrued interest receivables — net 873,539 873,539 738,304 738,304
Customers’ liability under acceptances 492 492 1,462 1,462
Other assets 3.866 . 3.866 —4174 4,174
Total Financiat Assets 1,216,607 1,216,768 935,172 931,550
Financial Liabilities

Deposits 968,788 968,788 784,408 784,408
Interbank and money market items 19,463 19,463 14,321 14,321
Liabilities payable on demand 10,883 10,883 11,117 11,117
Barrowings 137,977 137,190 57,703 58,596
Bank's liability under acceptances 492 492 1,462 1,462
Other liabilities — 1159 — 1159 —5.851 _ 5851
Total Financial Liabilities 1,144,762 1,143,975 274,862 875,755

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Bank in estimating fair vatues of financial assets and

liabilities as disclosed herein:

The values of cash, interbank and money market items (assets and liabilities), securities purchased under resale
agreements, customers’ liability under acceptances, accrued income, other assets, liabilitics payable on demand,
securities sold under repurchase agreements, bank's liabilities under acceptances, accrued interest payables and other

liabilities are stated at their carrying values at the reporting date.

The fair valuzes of held-for-trading investments, available-for-sale investments and held-to-maturity investments are

stated according to the Bank's accounting policies mentioned in Note 4.5.

The fair value of general investments is stated at cost, net of allowance for their impairment.
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The fair values of loans and accrued interest receivables are based on the carrying values of loans and accrued interest

receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, since most loans are floating rate ones.

The camrying vatues of deposits usually approximate fair vahies, except for negotiable certificates of deposit (NCD) for

which fair value is calcutated by using the expected yield on borrowings.

The fair values of borrowings are estimated by using market values.

The following is a summary of the notional amounts and the fair value of the consolidated and the Bank ‘s derivative

instruments as at 31 December 2008 and 2007:

Forward exchange contracts
Cross currency swaps
Interest rate swaps

Credit default swaps

Other derivatives

Forward exchange contracts
Cross currency swaps
Interest rate swaps

Credit default swaps

Other derivatives

Upto ] year
526,422

122,124
864,008

1,278

Uptol year
598,714

14,809
183,738

1,74

nsol nk
2008
Notional Amount
Over | vear Total
8,510 534,932
93,272 215,396
403,190 1,267,198
974 974
495 1,773
Consolidated and The Bank
2007
Notional Amount
Over | year Total
3,344 602,058
93,742 108,551
605,958 789,696
1,520 1,520
344 2,068

(Million Baht}

1,913
3915
(694)

(Million Baht)

Fair Value
581
3,226
261

The fair value is ordinarily derived from quoted market price or from generally accepted pricing models, where no

market price is available.
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36

37

a8

RECLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS
Certain accounts in the financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2007 have been reclassified to conform

with the presentation in the financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2008.

THAI ACCOUNTING STANDARD (TAS) NOT YET ADOFTED

The Bank and its subsidiaries have not adopted the following revised TAS that have been issued as of the balance
sheet date but are not yet effective. These revised TAS will become effective for financial periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009.

TAS 36 (revised 2007) Impairment of Assets

TAS 54 (revised 2007) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

The adoption and initial application of these revised TAS is not expected to have any material impact on the
consolidated or the Bank's financial statements.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements were approved for issue by the Audit Committee on 25 February 2009.
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Information Memorandum in relation to the KASIKORNBANK Public Company Limited’s
Share Acquisition in Muang Thai Fortis Holding Company Limited and the Connected ... . -

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

Attachment 2

Transaction L.

Background to the Transaction

Due to KBank's strategic focus of offering a full-range of financial solutions in order to
accommodate all of their customers’ needs, as well as KBank's strategic focus to cultivate
their fee-based income, which include the selling of life insurance products through banking
channel (Bancassurance). Therefore, KBank plans to expand the life insurance business of
KBank’s group, by acquiring shares and management control in an existing life insurance
company. The analysis indicates that Muang Thai Life Assurance Company Limited
(“MTL") is the most appropriate company for KBank’s insurance business expansion, for the
following reasons:

(1)  MTL is an existing business partner that has been cooperating with KBank in
providing Bancassurance products to KBank’s customers, which has been a continued
success. An investment in MTL will reduce the execution risk and will maximize
benefit to KBank.

(2)  MTL has a foreign partmer who has expertise in product development and other areas
of technical expertise, and has constantly transferred such knowledge to MTL. After
the acquisition of Muang Thai Fortis Holding Company Limited (“MTFH”)’s
additional ordinary shares, such foreign partner will continue be a sharcholder of MTL
and provide cooperation in developing insurance products and services which will
help KBank to efficiently accommodate all of its customers’ needs.

(3)  MTL is a leading life insurance company of considerable size. Such large insurance
base brings in benefits from economies of scale and the ability to adequately support
KBank’s custamer base.

(4)  MTL has the Bancassurance product already on the shelf, and therefore has no lead-
time needed in order to support KBank's Bancassurance business expansion,

(5)  MTL has a multi-channel distribution (e.g. agents, bank branches, and other affiliates)
that has great potential for growth. MTL has had good performance and currently has
a strong capital base (based on data of MTL as of 31 December 2008), MTL's capital
is one of the largest among other leading Thai life insurance providers, at Baht 6,494
million, which is 5.7 times that of the minimum required.

In expanding KBank’s life insurance business in MTL, KBank will acquire additional
ordinary shares in MTFH, which is a Thai company holding shares in MTL for 75% of the
total shares issued by MTL. The investment is for KBank to increase its sharebolding in
MTFH up to approximately 51% of the total shares issued by MTFH, which will result in
KRank holding approximately 38.25% of the econemic interest in MTL.

Currently, KBank holds 10% of all issued shares in MTFH. The additional ordinary shares in
MTFH will be acquired via the following procedures: (1) KBank will subscribe for, or
acquire, the new ordinary shares issued through capital-increase by MTFH, based on the
proportion of shareholding, as well as new ordinary shares left unsubscribed by the existing
shareholders; and (2) KBank will acquire shares from the existing sharcholders, whereby
some of the existing shareholders are connected persons of KBank.

DISCLOSURE 1



1.4

1.5

1.6

After the said acquisition of MTFH’s additional ordinary shares, persons with conflict of
interest of KBank will hold shares in MTFH {which will become KBank’s subsidiary), and
Muang Thai Insurance Public Company Limited (“MTI") (which will become KBank’s
affiliated company), of more than 10% of the total voting shares of the abovementioned
companies. In this regard, such persons will hold shares in MTFH and M1 in proportions of
24.41% and 13.06%, respectively. The Board of Directors has considered, and is of the
opinion that such shareholding structure in MTFH and MTI will be in the best interest of
KBank (the details of which are stipulated in clause 11.2 of this Information Memorandum).

In addition, since MTFH’s primary business is the holding of shares in other companies (a
Holding Company), the abovementioned KBank's acquisition of additional ordinary shares in
MTFH will require an adjustment in MTFH's shareholding structure in the companies which
MTFH invests in. In consideration of the said shareholding structure, adjustment is required
for MTFH’ sharcholdings in Muang Thai Real Estate Public Company Limited (“MTR”),
Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited (“PL”) and Muang Thai Group Service Company
Limited (“MTGS™), to ensure that the share acquisition is aligned with the connected laws
and regulations, including those of the Bank of Thailand. Therefore, there will be an
adjustment on such shareholding structure before the acquisition of additional ordinary shares
in MTFH. In this regard, a new company will be incorporated (“Holding Company 2"), in
which KBank will subscribe for, or invest in, no more than 10% of the Holding Company 2’s
total issued shares, while Fortis Insurance International N.V. (“Fortis™) and the persons in
Group A (according to clause 11.3 of this Information Memorandum) will hold the majority
of the shares, and MTFH will subsequently sell all of its shares held in the three companies
mentioned above to the Holding Company 2.

In order to acquire additional ordinary shares in MTFH, KBank will have to obtain the
approval of its shareholders meeting, which will be in accordance with KBank’s articles of
association and any connected laws, regulations and notifications, which include:

. The Public Limited Companies Act (B.E. 2535), section 107 regarding the acquisition
of a private company; and

. The Securities and Exchange Act (B.E. 2535) as amended, section 89/12, the
notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board, and the notification of the
Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, in relation to the connected
transactions. The said regulations will be applicable on KBank’s acquisition of shares
in MTFH, as MTFH has connected persons as its shareholders with the controlling
power over MTFH. There will also be acquisitions of shares from existing
shareholders by KBank, whereby some existing shareholders are conmected persons
with KBank. Consequently, the acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH by
KBank will fall into the ambit of the connected transaction.

The acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH, as well as the purchasing or
investment in Holding Company 2 by KBank, when comparing the size or value of the
transaction according to the Notification of the Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand regarding the Disclosure of information and Activities by Listed Companies in the
Acquisition or Selling of Assets B.E. 2547 (2004), does not fall under the ambit of the said
Notification, and thus, KBank are not required to compile a report and disclose the
information to the SET or send notice to its shareholders. However, for the purpose of
providing information to investors, KBank has considered disclosing such information under
the Notification, for the purpose of using it as a guideline for the disclosing of information
regarding the acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH.

The acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH and the other connected or necessary
needed in order to complete the transaction pursuant to clause 1.1 to 1.4 above will proceed
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2.1

when the conditions precedent or conditions connected to the share acquisition are completed
(details of which are prescribed in clause 6.2 of this Information Memorandum).

Transaction Date

The KBank Board of Directors meeting (only the directors with no conflict of interest in this
transaction attended and voted in the meeting, while the directors with conflict of interest,
namely Mr. Banyong Lamsam, Pol.Gen. Pow Sarasin, Mr. Banthoon Lamsam, and Ms.
Sujitpan Lamsam, did not attend and had no right to vote) has considered and approved to
propose to the shareholders’ meeting for the approval on the acquisition of the additional
ordinary shares of MTFH, the decision to enter into the connected transactions and the
connected or necessary procedures to complete the transaction. The major points of the
resolution are as follows;

Approval of the acquisition of Muang Thai Fortis Holding Company Limited’s additional
ordinary shares, in the total amount of 19,191,635 shares, at a ‘share acquisition price’ and
‘price per share’ calculated by the following formula:

Share acquisition price = Not more than 7,244 Million Baht (calculated from the value of
MTL and MTI for the part in which MTFH holds shares in), plus cash and asset, minus
liabilities of MTFH, at the closing date of the transaction.

Price per share = share acquisition price, divided by the total amounts of share to be
purchased by KBank of 19,191,635 shares,

and the approval to proceed with the connected transactions with the connected persons of
KBank, in the acquisition of the abovementioned shares, the details are as follows;

. To subscribe or purchase of the ordinary shares issued through capital-increase by
MTFH in the proportion of shareholding, as well as the ordinary shares left
unsubscribed by the existing shareholders, in the total of 3,865,949 shares, with the
par value of Baht 10.00 per share. Price per Share is calculated according to the above
formula (MTFH has the connected persons of KBank holding shares and having
centrol power in MTFH).

. To acquire the MTFH's shares from the existing shareholders, namely Fortis
Insurance International N.V. (“Fortis”)’, Swiss Reinsurance Company Ltd. (“Swiss
Re™), and other shareholders who are not KBank’s connected person, for 9,621,886
shares, at the Price per Share calculated from the above formula.

. To acquire the MTFH’s shares from existing shareholders who are KBank's connected
persons for 5,703,800 shares, at the Price per Share calculated from the above
formula.

. To negotiate, enter into agreement or contract with persons, connected persons in the

matter connected to the acquisition of the MTFH ordinary share, or other agreements
that are necessary or connected to the transaction, the management and/or the
operation of business.

In this respect, the price of MTFH’s shares, which KBank is to purchase, may be readjusted
depending on the results of the Due Diligence investigation and the relevant negotiations, as
well as the readjustment from the effects of the variations of Muang Thai Broker Company

? Fortis is still be a shareholder and alliance with MTFH, MTL and MTIL.
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Limited (“MTB")’s book value as of 31 March 2009; and the variations in MTFH’s cash,
assets and liabilities at the closing date of the transaction.

The calculated value of the transactions for the acquisition of the new ordinary shares issued
through capital-increase by MTFH, and the acquisition of MTFH’s shares from the existing
shareholders who are the connected persons of KBank, which fails into the ambit of a
connected transaction, is approximately 3,612,160,285 Baht in total* which exceeds 3% of
KBank's total net tangible assets. KBank is required to disclose information pertaining its
engagement in the connected transactions, including obtaining approval from KBank’s
shareholders for the engagement in the transactions.

(The details of the connected person of KBank are available in clause 8 of this Information
Memorandum)

Approval of the subscription for, or investment in shares in Holding Company 2, which is a
company to be newly incorporated, in an amount not more than 10% of the total issued shares
in Holding Company 2. This shall be done for the purpose of adjusting MTFH's shareholding
structures in Muang Thai Real Estate Public Company Limited, Phatra Leasing Public
Company Limited and Muang Thai Group Service Company Limited. MTFH will
subsequently sell all of its shares held in the three companies mentioned above to the Holding

~ Company 2.

The acquisition of additional shares in MTFH by KBank is subject to conditions precedent, or
connected conditions (the details of which are available in clause 6.2 of this Information
Memorandum). In the case that the conditions are met or accomplished within the expected
timeframe, the said share acquisition process is expected be completed within Quarter two of
2009.

General information of the Transaction, Connected Persons and their Relationship to
the Company

The transaction is an acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH, and the carrying out
of connected procedures, with details as disclosed in clause 2 of this Information
Memorandum.

Currently, KBank holds 10% of the total issued shares in MTFH; the persons in Group A (the
details of which are available in clause 11.3 of this Information Memorandum) holds 65.05%
of total issued share; Fortis holds 20% of the total issued shares; and Swiss Re holds 4.95% of
the total issued shares.

MTFH operates as a holding company. Currently, MTFH invests in six other companics,
including MTL, whereby MTFH holds 75% of the total issued shares of MTL, and 25% of
which are held by Fortis. There will be no change in the shareholding structure of MTL after
the acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH by KBank.

The details of the current shareholding structure in MTFH, as well as its shareholding in other
companies, can be shown in the following diagram;

* This calculation is based on the preliminary value of the abovementioned transaction of 7,244 Million Baht, the total
amount of shares of 19,191,635 shares and the amount of shares belonging to the connected persons of 9,569,749 shares.
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4. Details of Transaction Asset and Brief Information of MTFH and the Companies in

which MTFH invests in.

4.1 The transaction assets are the ordinary shares in MTFH and the Holding Company 2, which is
to be the newly established company.

4.2 MTFH was registered on 11 August 1999, with a paid-up registered capital of Baht
420,000,000. Its major business operations consist of the life insurance and non-life insurance
businesses, via investment in the group of companies in the form of a holding company. Its
major source of revenue comes from dividends in the companies it invests in.

As of 31 December 2009, MTEH holds shares in the following companies:

Ne. Company Name No. of Shares Shareholding
{Share) Percentage

1.  Muang Thai Insurance Public Company Limited 14,867,850 25.20
(“MTI")

2. Muang Thai Life Assurance Company Limited (“MTL") 749,994 75.00

3. Muang Thai Real Estate Public Company Limited 257,396,094 33.69
(“MTR”)

4.  Phathra Leasing Public Company Limited (“PL") 8,900,000 1.99

5. Muang Thai Broker Company Limited (“MTB"") 19,600 98.00

6.  Muang Thai Group Service Company Limited 29,993 99.98
{(“MTGS™)

List of MTFH Board of Directors, as of 6 January 2009

No. Name Position Relationship with KBank

1. Mr. Photipong Lamsam Chairman None

2. Mr. Yutti Lamsam* Director Sibling of Mr. Banyong

Lamsam, Chairman of KBank

3. Mr. Poomchai Lamsam Director None

4.  Mr. Sara Lamsam Chief Executive Officer None

5. Ms. Nuanphan Lamsam Director None

6.  Ms. Pakineenard Tiyachate  Director None
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4.5

4.6

No. Name Position Relationship with KBank
7. Pol. Gen. Pornsak Director None
Durongkavibul
8.  Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam™** Director KBank's director
. Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs Director None
10. Mr. Jozef Germain De Mey  Director None
Remarks

* As of 10 April 2008, Mr. Yutti Lamsam owns 650,160 shares in MTFH, equivalent to 1.55%
of the total registered capital of MTFH.

** As of 10 April 2008 Mrs. Sujitpan Lamsam does not own shares in MTFH.

List of MTFH Management, as of 6 January 2009

No. Name Position Relationship with
KBank
1. Mr. Sara Lamsam Chief Executive Officer None

MTL is the leading life assurance company in Thailand with great success in the life
assurance business, which has been carried out through its agents, Bancassurance, and other
business partners. The company has had good performances and has a strong capital fund. At
the end of November 2008, MTL’s total written premiums ranked No. 3 in the industry, with
a market share of 8%.

MTI is the leading non-life insurance company in Thailand. Its main operations include motor
insurance, fire insurance, business continuity insurance, marine insurance, and miscellaneous
insurance,

MTB and MTGS are supporting companies for MTL and MTI. MTB’s main operation is life-
assurance brokerage, while MTGS operates as a gifts and printing materials provider.

MTR opetates in the area of real estate and PL operates in the leasing business.

If the transaction is executed as planned, MTFH will spin off all of its investments in MTR,
PL and MTGS, prior to KBank’s acquisition of the additional ordinary shares in MTFH, by
selling its shares to the Holding Company 2.

Summary of MTFH’s Financial Statements, as of 30 September 2008 (Reviewed by Ernst
& Young)

Unit: Million Raht

Balance Sheet
Assets
Cash and Deposits with financial institutions 1.567
Short term investments - notes 129.000
Interest receivables 0.375
Long term investments 492 808
Long term loans 30.105
Other current assets 0.025
Property foreclosed 1.007
TFotal Assets 655.287
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Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Accrued expenses 0.186
Payable from purchase of investments 2.42%
Total Liabilities 2.615

Shareholders’ Equity

Registered, issued and paid-up share capital 420.000
Share premiums 0.100
Retained earnings: Appropriated - statutory reserve 42.000
Retained earnings: Which have not been appropriated 150.572
Total Shareholders’ Equity 652,672
Total Liabilities and Shareholder’s Equity 655.287
book value per share (Baht) 15.54
Income Statement
Interest and dividend income 155.690
Other income 0.063
Operating expenses 0.000
Total income 155.753
Operating expenses 4.573
Income before income tax 151.181
Income tax -
Net Income 151.181
5. Benefits and Objectives of the Transaction

To expand KBank’s scope of business to the life assurance business, which is aligned with the
KBank strategic direction focusing on providing a full-range of complete services to meet
customer’s needs, increasing fee-based income, enabling greater flexibility in business
supervision and management, and maximizing KBank’s benefits in the Bancassurance business
by gaining additional economic interest from investment and distribution, other than
commission.

6. Transaction, Conditions, and Shareholding Structure Processes after the Transaction is
Completed

6.1  The key processes to be executed after the Board of Directors’ approval can be concluded as
follows:

DISCLOSURE

Develop the Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU™) to be used as a preliminary
reference to draft the Share Purchase Agreement and/or other agreements which may
be necessary or connected to the share acquisition, the management and operation of
the business; and negotiating and doing any other acts connected the share purchase
agreement, or other necessary or connected agreements.

Submission for approval or waiver and other connected procedures that are connected
to or necessary for the acquisition of the shares, from governmental agencies,
organizations, or connected governmental entities, including the Bank of Thailand (the
“BOT™), the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Office of the
SEC™) and the Office of Insurance Commission (the “OIC”); and obtain approval
from the shareholders meeting.

After the above approval has been obtained; and other condition precedents or
connected conditions are completed, or there has been a waiver of any of the



conditions, the investment shall be made in Holding 2, as well as the subscription for
or the purchasing of additional ordinary shares in MTFH.

6.2 The acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH and other necessary and/or related
processes to complete the transaction (the “Share Acquisition”) will proceed when the
conditions precedent or conditions related to the Share Acquisition are completed, or KBank
forfeits its rights in any condition as the Board of Directors, the President, or other persons
that the Board of Directors or such persons have authorized, deems it appropriate to do so.
The conditions include, but are not limited to:

. The shareholders meeting approving the share acquisition in MTFH, including the
Connected Transaction.

. The share acquisition is approved, or waived under the connected or necessary laws or
regulations issued by government agencies, organizations, or connected government
entities including the BOT, the SEC and the OIC. Whereas the approval or waiver is
still in effect.

. All concerned parties have obtained all approvals and permissions that are necessary
or related to the share acquisition and other relevant actions,

6.3 Afier the transaction has been completed, KBank will hold approximately 51% of the total
issued shares in MTFH while the original shareholders who are not KBank will hold
approximately 49% of the total issued shares in MTFH. In this regard, the original
shareholders who are the connected persons will have shareholding in MTFH, after the share
acquisition, in the proportion of 24.41%.

The shareholding structure in MTFH after the share acquisition can be shown in the following

diagram:
Griginal Shareholders ‘_
S ~ (Not KBank)
51.0% | 40.0%
MTFH Fortis 25.0%
6.0% 1
V'V 25.2% Y 75.0% V 98.0%
; N g - S AR S
- MTI Plc S| M L MTB
? Fortis 10.0% @
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7.1

7.2

73

Transaction Value and Criteria for Calculation of Transaction Value

KBank will make the payment for the acquisition of the additional ordinary shares in MTFH
by cash in one time from the working capital of KBank. The details are as follows:

. Make the payment for subscription or purchase of the ordinary shares arising from
capital increase of MTFH, including the amount not being subscribed by the existing
shareholders of MTFH in total of 3,865,949 shares, with par value of Baht 10.60 per
share. The value per share is calculated based on the specified calculation method
(MTFH has the connected persons of KBank holding shares and having control power
in MTFH}).

. Make the payment for purchase of shares in MTFH from the existing shareholders,
namely Fortis Insurance International N.V. (“Fortis™)’, Swiss Reinsurance Company
Ltd. (“Swiss Re”), and other shareholders who are not KBank’s connected persons in
total of 9,621,886 shares, with the value per share calculated based on the specified
calculation method;

. Make the payment for purchase of shares in MTFH from the existing shareholders
who are KBank’s connected persens, in total of 5,703,800 shares, with the value per
share calculated based on the specified calculation method.

The purchased price of shares and the value per share has the details of calculation method as
described in clause 2.1 of this Information Memorandum. However, the purchase price of
MTFH shares which KBank will acquire can be further adjusted, subject to the results of the
due diligence and any relevant negotiations, including the effect of book value’s adjustment
of Muang Thai Broker Company Limited (“MTB"} on 31 March 2009 and the adjustment of
cash value, assets, and liabilities of MTFH at the date of entering into the transaction.

The calculated value of the transactions for the acquisition of the new ordinary shares issued
through capital-increase by MTFH, and the acquisition of MTFH’s shares from the existing
shareholders who are the connected persons of KBank, which falls into the ambit of a
connected transaction, is approximately 3,612,160,285 Baht in total® which exceeds 3% of
KBank’s total net tangible assets. KBank is required to disclose information pertaining its
engagement in the connected transactions, including obtaining approval from KBank's
shareholders for the engagement in the transactions.

(KBank’s connected persons who will enter into the transactions with KBank will be
disclosed in details in Clause 8 of this Information Memoerandum.)

In addition to the purchase of additional ordinary shares in MTFH, KBank will make the
payment for the shares issued by the Holding Company 2, which will be established. In this
regard, KBank will hold no more than 10% of the issued shares in the Holding Company 2.

In relation to valuation method of the purchased shares in MTFH, KBank evaluates the
purchased share value of MTFH by calculation of the investment mainly in MTL, MTI and
MTB, including cash and other investments as per the company’s structure at the date of
purchasing shares. The approximate purchased share value which is disclosed herewith can be
adjusted subject to the results of the due diligence and any relevant negotiations, including the
effect of book value’s adjustment of Muang Thai Broker Company Limited (“MTB”) and the
adjustment of cash value, assets, and liabilities of MTFH at the date of entering into the
transaction.

* Fortis will maintain its sharcholding and being strategic alliance with MTFH.

8 This calculation is based on the preliminary value of the abovementioned transaction of 7,244 Million Baht, the total
amount of shares of 19,191,635 shares and the amount of shares belonging to the connected persons of 9,569,749 shares.
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MTL Valuation

KBank applied the actuarial method, which is the discounted cash flow method that estimates
value of insurance company’s current and future business, as framework for MTL valuation.
The value is also compared with standard financial ratio i.e. Price per Earning (P/E) ratio, Price
per Book Value (P/BV) ratio, and Price per Embedded Value (P/EV) ratio of both domestic and
offshore life insurance companies having the similar business with MTL. In addition, KBank
also takes the value of purchasing shares in life insurance companies in the past into
consideration. By these methods, KBank evaluates the appropriate value of MTL in the range of
Baht 15,100 — 33,810 Million.

KBank evaluates the value of MTL in the amount of Baht 22,700 Million in this share purchase
transaction.

MTI Valuation

KBank evaluates the value of MTI which is a listed company on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand based on various factors i.e, market value, book value and also compared with
standard financial ratio i.e. Price per Earning (P/E) ratio, Price per Book Value (P/BV) ratio,
and Price per Embedded Value (P/EV) ratio of both domestic and offshore life insurance
companies. By these methods, KBank evaluates the appropriate value of MTI in the range of
Baht 2,107 - 4,519 Million.

KBank evaluates the value of MTI in the amount of Baht 2,545 Million in this share purchasc
transaction.

MTB Valuation

KBank evaluates the value of MTB based on the book value of MTB. The price which KBank
will pay for MTB will be subject to the book value of MTB on 31 March 2009.

8. Connected Persons and/or Persons who may have a Conflict of Interest with KBank and
Interested Directors or Shareholders

The connected transactions relating to the acquisition of MTFH's ordinary shares by KBank
are as follows:

8.1 The subscription or purchase of the ordinary shares arising from capital increase of MTFH,
including the amount not being subscribed by the existing shareholders of MTFH in total of
3,865,949 shares, with par value of Baht 10.00 per share. The value per share is calculated
based on the specified calculation method (details of which are stipulated in clause 2.1 of this
Information Memorandum). MTFH is a connected person due to it has the connected persons
of KBANK holding shares and having controt power in MTFH. The details are as follows:

Percentage Shareholding
Connected Persons of share . R Proportion in
as Shareholders of MTFH held in Relationship with KBank KBaI::k asof 11
MTFH September 2008
Phatra Samphant Co., Ltd. 9.50% Mr. Banyong Lamsam, the 0.23%
Chairman of KBank, Mr. Banthoon
Lamsam, the Chief Executive

Officer (CEQ) of KBank, and their

relatives hold shares together more

than 20% of the total issued shares
of this company
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Percentage Shareholding
Connected Persons of share . fo Proportion in
as Shareholders of MTFH held in Relationship with KBank KBank as of 11
MTFH September 2008
Mr. Pairote Lamsam 7.09% | Father of Mr. Krisada Lamsam who 0.09%
is the Executive Vice President
(EVP) of KBank
Mr. Banyong Lamsam 4.80% | Chairman of KBank 0.13%
The estate administrator of Mr. 3.57% | M.R. Sam-aungvarn Lamsam, -
Bancha Lamsam mother of CEQ of KBark, is the
estate administratar
Ms. Sumanthana Mokkavej 2.83% | Sibling of Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam 0.01%
who is a director of KBank
Aran Ordinary Partnership 2.71% | Relative of Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam, 0.15%
whao 1s a director of KBank, is a
partmer of this Ordinary Parmership
Traisith, Group of Person 2.71% | Relative of Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam, 0.13%
who is a director of KBank, is a
partner of this Group of Person
Ms. Supanya Lamsam 2.71% | Sibling of Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam 0.15%
who is a director of KBank
Ms. Rujirapomn Wanglee 2.71% | Sibling of Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam 0.18%
who is a director of KBank
Mr. Yutti Lamsam 1.55% | Sibling of Mr. Banyong Lamsam, 0.01%
who is the Chairman of KBank
M.R. Sam-aungvarn Lamsam 1.19% | Mother of Mr. Banthoon Lamsam 0.25%
who is the CEO of KBank
Mr. Banthoon Lamsam 0.44% | Director of KBank -
Ms. Supawan Panyarachun 0.44% | Sibling of Mr. Banthoon Lamsam 0.09%
who is the CEO of KBank
Ms. Chujit Sibunruang 0.43% | Sibling of Mr. Banyong Lamsam -
who is the Chairman of KBank
Prutthithada Co., Ltd. 0.38% | Mr. Krisada Lamsam, EVP of 0.02%
' KBank and his relatives hold shares
together more than 30% of the total
issued shares of this company
Khunying Chatchani 0.35% | Sibling of Mr. Banyong Lamsam -
Chatikavanij who is the Chairman of KBank
Nithi Thamrong Co., Ltd. 0.30% | Mr, Banthoon Lamsam, the CEO of 0.03%

KBank, and his relatives hold
shares together more than 30% of
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Percentage . Shareholding
Connected Persons of share . N Proportion in
as Shareholders of MTFH held in Relationship with KBank KBank as of 11
MTFH September 2008
the total issued shares of this
company
Ms. Chanatip Chutrakul 0.14% | Sibling of Mr. Banyong Lamsam -
who is the Chairman of KBank
Pol. Gen. Pow Sarasin 0.12% | Director of KBank 0.01%
Total direct and indirect 43.96%
connected persons
Cennected persons who are MTFH directors are as follows:
Shareholding

Connected Persons and/or Persons
who may have a Conflict of Interest

as an MTFH Director

Relationship with KBank’s
Director

Proportion in KBank
as of 11 September

2008

Mr. Yutti Lamsam

Sibling of Mr. Banyong Lamsam
who is the Chairman of Kbank

0.01%

Mrs. Sujitpan Lamsam

Director of KBank

In this regard, the price of MTFH’s shares, which KBank is to purchase, may be readjusted
depending on the results of the Due Diligence investigation and the relevant negotiations, as
well as the readjustment from the effects of the variations of Muang Thai Broker Company
Limited (“MTB”)’s book value as of 31 March 2009; and the variations in MTFH’s cash,
assets and liabilities at the closing date of the transaction.

3.2 The purchase of MTFH’s shares from the existing shareholders who are KBank’s connected
persons, in total of 5,703,800 shares, with the value per share calculated based on the
specified calculation method (details of which are stipulated in clause 2.1 of this Information
Memorandumy). The details are as follows:

Shareholding
Connected Persons P
and/or Persons who may Number Purchase Price Relationship with Proportion in
have a Conflict of of shares (Baht) KBank KBank as of
Interest sold 11 September
2008
The estate administrator of 463,166 179,708,408 | M.R. Sam-aungvam -
Mr. Bancha Lamsam Lamsam, mother of
CEQ of KBank, is the
estate administrator
Phatra Samphant Co., Ltd. 1,232,515 478,215,820 | Mr. Banyong 0.23%
Lamsam, the
Chairman of KBank,
Mr, Banthoon
Lamsam, the Chief
Executive Officer
(CEQ) of KBank, and
DISCLOSURE 12




Connected Persons
and/or Persons who may
have a Conflict of
Interest

Number
of shares
sold

Purchase Price
{Baht)

Relationship with
KBank

Shareholding
Proportion in
KBank as of
11 September
2008

their relatives hold
shares together more
than 20% of the total
issued shares of this

company

Nithi Thamrong Co., Ltd.

38,922

15,101,736

Mz. Banthoon
L.amsam, the CEQ of
KBank, and his
relatives hold shares
together more than
30% of the total
issued shares of this
company

0.03%

Prutthithada Co., Ltd.

49,301

19,128,788

Mr. Krisada Lamsam,
EVP of KBank and his
relatives hold shares
together more than
30% of the total issued
shares of this company

0.02%

Ms. Chanatip Chutrakul

18,163

7,047,244

Sibling of Mr.
Banyong Lamsam
who is the Chairman
of KBank

Aran Ordinary Partnership

350,992

136,184,896

Relative of Ms.
Sujitpan Lamsam,
who is a director of
KBank, is a partner of
this Ordinary
Partnership

0.15%

Traisith, Group of Person

351,826

136,508,488

Relative of Ms.
Sujitpan Lamsarm,
who is a director of
KBank, is a partner of
this Group of Person

0.13%

Mr. Pairote LLamsam

920,001

356,960,388

Father of Mr. Krisada
Lamsam who is the
Executive Vice
President (EVP) of
KBank

0.09%

Mr. Banyong Lamsam

622,744

241,624,672

Chairman of KBank

0.13%

Ms. Supanya Lamsam

351,595

136,418,860

Sibling of Ms.
Suyjitpan Lamsam who

0.15%
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Connected Persons

Shareholding

and/or Persons who may Number Purchase Price | Relationship with Proportion in
£ . of shares KBank as of
have a Conflict of (Baht) KBank
Interest sold 11 September
nteres 2008
is a director of KBank
Mr. Banthoon Lamsam 56,823 22,048,100 | Director of KBank -
M.R. Sam-aungvarn 154,908 60,104,304 | Mother of Mr. 0.25%
Lamsam Banthoon Lamsam
who is the CEO of
KBank
Pol. Gen. Pow Sarasin 15,569 6,040,772 Director of KBank 0.01%
Khunying Chatchani 45,408 17,618,304 | Sibling of Mr. -
Chatikavanij Banyong Lamsam
who is the Chairman
of KBank
Ms. Supawan Panyarachun 56,825 22,048,100 | Sibling of Mr, 0.09%
Banthoon Lamsam
who is the CEQ of
KBank
Ms. Chujit Sibunruang 55,787 21,645,356 | Sibling of Mr. -
Banyong Lamsam
who is the Chairman
of KBank
Ms. Sumanthana 367,426 142,561,288 | Sibling of Ms. 0.01%
Mokkavej Sujitpan Lamsam who
is a director of KBank
Ms. Rujiraporn Wanglee 350,992 136,184,896 | Sibling of Ms. 0.18%
Sujitpan Lamsam who
is a director of KBank
Mr. Yutti Lamsam 200,835 77,923,980 | Sibling of Mr. 0.01%
Banyong Lamsam,
who is the Chairman
of KBank
Total direct and indirect 5703,800 | 2,213,074,400

connected persons

The price of MTFH’s shares, which KBank is to purchase, may be readjusted depending on
the results of the Due Diligence investigation and the relevant negotiations, as well as the
readjustment from the effects of the variations of Muang Thai Broker Company Limited
(*MTB")’s book value as of 31 March 2009; and the variations in MTFH’s cash, assets and
liabilities at the closing date of the transaction.
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The calculated value of the transactions for the acquisition of the new ordinary shares issued
through capital-increase by MTFH, and the acquisition of MTFH’s shares from the existing
shareholders who are the connected persons of KBank, which falls into the ambit of a
connected transaction, is approximately 3,612,160,285 Baht in total’ which exceeds 3% of
KBank's total net tangible assets. KBank is required to disclose information pertaining its
engagement in the connected transactions, including obtaining approval from KBank's
shareholders for the engagement in the transactions,

In this respect, the directors who have an interest are Mr. Banyong Lamsam, Pol.Gen. Pow
Sarasin, Mr. Banthoon Lamsam, and Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam, did not attend the Board of
Directors meeting on agenda relating to the acquisition of MTFH’s additional ordinary shares
and had no right to vote at such.

9. QOpirion of the Board of Directors’s

The Board of Directors meeting of KASIKORNBANK Public Company Limited {“KBank”)
No0.2/2552 held on February 26, 2009 (only the directors with no conflict of interest in this
transaction attended and voted in the meeting, while the directors with conflict of interest,
namely Mr. Banyong Lamsam, Pol.Gen. Pow Sarasin, Mr. Banthoon Lamsam, and Ms.
Sujitpan Lamsam, did not attend and had no right to vote) has considered and resolved for an
approval of investment expansion plan in Muang Thai Life Assurance Company Limited
{(“MTL"), by acquiring additional ordinary shares in Muang Thai Fortis Holding Company
Limited (“MTFH"), which is a Thai company holding shares in MTL for 75% of the total
shares issued by MTL. The investment is for KBank to increase its shareholding in MTFH up
to approximately 51% of the total shares issued by MTFH, which will result in KBank
holding approximately 38.25% of the economic interest in MTL. The Board of Directors
resolved for the plan to acquire additional share in MTFH, and other connected agendas, to be
pteposed for an approval from the shareholders’ meetings.

After taking into consideration KBank’s strategic direction, the bank’s study on benefits from
life insurance business expansion, and MTFH’s sharcholders’ interest in selling MTFH’s
share only, the Board of Directors considered the appropriateness in purchasing additional
ordinary shares in MTFH. The purchase will be made by subscribing for new shares from
MTFH, and acquisition of shares from the existing shareholders, in the total amount of
19,191,635 shares, at a ‘share acquisition price’ and ‘price per share’ calculated by the
following formula:

Share_acquisition price = Not more than 7,244 Million Baht (calculated from the value of
MTL and MTI for the part in which MTFH holds shares in), plus cash and asset, minus
liabilities of MTFH, at the closing date of the transaction.

| Price per share = share acquisition price, divided by the total amounts of share to be
purchased by KBank of 19,191,635 shares,

The price of MTFH's shares, which KBank is to purchase, may be readjusted depending on
the results of the Due Diligence investigation and the relevant negotiations, as well as the
readjustment from the effects of the variations of Muang Thai Broker Company Limited
{(*MTB”Y's book value as of 31 March 2009; and the variations in MTFH’s cash, assets and
liabilities at the closing date of the transaction. In this regard, the valuation of MTFH' share
price has been evaluated by actuarial methodology, which is the discounted cash flow method
that estimates value of insurance company’s current and future business, compared with other
deals comparable from life insurance companies acquisition cases in the past 1-2 years in
Thailand and Asian countries with similar industry landscape. The Board of Directors is of

7 This calculation is based on the preliminary value of the abovementioned transaction of 7,244 Million Baht, the total
amount of shares of 19,191,635 shares and the amount of shares belonging to the connected persons of 9,569,749 shares.
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10.

11.

(a)

(b}

(c)
(d)

(e)

the opinion that, due to the fact that Thailand’s life insurance policy purchase rate is still low
compared to average purchase rate in other countries, and the financial market situation and
supportive governmental policies, coupled with KGroup’s strength, the acquisition of shares
at the abovementioned price will bring a satisfactory return in a long run.

In this matter, the Board of Directors has adhere to the ultimate benefits of KBank and its
shareholders to ensure that the studies of life insurance business expansion was done with
extreme consideration and that the Board of Directors is confident that it has been protecting
the bank’s and its shareholders’ interest with extreme care.

Opinion of the Audit Committee
—NONE -~

In addition, the Audit Committee has held a meeting and composed a report on the opinion of
the Audit Committee, appearing as an attachment to this Information Memorandum.

Other Supporting Information

An acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH will result in KBank having
control over MTI1 under the Chain Principte condition.

In the case that KBank acquires additional share in MTFH at the level of 51% of total issued
share, KBank will be deemed to have direct and indirect (via MTFH shareholding) stake in
MTIL, in the total amount of approximately 31.2% of all issued shares with right to vote.

The acquisition of shares by KBank will, therefore, be deemed as an acquisition of controlling
power over MTI, which is a listed company, under the “Chain Principle” condition, according
to Notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) no. Kor Chot. 53/2545
Re: Rules, Conditions and Procedures for the Acquisition of Securities for Business
Takeovers. Consequently, KBank will be required to make the Mandatory Tender Offer to
purchase all of MTI’s shares. However, KBank's only objective is to make investment in
life insurance business, without having any policy to increase its investment in MTI, or any
intention to control over or change the management of MTI. Therefore, KBank has requested
for a waiver from SEC’s Takeover Panel, and was granted a waiver from making the
Mandatory Tender Offer to purchase all of MTI’s shares. KBank has a direction to protect the
rights of minority shareholders of MTI, after the acquisition of additional ordinary shares of
MTFH, with details as follows:

The transaction will be of greater benefit to MTI shareholders than to KBank deceasing its
investment stake in MTI since KBank is an important distribution channel for MTI and as
such can create synergy for MTI's future growth.

KBank will refrain from exercising its direct and indirect voting rights in a portion that
exceeds 24.99% of shares in MTL

KBank will not nominate its management as MTI executives.

KBank will not nominate its representative as an MTI director in greater number than the
right to nominate that KBank currently possesses. In addition, the KBank’s representatives
will not perform as either a managing or an authorized director of MTI.

In the case that KBank and MTI enter into a connected transaction, the said transaction will
be transparent and follow the practice of connected laws and regulations e.g. the disclosure of
information and practice relating to connected transactions under the Securities and Exchange
Act {B.E. 2551), the good governance practice of insurance companies, internal control of
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insurance companies, supervision of insurance companies, and public disclosure of
information by insurance companies under the notifications of the OIC.

who may have a Conflict of Interest in Excess of 10% of Total Voting Shares.

11.2  Maintenance of MTFH’s and MTD’s sharcholding structure that has a Stake of Persons

I the acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH is completed, MTFH will become a
subsidiary of KBank, while MTI will become an affiliate company. However, the persons
who may have a conflict of interest will continue to have a stake in MTFH and MTI in the
total amount of 24.41% and 13.06% respectively.

Details of persons who may have a conflict of interest with KBank and still hold shares

in MTFH after the acquisition of MTFH’s addition ordinary shares by KBank.

Persons who may have a Shareholding
Conflict fIntyeres ¢ Relationship with KBank Proportion in
cto MTFH
The estate administrator of M.R. Sam-aungvarn Lamsam, mother of 2.26%
Mr. Bancha Lamsam CEO of KBank, is the estate administrator
Phatra Samphant Co., Ltd. Mr. Banyong Lamsam, the Chairman of 6.01%
KPBank, Mr. Banthoon Lamsam, the Chief
Executive Officer {CEO) of KBank, and
their relatives hold shares together more
than 20% of the total issued shares of this
company
Nithi Thamrong Co., Ltd. Mr. Banthoon Lamsam, the CEO of 0.19%
KBank, and his relatives hold shares
together more than 30% of the total issued
shares of this company
Prutthithada Co., Lid. Mr. Krisada Lamsam, EVP of KBank and 0.24%
his relatives hold shares together more than
30% of the total issued shares of this
company
Ms. Chanatip Chutrakul Sibling of Mr. Banyong Lamsam who is 0.09%
the Chairman of KBank
Mr. Pairote Lamsam Father of Mr. Krisada Lamsam who is the 4.49%
Executive Vice President (EVP) of KBank
Mr. Banyong Lamsam Chairman of KBank 3.04%
Ms. Supanya Lamsam Sibling of Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam who is a 1.72%
director of KBank
Mr. Banthoon Lamsam Director of KBank 0.28%
M.R. Sam-aungvarn Lamsam | Mother of Mr. Banthoon Lamsam who is 0.76%
the CEO of KBank
Pol. Gen. Pow Sarasin Director of KBank 0.08%
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Persons who may have a
Conflict of Interest

Relationship with KBank

Shareholding
Proportion in

MTFH

Khunying Chatchani Sibling of Mr. Banyong Lamsam who is 0.22%

Chatikavanij the Chairman of KBank

Ms. Supawan Panyarachun Sibling of Mr. Banthoon Lamsam who is 0.28%
the CEO of KBank

Ms. Chujit Sibunruang Sibling of Mr. Banyong Lamsam who is 0.27%
the Chairman of KBank

Ms. Sumanthana Mokkavej Sibling of Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam who is a 1.79%
director of KBank

Ms. Rujiraporn Wanglee Sibling of Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam who is a 1.71%
director of KBank

Mr. Yutti Lamsam Sibling of Mr, Banyong Lamsam, who is 0.98%
the Chairman of KBank

Total 24.41%

Details of persons who may have a conflict of interest with KBank and still hold shares in

MTI after the acquisition of MTFH’s addition ordinary shares by KBank.

Persons who may have a Shareholding
. y Relationship with KBank Proportion in
Conflict of Interest MTI

Mr. Pairote L.amsam Father of Mr. Krisada Lamsam who is the 2.86%
Executive Vice President (EVP) of KBank

Mr. Banyong [.amsam Chairman of KBank 2.32%

Phatra Samphant Co., Ltd. Mr. Banyong Lamsam, the Chairman of 1.49%
KBank, Mr. Banthoon Lamsam, the Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ) of KBank, and
their relatives hold shares together more
than 20% of the total issued shares of this
company

Ms. Rujiraporn Wanglee Sibling of Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam who is a 1.18%
director of KBank

Ms. Supanya Lamsam Sibling of Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam who is a 1.17%
director of KBank

Ms. Supawan Panyarachun Sibling of Mr. Banthoon Lamsam who is 0.87%
the CEQ of KBank

Mr, Banthoon Lamsam Director of KBank 0.86%

Ms. Sumanthana Mokkavej Sibling of Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam who is a 0.75%

director of KBank
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Persons who may have a Shareholding

Conflict of Interest Relationship with KBank Pmp[:l/[':;‘llon in
Mr. Yuttt Lamsam Sibling of Mr. Banyong Lamsam, who is 0.63%
the Chairman of KBank
Ms. Varangkana Lamsam Sibling of Mr. Banthoon Lamsam who is 2.33%
the CEO of KBank
Total 13.06%

The shareholding structure that has a stake of persons who may have a conflict of interest in excess of
10% of the total issued shares in MTFH and MTI is not aligned with the shareholding structure
specified under rules of the Capital Market Supervisory Board regarding the application for, and
approval of, the offer for sale of newly issued shares, unless the company is able to prove that the
shareholding structure is in the best interests of KBank. The Stock Exchange of Thailand also applies
this rule in considering issues of conflict of interest between listed companies.

From the negotiations to acquire additional shares in MTFH, KBank cannot acquire all of MTFH’s
issued shares. The persons who may have a conflict of interest have insisted in maintaining part of
their stake in both MTFH and MTI. However, the Board of Directors (only the directors with no
interest in this transaction astended and voted in the meeting and the directors with an interest, namely
Mr. Banyong Lamsam, Pol.Gen. Pow Sarasin, Mr. Banthoon Lamsam, and Ms. Sujitpan Lamsam, did
not attend and had no right to vote) considered that the shareholding structure will be in the Bank’s
best interest, given the following reasons:

(a) the acquisition of additional shares in MTFH will lead to KBank and its sharehoiders’ best
interest due to the fact that KBank already distributes the life insurance and non-life insurance
products of MTL and MTI. KBank’s increased stake in MTFH will increase economic benefit
from the manufacturing of such profit;

(b) KBank’ Life and Non-Life Insurance Distribution Agreements with MTL and MTI are of a
general style with solid and transparent conditions specified;

(c) the shareholding of persons who may have a conflict of interest in MTFH and MTI existed
prior to KBank’s acquisition of the additional shares in MTFH. After the transaction, the
aforementioned shareholders will notably decrease their stake in MTFH (from 38.55% to
24 41%); and

(d) the persons who may have a conflict of interest have long-term, and extensive knowledge
and experience in the development and management of the life and non-life insurance
businesses. They will undoubtedly contribute to the companies’ long-term competitiveness
and growth.

In addition, there will be a negotiation with persons who may have a conflict of interest of KBank in

the group of MTL and MTI in regard to rules and conditions on prohibiting or limiting the operation of
life insurance business, which is in competition with MTL’s business.

DISCLOSURE 19




113  Group A Persons

The details of the Group A Persons in this Information Memorandum are as follows:

16.
17.
18.
15.
20.
21
22
23,
24,
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.

30.

List of Group A Persons
Estate of Mr. Bancha Lamsam
The Phatra Samphat Company Limited
Nitithumrong Company Limited
Pirakit Company Limited
Tawara Company Limited
Pipattanasin Company Limited
Pruedthithada Company Limited
Mrs. Chanatip Chutrakul

Aran Unregistered Parinership

. Traisit Unregistered Partnership
. Mr. Photipong Lamsam
. Mr. Pairote Lamsam

. Mr. Poomchai Lamsam

Mr. Dhongchai Lamsam

. Mr. Banyong Lamsam

Ms. Supanya Lamsam

Mr. Bantheon Lamsam

M.R. Sam-Aung Vam Lamsam
Khunying Chamnonsri Ratnin
Mrs. Tweenuj Changtrakul

Mr. Taritpon Changtrakul

Mr. Kanop Changtrakul

Mrs. Thanimpong Wongvasu
Mr. Suebpong Chalit-aporn
Mrs. Wipa Ratanawarah

Ms. Wanna Chalit-apomn

Mrs, Warin Sakulthai

Mr. Jittapan Chalit-aporn

Mr. Chai Chalit-aporn
Khunying M.R. Narawadee Chaichanien
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31
32
33
34.
3.
36.
37
38.
39.
40,
41.
42,
43,
44,
45,
46.
47.
48.
49.
50.
5L
52.
53.
54.

55.

List of Group A Persons
Pol.Gen. Pow Sarasin
Mr. Boripan Noonpakdee
Khunying M.R. Chatchanee Chatikavanij
Mr. Vasant Chatikavamyj
Mr. Vichaya Chatikavanij
Mr. Siripongs Kalayanrooj
Mrs. Supawan Panyarachun
Mrs. Chuchitr Sibunruang
Mr, Apiruk Chutrakul
Mr. Apichart Chutrakul
Mrs. Sumuntana Mokkhavesa
Mrs. Rujiraporn Wanglee
Mr, Supachai Wanglee
Mr. Suchart Wanglee
Mr. Suchin Wanglee
Mr. Surajit Wanglee
Mr. Suphot Wanglee
Mrs. Tawara Wanglee
Thongpoon Wanglee Foundation
Ms. Pimprapai Bisalputra
Mr. Danaitanit Phisanbut
Mr. Pitipong Phisanbut
Mr. Thamrongrat Phisanbut
Mr. Pujapong Phisanbut

Mr. Yutti Lamsam
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Attachment 3

Opinion of the Audit Committee Meeting in relatien to the Acquisition of Additional

Ordinary Shares in Muang Thai Fortis Holding Company Limited and the Engagement in the
Connected Transactions of KASIKORNBANK Public Company Limited

The Audit Committee meeting of KASIKORNBANK Public Company Limited (“KBank”),
held on 25 February 2009 has considered the plan to expand the investment of KBank in Muang Thai
Life Assurance Company Limited (“MTL”), by acquiring additional ordinary shares in Muang Thai
Fortis Holding Company Limited (“MTFH”), which is 3 Thai company holding shares in MTL for
75% of the total shares issued by MTL. The investment is for KBank to increase its shareholding in
MTFH up to approximately 51% of the total shares issued by MTFH, which will result in KBank
holding approximately 38.25% of the economic interest in MTL.

The acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH is considered as a connected
transaction under section 89/12 of the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 together with its
amendments thereto, the Notification of Capital Market Supervisory Board, and the Notification of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, which are in relations the engagement in the connected
transactions, and that the calculated value of the transaction, in accordance with such Notifications
regarding the connected transaction, shall have a value or a size of a transaction exceeding 20 Million
Baht or exceeding 3% of KBank’s total net tangible assets, whichever is higher (calculated based on
the preliminary value of the abovementioned transaction of 7,244 Million Baht, the total amount of
shares of 19,191,635 shares and the amount of shares belonging to the connected persons of 9,569,749
shares). With the value or the size of the said transaction, KBank is required to disclose information
pertaining its engagement in the connected transactions, including obtaining approval from KBank’s
shareholders for the engagement in the transactions. In order to obtain an approval of the shareholders
meeting, the meeting must pass a resolution with at least three-fourths of the total votes of
shareholders attending and having a right to vote, excluding sharcholders who have a conflict of
interest in the matter.

In this regard, KBank has appointed Kim Eng Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
as an independent financial advisor, to provide the Audit Committee and/or KBank’s shareholders
with an independent opinion on the reasonableness, benefit and conditions of the connected
transaction, in relation to the acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH, and KBank’s
engagement in connected transactions.

The Audit Committee held a meeting on 25 February 2009 to consider the acquisition of
additional ordinary shares in MTFH, and the independent financial advisor’s opinion report, taking
into consideration KBank’s business strategic direction, KBank’s study on the expansion of KBank’s
current business to life assurance business, the benefit KBank will obtain, and the terms and
conditions from the negotiations with MTFH’s existing shareholders, who was previously interested in
selling MTFH shares only, in conjunction with the value of the transaction of not more than 7,244
Million Baht {calculated from the value of MTL and MTI for the part which MTFH holds shares in),
plus cash and asset, minus liabilities of MTFH, at the closing date of the transaction'. The valuation of
MTFH is based mainly on MTFH’s investments in MTL, Muang Thai Insurance Public Company
Limited (“MTI"), and Muang Thai Broker Company Limited {“MTB”), including cash and other
investments as per the company’s structure at the closing date. The value of MTL is evaluated by
actuarial approach, which is the discounted cash flow method that estimates value of MTL’s current
and future business. The valuation is then compared with standard financial ratio of life assurance

! The price of MTFH’s shares, which KBank is to purchase, may be rezdjusted depending on the results of the Due Diligence
investigation and the relevant negotiations, as well as the readjustment from the effects of the variations of Muang Thai
Broker Company Limited (“MTB")’s book value as of 31 March 2009; and the variations in MTFH’s cash, assets and
liabilities at the closing date of the transaction.



companies, including Price per Eaming (P/E) ratio, Price per Book Value {P/BV) ratio, and Price per
Embedded Value (P/EV) ratio of life assurance companies in Thailand and foreign countries with
similar industry landscape to MTL’s. The value of MTI, which is a listed company on the SET, is
evaluated based on various factors, including its market value and book value, compared with standard
financial ratio of life assurance companies, including Price per Earning (P/E) ratio and Price per Book
Value (P/BV) ratio. KBank evaluates the value of MTB based on its book value.

In this regard, the independent financial advisor has presented the advantages of the
investment, which includes the potential growth of life assurance business, and the potential and
suitability of MTL to KBank’s business. There are also disadvantages, which includes the risk which
arises from being objected by other shareholders in the future, the shareholding structure which
comprises of shareholders who may have conflict of interest with KBank, which may result in the
necessity to disclose information pertaining the connected transaction between KBank and such
persons, the cross shareholding structure between KBank and MTL, the gap between transactions
engagement period, and the impact on KBank’s financial cost. In this connection, KBank has prepared
measures to mitigate such risks through relevant contract negotiations. In addition, the financial
advisor is of the view that the value of the transaction is fair and justifiable.

In this respect, the additional ordinary shares in MTFH will be acquired via the procedures
where: (1) KBank will subscribe for, or acquire, the new ordinary shares issued through capital-
increase by MTFH, based on the proportion of shareholding, as well as new ordinary shares left
unsubscribed by the existing sharcholders; and (2) KBank will acquire shares from the existing
shareholders, whereby some of the existing shareholders are connected persons of KBank. After the
said acquisition of MTFH’s additional ordinary shares, persons with conflict of interest of KBank will
hold shares in MTFH (which will become KBank’s subsidiary), and Muang Thai Insurance Public
Company Limited (“MTI”) (which will become KBank’s affiliated company), of more than 10%,
whereby such persons will hold shares in MTFH and MTI at approximately 24.41% and 13.06%,
respectively. In this respect, the Audit Committee has considered, and is of the opinion that such
shareholding structure in MTFH and MTI will be in the best interest of KBank. In addition, prior to
the abovementioned KBank’s acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH, adjustment will be
made to MTFH’s shareholding structure. MTFH is to sell all the shares it holds in Muang Thai Real
Estate Public Company Limited, Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited and Muang Thai Group
Service Company Limited, to another holding company, which will be newly incorporated.

The Audit Committee has considered, and is of the opinion, that the acquisition of additional
ordinary shares in MTFH will result in the greatest benefit for KBank and its shareholders, and it is
also based on a fair and justifiable transaction. The Audit Committee, therefore, approved that the
acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH, be further proposed to KBank’s Board of Directors
meeting and shareholders meeting, for their consideration and approval of the engagement in the
connected transactions of KBank. In this connection, the shareholders may use the report of the
independent financial advisor in making their decisions. The final decision shall mainly rest on the
discretions of the shareholders.
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TheAmenmnthoIinfnnulGnrlM_ip f Shareholders N Id on 8 April 2
Regarding the Issuance and Sale of Debentures of the B
Iltem Previous New

Types All types and forms of debeniures (including but | All types and forms of debentures (including, but
not limited to subordinated debentures, not limited to, subordinated debentures,
unsubordinated debentures, secured debentures, unsubordinated debentures, secured debentures,
unsecured  debentures  andfor  derivatives unsecured  debentures, andfor  derivative
debentures) depending on market condition &t debentures) depending on market conditions at
such time the debentures are to be offered. such time the debentures are to be issued and

offered.

Amoun nd | Principal amount of debentures, including The principal amount of debentures at any time,

Currency debentures issued but not redeemed, at any time including debentures issued but not yet
shall not exceed US$ 3 billien. Debentures may be redeemed, shall not exceed Baht 170.000 million,
issued in US currency, Thai currency or other | The debentures may be issued in Thai currency,
currency in equivalent amount as applied by US currency, or other currency in an gquivalent
exchange rate prevailing at such time the amount, based on the exchange rate prevailing at
debentures are issued and offered. such time the debentures are issued and offered.

Offer for Sale The debentures shall be offered for sale to the | The debentures shall be offered for sale to the

public and/or on a private placement basis, andfor
to institutional investors in Thailand and overseas
according to naotifications of SEC andfor Office of
the SEC and/or other related rules and regulations
in force at the time the debentures are offered.
Debentures may be offered to investors in all types
and also be offered in whole or in part, andfer as a
program, and/or in revolving nature. The
debentures may be issued and offered separately
from, in combination of, or together with other

securities.

public andfor on a private placement basis, and/or
to institutional investors andfgor high net-worth
[nvestars in Thaitand andfor overseas, according
to the notifications of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and/or the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission andior the Capital Market
Supervisory  Board

notifications, rules, and regulations in force at the

and/ or other relevant
time the debentures are issued and offered. The
debentures may be offered to investors of any type
and may be offered in whole or in part, and/or as a
program, and/or on a revolving basis. The
debentures may be issued and offered separatety
from, in combination with, or together with other

securities.




Item

Previous
§

New

or Yield

interest and yield shall depend on market condition
at such time the debentures are issued and offered
or under terms and conditions of the debentures
issued at such time. This shafl be subject to
notifications of SEC or the Office of the SEC and/or
other related notifications, nies and regulation in
force at such time the debentures are issued and

offered.

Interest or vield shall depend on market
conditions at such time the debentures are issued
and offered or shall be in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the debentures issued at
such time. It shall also be subject to the
notifications of the Securiies and Exchange
Commission and/or the Office of the Securities
and Exchange Commission apdfor the Capital
Market Supervisory Board and/or other televant
notifications, rules, and regulations in force at

such time the debentures are issued and offered.

Redemption

Period

Redemption period shall depend on market
condition at such time the debentures are issued

and offered or upon dissolution of the Bank,

The redemption pericd shall depend on market
conditions at such time the debentures are issued

and offered or upon the dissolution of the Bank.

Early

Debenture holders may or may not have the right
to request the Bank to redeem any debentures
issued prior to the redemption period. The Bank
may orf may not have the right to make early
redemption. This shall be subject to terms and

conditions of the debentures issued at such time.

Debenture holders may or may not have the right
to request that the Bank redeem any issued
debentures prior to the redemption period. The
Bank may or may not have the right to make early
redemption. This shall be subject to the terms and

conditions of the debeniures issued at such time.

- The Board of Direclors or a person or persons
designated by the Board of Directors shall be
enirusted with power and authority 1o determine
the details in connection with debentures,
among other things, types, names, interest
rates, maturity. redemption  period as well as

details regarding an offer  for sale including

but not limited to price, method and period to

offer and allot such debentures.

- The Board of Directors or a person or persons
designated by the Board of Directors shall be
entrusted with power and authority to determine
the details in connection with the debentures,
including, among other things, the types,
names, interest rates, maturity, and redemption
periods, as well as details regarding offers for
sale, including, but not limited to, price, method,

and period to offer and allot such debentures.




Item

Previous

New

- The Board of Directors, the Management

Committee, Chief Executive Officer, President or

other person or their designated person shall

be empowered to do the following:

(1)

To appoeint financial advisors, and/or
underwriter, andfor credit rating agencies
to rate credit of issuerfand or security,
andfor other person  where suclh

appointment is required under related rules

-and reguiations and or in any event as they

deem fit,

To contact, negotiate, enter into, execute,
and amend contracts andfor documents as
well as to contact, furnish information,
submit documeniation to the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, the
Bank of Thailand andfor other agency
involved with issuance and offer of such
debentures and to do any and all acts and
things necessary or requisite as they deem

fit.

The Board of Directors, the Management
Committee, Chief Executive Officer, President
or other persons or their designated
person{s) shall be empowered to do the

following:

(1) appoint  financial  advisors,  andfor

underwriters, and/or credit rating agencies
to rate the credit of issuers and/or security,
andf/or other persons, where such
appointment is required under relevant
rules and fegulations and/or in any event as

they deem fit; and

(2) contact, negotiate, enter into, execute, and

amend contracts and/or documents, as
well as to contact, furnish information, and
submit documentation lo the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, the
Capital _Market Supervisory Board, the
Bank of Thailand and/or any other agency
involved with the issuance and offer of such
debentures, and to do any and alf acts and
things necessary or requisite, as they deem

fit.
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Executive Summary
Management Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ending December 31, 2008

In 2008, KASIKORNBANK continued to place significant emphasis on satisfying the needs of
all customers at each stage of their fives by offering complete fmancial services with unsurpassed
quafity. Under this customer-centric approach, we have developed the "K Now” project, featuring
complete knowledge in financial service defivesies that underlie our philosophy of
"KASIKORNBANKGROUP: A People to Simplify your Life”. We also aim to be the 'Best’ in service
within all of our six related financial services businesses under the "One-Brand-Six-Company”
concept of KASIKORNBANKGROUP.

With regards 1o operating performance in 2008, the Bank's consolidated net income totaled
Baht 15,333 milion, increasing by Bam 328 million, or 2.13 percent, over 2007, due mainly to
increases in net interest and dividend income, as well as nor-interest mcome. Qur higher net inferest
and dividend income was primarily the result of loan expansion, whie increases in non-interest
income were mainly attributed to growing fees, as well as gains on exchange and investments.

The Bank's consolidated assets, at year-end 2008, was Baht 1,303,554 million, increasing by
Baht 309,036 million, or 31.07 percent, over year-end 2007, due largely to rapid loan growth. As of
December 31, 2008, the Bank's conscfidated loans equaled Baht 904,008 million, growing by Baht
141,503 million, or 18.56 percent, over year-end 2007. Our net and gross NPL ratios were 1.47
percent and 3.09 percent, respectively, down from 2.29 percent and 4.45 percent recorded at the
end of 2007. Consolidated liabiities of the Bank, at the end of 2008, totaled Baht 1,189,892 milicn,
increasing by Baht 295,370 milfion, or 33.02 percent, over the year, due mainly to higher deposits.
Deposits, as of December 31, 2008, amounted to Baht 967,950 million, rising by Baht 184,128 million,
or 23.49 percent, over the end of 2007. Tofal consolidated shareholders’ equity equaled Baht
113,662 milion, growing by Baht 13,667 million, or 13.67 percent, over the year, in tandem with the
increase in nel operating income for 2008. The capital adequacy ratio of the Bank was 15.05
percent, which is significantly higher than the minimum 8.50 percent required by the Bank of Thailand
(BoT). Our Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital amounted to 9.84 and 5.21 percent, respectively.

With respect to our business operations in 2008, the Bank's core businesses continued to show
positive performance. The high loan growth was seen as broad-based, ted by SME business loans,
followed by corporate and retail business loans, respectively. tn addition, we eamed higher fees from
our risk management products. However, treasury operations during 2008 registered a decrease in
total interest and dividend income, due mainly to faffing interest rates, and a decrease in investments.

" Inthe Annual Report, this information is shown in the "Management Report” section.



With regards to the operating performance of our refated financial services K Companies,
KFactoring and KLeasing saw major increases in their credit extension. Moreover, at KAsset, the
growth of the assets under management (AUM) was significantly higher than the market average.
Exceptional performance was alsc achieved by KSecurities. After only three years in operation,
KSecurities was honored with the "Best Securities Company” award for 2008 by the Stock Exchange
of Thadand (SET). The company's marke! share in the securities brokerage business, gauged by
trading volumes, jumped to 26" place in 2008 from 30° place during 2007.

To achieve the highest operational efficiency within KASIKORNBANKGROUP, we have
continued to develop all necessary support functions, bit with particudar emphasis on human
resources and Information Technology (IT). Our risk management has also been enhanced in every
dimension to dampen undesirable impacts from the ongoing global economic and financial crisis.
The Bank's investment strategies actually reduced ouwr foreign investment portfolio well before the
outbreak of the crisis in mid-2007, and we did not have any exposwre to sub-prime morigage
securities. To minimize losses from the even! of default, our credit risk management processes have
been streamlined. Stress testing has been adopted to estimate expected losses, and reqular
resulting reports have been presented to senior management for imely deciston-making. In the area
of operational risk, the Bank has continued to implement our plan for Business Continuity
Management (BCM) throughout 2008 1o mitigate and control the impact of incidents that could cause
major disruptions to our business operations. Moreover, we have successfully implemented Based Il
as our designated capital calculation method to cushion against credit and operational risks, as
required by the BoT. As of December 31, 2008, we have begun fo maintain requlatory capital in
accordance with Basel [l principles, and our capital adequacy ratio remains well in excess of the BoT
minimum requirement. This confims the Bank's solid financial strength, thus increasing market
confidence in the sufficiency of our capital against present and future charges in the economic
environment and BoT requiations.

Due to our resolute inten? toward extensive business development and our awareness of good
corporate govemance, KASIKORNBANK, in 2008, was awarded with many marks of recognition from
both domestic and foreign institutions.
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1. Overview

1.1 Overview of Economy, Banking Industry and Regulatory Changes
o Thailand's Economy in 2008 and Outlook for 2009

Thailand's economy grew 2.6 percent year-on-year in 2008, down from the 4.9 percent
increase of 2007. This slower growth was due to weaker domestic spending and a drop in income
from tourism as a result of hesghtened domestic poliical wncenainty, as well as falling trade and
current account balances due to the severe global economic slowdown,

In 2009, we expect that the Thai economy will grow just (.2 percent over 2008, or even post a
contraction of 1.5 percent in our worse case scenario, with a close walch over the global economic
developments, especially in the U.S. Meanwhile, domestic inflation is expected to edge downward to
a range of -1.0 to 1.0 percent, from the 5.5 percent of 2008, due mainly to an over-year drop in od
prices.

Thailand Economic Growth Forecast

{Units: Yeamn—ygar percentage change, or as othensise 'ndicaletj)
PP Y e ' :‘w'.: ;: ; 0 - 4, .jéw:;‘;:
Private Consumption 0.2100.3 25

Investment 5.51040 1.1
Govemment Consumption 6.8-8.5 0.4
Exports -16.0t0-10.0 16.8
Imports 17.010-115 26.4
Trade Balance (USD bilions) 2028 0.2
Current Account {USD billions) 1430 92
101010 5.5
SHbTORC(C ';E;»‘aj ..4,%.( ;ﬂg@ i >
KORN RESEARCH CENTER CO., LTD., and the Office of the National Economic and Social

Devebpment Board (NESDB)

Amid rising deflationary risk and near-term threats from the economic slowdown, the Bank of
Thaitand (BoT) will likely continue with their aggressive monetary policy easing, especially during the
first half of 2009 when inflation will probably hit its lowest level. In these times of rising economic
uncertainty, commercial banks wil fikely adopt a more cautious tone in their ioan extension. At the
same time, they will probably seek to maintain sufficient liquidity to ensure smooth operations over the
remainder of the year.



o Banking Industry and Competition

In 2008, Thai commercial banking net income increased considerably over 2007, due to
higher net interest and non-inerest incomes, as well as significant decreases in allowances for
doubtful accounts and losses on deb restructuring, as Thai commercial banks had completed setting
aside provisioning under the 1AS 39 intemational accounting standards, in accordance with the BoT
requirement in 2007. Higher net interest income was due in part to higher loan growth than deposits.
Loan growth accelerated significantly in the first half of 2008, but began to slow noticeably late in the
year, as a result of negative factors that include domestic political tensions and the U.S. sub-prime
crisis that has sent a widespread impact global wide. As of the end of 2008, net loans of the 14 Thai
commercial banks grew 12.81 percent over the end of 2007, compared to 9.86 percen growth in
deposits.

The ratio of net NPLs to total loans at the end of 2008 stood at 3.2 percent, down from 4.30
percent at the end of 2007. This was in fine with the decrease in the ratio of gross NPLs to total loans
at 5.65 percent, down from 7.86 percent at the end of 2007. These improvements reflected Thai
banks' efforts to maintain desirable asset quafity, though net NPLs rose during the year amid the
economic downturn. Meanwhile, their aggregate capital adequacy ratio (CAR) dropped slightly in the
final quarter of 2008, due primarly to the implementation of the Basel Il Capital Accord where
commercial banks are required to set aside more capital against operational risk, in addition to that
for credit and marke risks. Nonetheless, the aggregate CAR was stll higher than the BoT's regulatory
minimum requirement, and remains sufficient to accommodate fulure business expansions. At the
same time, new regulatory standards help garner greater confidence toward Thai banking stabiity.

In 2009, the Thai banking operations will Ekely continue to face risks, especially from the
global and Thai economic slowdown. Therefore, Thai commercial banks may become more cautious
in their business operations, particularly by giving priority to the quafity rather than the volume of
lending, as wel as avoiding price competition both in deposit and loan products, in order to sustain
profitability. Meanwhile, emphasis wil fikely be placed on non-interest income, especially fee-based
income.



o Regulatory Changes'
Major requlatory changes pertaining to the Bank's business operations in 2008 are
summarized in the following:

o Financial nstitutions Business Act B.E.2551

Announced in the Govemment Gazette on February 5, 2008, this Act has been in force
officially since August 3, 2008. It increases supervisory authority of the Bank of Thailand (BoT) over
commercial banks, as well as finance and credit foncier companies in a unified direction. The new
law prescribes more extensive requirements pertaining fo the shareholding structure, directors,
managers or other authorized persons, supervision and audit, comective actions of financial standing
or operation of financial institutions, and punishments.

The new law helps provide a level playing field for business undertakings among financial
institutions, leading to equality and transparency in supervision under an improved standard in
accordance with the changing business surroundings, and thus paving the ways for greater
efficiency in the authorities' supervision of financial institutions. As for KASIKORNBANK, we found no
significant impact from the enactment of the Financial Institutions Business Act on our core business
undertakings, which have already been compfied fully with all of the BoT regulations.

o Deposit Protection Agency Act B.E.2551

Announced in the Government Gazette on Fehruary 13, 2008, this Act has been in force
officially since August 11, 2008. The current deposit guarantee, under a resolution of the Cabinet,
has provided full protection for depositors, but at the expense of the govemment's fiscal health and
without an appropriate mechanism for dealing with aifing financial institutions. As a result, a new,
bmited protection scheme has been introduced to lessen the govemment's fiscal burdens as
aforesaid.

Enactmert of this law has not had any significant impact on the Bank, as in the first year after
the effective date, the Deposit Protection Agency stil provides full deposit prolection per the
outstanding balance as shown in each account. However, as some depositors might change their
savings preferences toward investment products, we have therefore offered a wide range of savings
and investment products of the Bank and K Companies to meet the needs of these customers.
Despite the gradual reductions in deposit prolection by the Deposit Protection Agency in the future,
depositors’ trust in the Bank will likely remain intact in ight of our solid financial standing and positive
image.

' Details on olher imporiant regulatory changes during 2008 can be found in the MD&A Repont for the period ending
March 31, June 30, and September 30, 2008.



e Additional Deduction on Personal Income Tax for lnvestments info Retrement Mutual Funds

(RMF) and Long Term Equity Funds (LTF)

The Ministry of Finance recently enforced Ministerial Requlation No. 267 (B.E 2551), dated
November 21, 2008, by vidue of the Revenue Code, regarding additional exemption of personal
income tax for investments into Retirement Mutual Funds (RMFs) and Long Term Equity Funds (LTFs)
raising to a maximum of Baht 700,000, from Bakt 500,000 previously:

1} Subscribers to RMF units between October 1, 2008, and December 31, 2008, are
eligible for a deduction of 15 percent from their taxable income for the year. These RMF
investments, incuding those in a provident fund or the Govemment Pension Fund, must
not exceed Baht 700,000.

2) Subscribers to LTF units between October 1, 2008, and December 31, 2008, are eligible
for a deduction of 15 percent from their taxable income for the year, or a maximum of
Baht 700,000.

The above regulation came into effect on December 16, 2008, for the 2008 tax year only. In
the following year, RMF and LTF subscribers will remain efigible for the previous income tax
deduction not exceeding Baht 500,000.

This measure likely helps revive investment in the Thai stock market that has been
significantly affected by the U.S. economic crisis. Along with this, KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT
CO., LTD., a subsidiary of KASIKORNBANKGROUP, has also received some benefits from its
enactment through higher assets under management (AUM).

o (Changes in Accounting Standards Relating to KASIKORNBANK's Operations

The Federation of Accounting Profession (FAP) has developed Thai Accounting Standards
(TASs) to meet Inemational Accounting Standards (IASs) and Intemnational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs). In 2007, the FAP revised some accounting standards, issued some new ones,
and put them in use for fmancial statements beginning on or after January 1, 2008. Accordingly, the
Bank and our subsidiaries have prepared financial reports meeting the new accounting standards,
where we found no significant change to our financial statements and business operations. These
new accounting standards include:

— Thai Accounting Standard No. 43 {Revised 2007) Regarding Business Combinations

— Thai Accounting Standard No. 25 (Revised 2007) Regarding Cash Flow Statements

—  Thai Accounting Standard No. 28 (Revised 2007) Regarding Leases

- Thai Accounting Standard No. 35 (Revised 2007) Regarding Financial Statement

Presentation



— Thai Accounting Standard No. 39 (Revised 2007) Regarding Accounting Policy,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

— Thai Accounting Standard No. 41 (Revised 2007) Regarding Interim Financial
Statements

— Thai Accounting Standard No. 51 Regarding Imangible Assets

1.2 Direction of Business Operations
o KASIKORNBANK in 2008 and Outlook for 2009

In 2008, KASIKORNBANK (KBank) continued to place significant emphasis on satisfying the
needs of all customers at each stage of their fves by offering complete financial services with
unsurpassed quafity under a customer-centric approach. The Bank, in this regard, surveyed the
customer needs and provides our expertise covering seven customer segments, including Mudt-
Corporate Business, Large Corporate Business, Medium Business, Small and Micro Business,
Signature, Middle Income, as well as Mass customers. The survey focused primarily on the
customers’ satisfaction in financial service requirements, including their needs for other services,
which have been developed as the "K Now” project, featuring complete knowledge in financial
seqvice defiveries that underfie our philosophy — "KASIKORNBANKGROUP: A People to Simpliy your
Life". Itis the phiosophy for unsurpassed service quality, covering a wide range of knowledge and
information, as well as advisory services for every Efestyle and business venture. [n addition to these
complete knowledge-based services, we also support the development of community networks.
KASIKORNBANKGROUP (KGroup) will serve as a fim foundation for coordinating and gathering
entreprenewrs in the same or related business Enes to strengthen sustainable business communities.
This is achieved through concerted efforts of KGroup staff, in addition to strong IT capabifiies with an
aim of providing exceflent service deliveries for both individual and business customers.

As for corporate customer services, in 2008, the Bank aims at providing complete financial
service sotutions, folowing our "Boundless Business” concept. SME business customers remained a
primary focus for KGroup, through the offer of complete senvice defiveries under the K SME Care
project, which covers capital supports, advisory services, as well as provision of information and
knowledge necessary for decision-making in business undertakings. The project stemmed from the
Bank's resclute intention to maximize our available resources for SME business development for their
strengthened competitiveness, enhanced efficiency, and sustainable business expansion. Recently,
the Bank has emphasized product differentiations, including the development of imnovative features
of products and services, which would satisfy the needs of customers responsively and effectively,
and sustain their business viabiity. These products were, for instance, the K-SME Extend and K-Max
produts.



In addition to the aforementioned corporate and SME product and services, the Bank
realizes that there is large business potential in China. Aftes receiving a license for credit extension to
Chinese entrepreneurs, the Bank has inaugurated the first ful-branch operation in Shen Zhen, the
twin economic center of Hong Kong, which has been demarcated as a special economic zone for the
Mainland.

As for individual customers, last year, the Bank fully itegrated financial services to simpkfy
financial needs for individual customers, under our “Leisurely Life” concept. This was achieved
through the launch of information-oriented and [T-based services which assist financial plaming in
every stage of customers' fives. By eary 2008, KASIKORNBANK, in cooperation with our business
partner, Total Access Communication PCL. (DTAC), launched the new ATM SIM service. In addition,
the Bank extended our branch service hours (KBank Extra Hour), from 8.30-15.30 Hrs. during
Monday - Friday, to 8.30-16.30 Hrs. Monday-Thursday, and 8.30-18.00 Hrs. on Friday.

With an aim of providing comprehensive financial services, KASIKORNBANKGROUP —
comprising KASIKORNBANK, KASIKORN FACTORING CO., LTD. (KFactoring), KASIKORN ASSET
MANAGEMENT CO., LTD. (KAsset), KASIKORN RESEARCH CENTER CO., LTD. (KResearch),
KASIKORN SECURITIES PCL. (KSecurities) and KASEKORN LEASING CO., LTD. (KLeasing) — has
acted as a unified force to meet all financial needs of customers, with consistently refiable service
quality in every channel and at all time, through the synergy of our strategic positions. The direction of
our business operations can be summarized, as below:

» KFactoring offers factoring, commercial hire-purchase and leasing services. The company has
enjoyed good financial health and has continuously led the market, whie taking part in the
development of K-Supply Chain Solutions, offered by KBank. In 2008, KFactoring has
consistently emphasized the provision of factoring services, which have been included in
K-Supply Chain Solutions as a complete package of products and services for every segment of
our business customers,

o KAsset, as a leading asse! management company, has offered management services for mutual,
private and provident funds, with an aim of remairing in the top quartile of performance in fund
management, in addition to continually developing their service procedures for the highest
customer sabsfaction.

o KResearch has continuousty developed their research work in response to the information needs
of customers in all segments. In 2008, KResearch synergized their research mission with KGroup
business units and refined their research products to meeting the needs of all target customers.

o KSecurities provides brokerage and investment banking services. Despite having only launched
their business in 2005, the company has shown continuing progress in their business
undertaking as a securities broker. In their investment banking service, they have emphasized




comprehensive financial service deliveries, under coopesation with the investment banking
seqvice function of KBank. Meanwhile, KSecurities also aims at upgrading their research quality
to attract institutional investors, together with enhancing synerqy with KGroup business units to
strengthen their investment banking service.

o KLeasing offers autoeasing service, hire-purchase, dealer floorplan financing, and refinancing
sevice.  Despile having only launched in 2005, the company has shown continuous
improvement in their pedformance during the last two years, recording remarkable growth in
credit extension of more than 100 percent, which reflects the success of their poficy direction
towards high-quefity credit extension, as wel as the successful promotion of their brand
awareness in the hire-purchase and leasing markets. In addition to providing leasing products
and services, the company has aimed to strengthen both business and operational efficiency
through strategic synergy with KGroup business units for the highest customer satisfaction.

In 2009, the Bank will aim at fulfiling the customers' financial needs under the "One-Brand-
Six-Company” concept of KASIKORNBANKGROUP. The 'Best service defiveries will be assured
within all of our six related financial services businesses, with convenient and comprehensive
services in four domains, including Operation & Transaction, Saving & Investment, Funding &
Borrowing and Protection & Information. KGroup wil took forward to becoming a "Solution Bank”,
with knowledge and capability to identify and offer the best possible solutions and comprehensive
financial products for customers. AW of these efforts are based on the right understanding of
customers’ needs via analyses and planning with the aim to meet financial requirements of customers
in all seven segments.

In addition, the Bank has continued to develop all necessary support functions, particularly
human resources and IT facilities. We have also prepared for changes in the economic suroundings,
by realigning the annual loan growth target in fine with the couniry’s economic growth projection.
Satisfactory expansion in fee-based income will also be given higher priority. Risk management
guidefines have been adjusted in accordance with changes in the business environment. Of noteis a
prudent improvement in our credit poficy in fine with the current economic situation, particularty by
setting larget industries for credit extension and tightening credit underwriting criteria. The Bank wil
continue developing a stress-test process and define early-waming indicators in order to ensure
timely review of credit quality. A special team will be set up to oversee customers fkely to encounter
fiquidity risk, while we also im to improve our debt collection efficiency. Regarding transactions with
foreign counterparties, the Bank has developed a counterparty risk rating system, which helps control
financial transactions with our counterparties in accordance with their ratings. It should be noted that



the Bank- did not have any investments in Collaterafized Debt Obligations (CDOs) and other
mstruments related to sub-prime loans.
o Corporate Governance

KASIKORNBANK believes that good corporate govemance is a key faclor 1o sustain our
business undertaking and to enable the Bank to attain our ultimate goals for the maximum benefits of
shareholdess. It will tead to not only sound and transparent management, under a clear standard, to
enhance the Bank's market competitiveness, but also greater confidence among shareholders, both
local and foreign shareholders, and all involved parties. The Bank has, therefore, continued to place
significant emphasis on corporate govemnance. Some key actions in 2008 included:

Review of the Charters of the Board of Directors and Board Committees, Statement of
Corporate Govemance Principles, as well as the Statement of Business Conduct and
Code of Conduct, together with revision and development of the Code of Conduct
Pocketbook for alt employees in 2008.

Grant of right for shareholders to propose some issues beneficial to the Bank's
business undertaking for inclusion in the Annual General Meeting Agenda, according
to the criteria as specified by the Bank.

Grant of right for shareholders to propose qualified candidates according to the Bank's
regulations for election as directors at the Annual Genesal Meeting, under the critena
as specified by the Bank.

Assignment of an independent faw company to oversee transparency in the Annwal
Genera! Megting amangement, in accordance with the Statement of Corporate
Govemance Principles.

Preparation of video presentation on Corporate Governance (CG) and Corporate Social
Responsibiity (CSR) activities of KGroup for visitors and other interested persons.

Resolutely intent on continuing to promote corporate governance, in 2008, KASIKORNBANK
was awarded with many marks of recognition for outstanding corporate govemance. Of notes

included:

"Corporate Govemance Asia Recognition Awards 2008", by Corporate Governance
Asia magazine, Hong Kong, for the fourth consecutive year.

"Top Corporate Governance Report” and "R Excellence” awards from SEV Awards
2008, jointly organized between the Stock Exchange of Thadand (SET) and Money &
Banking magazine.



o Inthe latest quality assessment results of the Annual General Meetings of Shareholders
of fisted companies in 2008, undertaken by the Office of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) in comjunction with the Thai Investors’ Association and Listed
Companies’ Association, KASIKORNBANK won an “Excellent” score in the rating,
being honored as having exemplary Annual General Meeting amangement, for the
program’s third year unning.

o In the recent rating resulls for Cosporate Govemance Reports of Thai Listed
Companies (CGR), organized by the Thai Institute of Directors (H0D), the Bank's score
was a an “Excellent” level, receiving five stars from the National Corporate
Govemance Commitice.

o "Overall Best Company in Thadland for Corporate Govemance” award, as well as "Best
of Disclosure and Transparency” and "Best for Shareholders' Rights and Equitable
Treatment” awards, as a resuft of the Corporate Govemance Poll 2008 conducted by
Asiamoney magazine.



2. Operating Performance and Financial Position Analysis
2.1 Operating Performance

Operating Performance for 2008
(Undts: Mikon Baht)

Income from inerest and didends ” 60130 5516 461 831
(nterest expense 17694 18,085 (30) {2.16)
Net income from interest and dividends 243% 314N 5,005 13.37
Bad debts and doubtful accounts (reversal) 4,592 4,290 302 1.04
Loss on deb restructuring 3242 1,597 1646 1030
Non-interest income 2646 18897 3149 19.84
Non-interest expense 350N 29,029 6,042 2081
Income tax expense 6,844 6,407 437 6.82
Operating profi

(Before bad debts and doubtful accounts, loss on debt resticturing

and ncome tax expense) 30,01 21,299 2112 394
. Dalpm -, 5G| .

il

The Bank’s 2008 consolidated net income totaled Baht 15,333 milion, increasing by Baht
328 million, or 2.19 percent, as a result of our greater eamings ability, in tandem with increases in nel
interest and dividend income, as well as non-interest income. Net interest and dividend income for
2008 equaled Baht 42,436 million, fising by Baht 5,005 million, or 13.37 percent, over 2007, due
mainly to Baht 141,503 milEon loan expansion, equivalent to an increase of 18.56 percent. In addition,
non-interest income amounted to Baht 22,646 million, increasing by Baht 3,749 milfion, or 19.84
percent, owing mainy to the Baht 3,628 miion increase in fees, equivalent to 27.18 percent growth
over 2007, as well as gains on exchange and investments. This resufted in the higher ratio of non-
interest income to total income, reaching 27.36 percent in 2008. Meanwhile, our consolidated net
interest margins for 2008 dropped to 3.97 percent, lower than the 4.13 percent for 2007.

However, our non-interest expense rose by Baht 6,042 miffion, or 20.81 percent, over 2007,
owing mainly to higher personnel and other expenses, partculary promotional and public refations
expenditures, as well as expenses related to the Bank's strategic projects. Moreover, our income lax
expense increased by Baht 437 milfion, or 6.82 percent, over 2007. The Bank's consolidated
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operating profits (before adjustment for bad debts and doubtful accounts, as well as for income tax
expense} increased by Bat 2,712 million over 2007, equivalent to 9.94 percent growth over the year.
The Bank's consolidated income consists of two main components - interest and dividend
income and non-interest income. For 2008, shares of interest and dividend income to totaf income,
and non-intesest income to total income, equaled 72.64 percent and 27.36 percent, respectively,
compared to 74.61 percent and 25.39 percent for 2007, as follows:
Income Structure

(Unis: Milon Baht)
Percentd

Imeresl ‘and Dividend Income

1. Loans 52,050 62.88 45842 616
1.1 Loans 29,624 35.79 19232 2584
1.2 Overdrafis 11,555 13.96 1222 16.43
1.3 Bils 1081 1313 14,388 19.34

2. Interbank and money market items 2,1 2.4 38N 5.16
2.1 Deposis 303 0.37 3445 463
2.2 Loans 1,786 216 317 043
2.3 Securities purchased under resale agreements 1 0.01 IL 0.10

3. Hire purchase and fnancial leases 1,864 2.25 1,183 159

4, Investments 4115 497 4,650 6.25

Total Interest and Dividend Income 60,130 1264 55,516 1461

Non-Interest Income
1. Fee and service income

1.1 Acceptances, avals, and guarantees 1,209 146 1,009 1.36

1.2 Others 15,761 19.04 1234 16.57

2. Gains on exchange 3219 396 M 365

3. Other income 2,391 290 2,837 Ex )

Total Non-Interest Income 22,64 21.36 18,897 25.39
(i — @m W)

o Net Income from Interest and Dividends
The Bank's 2008 consofidated ret interest and dividend income was Baht 42,436 million,
increasing by Baht 5,005 milion, or 13.37 percent, over 2007.
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Net Income from Interest and Dividends

(Unﬂs Mion Bak)
mD W

Income from imerest and dnidends 60,130 55,516 4.614 LIS
o Loans 52050 45842 6,208 13.54
» interbank and money market lems 21N 381 (1,740  (45.30)
o Hire purchase and financial leases 1,864 118 681 51.51
o Investments 4115 4,650 (535 (1.51)
Interest expense 17634 18,085 {391) (2.16)
e R Il 0
% Net interest margin (NIM) 39 a1 06

The Bank's consolidated interest and dividend income for 2008 totaled Baht 60,130 milion,
rising by Baht 4,614 million, or 8.31 percent, over 2007. This was mainly attributable to a Batt 6,208
milfion increase in net income from loans, equivalent to 13.54 percent growth, due to loan growth of
18.56 percent when compared to the previous year. [nterest income from our hire purchase and
financial lease businesses also rose by Baht 681 mifion. In the meantime, interest expense fell by
Baht 391 million fom 2007 as a consequence of a decrease in benchmark interest rates, despite
higher deposits placed with the Bank.

Due 1o an over-year decline in retums on loans, as well as imerbark and money market
tems, our net interest margins for 2008 equaled 3.97 percem, dropping by 0.16 percent from 2007.

o Non-interest Income

The Bank's consolidated non-interest income for 2008 amounted to Baht 22,646 milkion, up
by Baht 3,749 million, or 19.84 percent, over 2007. This was mainly the resull of increased fees and
service income by Baht 3,628 milion or 27.18 percent, driven by growing fees from our card-
accepting, lending and bancassurance businesses. Also, gains on exchange and on investments
were up by Baht 562 milion and Baht 395 milion, respectively, over 2007.

o Non-interest Expense

The Bank's consofidated non-interest expense for 2008 was Baht 35,071 mikon, rising by
Baht 6,042 million, or 20.81 percent, over 2007. This was mainly attributable to higher expenses for
personnel and other expenses — including promotional and public relations expenditures, as well as
expenses related to the Bank's strategic projects.
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a Provisions for Doubtful Accounts and Losses on Debt Restructuring

Due to loan expansion and the changing economic environment, the Bank and subsidiaries,
during 2008, set aside allowances for doubtful accounts and incurred losses on debt restructuring
amounting to Baht 4,592 miEon and Baht 3,242 milion, respectively, showing respective increases of
Baht 302 miion and Baht 1,645 million, compared to 2007.

2.2 Financial Position Analysis

Units: Milbon Baht
1200000 d - o e e .
15% n
L R p— S I
% k.| ” %
800000 4 ------- ™
0000 ------f |- e
W% 8% 6% 1%
- | -
w0004 ---- .-
0 Dec. 31, 2007 Dec. 31, 2008
0 Loans and accned imerest receivables [ Deposs
O Cash o (=] Dlruh!iﬁsm
O Oherassats

o Assels

As of December 31, 2008, the Bank's consofidated assets totaled Baht 1,303,554 million,
mcreasing by Baht 309,036 million, or 31.07 percent, over the Baht 994,518 million at the end of 2007.
The increase in our consolidated assets was attributed mainly to rapid loan growth. As of December
31, 2008, the Bank's consolidated loans equaled Baht 904,008 mifion, growing by Baht 141,503
million, or 18.56 percent, over the Baht 762,505 million reported at the end of 2007, particularly in
SME Business loans.

Our net non-performing loans (Net NPLs) ratio to total loans, at the end of 2008, equaled 1.47
percent, down from 2.29 percent at the end of 2007. Similarly, the gross NPL ratio to total loans had
dropped to 3.09 percent at the end of 2008, from 4.45 percent a1 the end of 2007.
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Financial Ratios

: (Units; Perceni)
. ResEs TR O IO |

Net NPLs to Tota! Loans 147 2.9

Gross NPLs to Tolal Loans 309 445

Consolidated assets that had changed significantly from the previous year were:

o Interbank and money market items (on the asset side), at the end of 2008, amounted to
Baht 198,734 million, increasing by Baht 140,010 million, or 238.42 percent, over the
end of 2007.

o Net investments, at the end of 2008, equaled Baht 102,945 milion, rising by Baht 7,419
milion, or 7.77 percent, over the end of 2007.

Gains in interbank and money market items (on the asset side), as wel as net investments,
were the result of higher liquidity at the Bank, which was mainly caused by inflows of deposits and
short-term borrowings. The Bank, therefore, managed our increased fiquidity through investment
allocations into the repurchase market and high-yield govemment bonds.

Investments

Dec. 31, 2007 Dec. 31, 2008

O Goverrenen and State Ertesrise Securiies ¥ Priate Enteprise Oclt Instruments
W Foreign Dt Instrumets O Equty Seauriis

o Liabifiies and Shareholders' Equity

The consolidated liabéfities of the Bank, at the end of 2008, totaled Baht 1,189,892 million,
increasing by Baht 295,370 million, or 33.02 percent, over the Baht 894,523 million at the end of 2007.
Consolidated liabilities that had changed significantly from the previous year were:

e Deposits, as of December 31, 2008, amounted to Baht 967,950 millien, rising by Baht
184,128 million, or 23.49 percent, over the end of 2007. This was mainly atiributable to
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an increase in fixed-term deposits following the Bank's offering of various deposit
products.

o Borrowing, at the end of 2008, was Baht 138,159 mdion, increasing by Baht 80,059
million, or 137.80 percent, over the end of 2007. This was due mainly to an increase in
short-term borrowing, in the wake of our bl of exchange (B/E) issuances to provide
more alternatives in investments for the public and the Bank's depositors.

As of December 31, 2008, total consolidated sharehelders’ equity equaled Baht 113,662
million, growing by Baht 13,667 million, or 13.67 percent, over the Baht 99,995 million at the end of
2007. This increase in our equity was due to higher net cperating income for 2008 and the Baht 1,639
million increase in revaluation surplus on investments, which were larger than the Baht 4,787 miflion
itesim dividend pay-outs to our shareholders.

o Relationship Between Sources and Uses of Funds

At the end of 2008, the funding structure as shown in the Consolidated Financial Statement
comprised Baht 1,189,892 million in labiities and Baht 113,662 million in shareholders’ equity,
resulting in a debt-to-equity ratio of 10.47. The major source of funds on the Gabdiies side was
deposits, which equaled Baht 967,950 million, or 74.25 percent of the total. Other sources of funds
included interbank and money marke! items, plus borrewing, which accounted for 1.45 percent and
10.60 percent of the total, respectively.

The Bank and subsidiaries’ major use of funds was loans. At the end of 2008, loans
amounted o Baht 904,008 million, resufting in a loan-to-deposit ratio of 93.39 percent. As for the
remaining Gquidity, the Bank invested it in various selections of liquid assets, such as interbank and
money markel ilems, and investments in securities.

The major sources and uses of funds, as of the end of 2008, are categorized by contractual
maturity periods shown in the following table:

The Bank and Subsidiaries’ Major Sources and Uses of Funds
{Units: Mifion Baht)

vy .

<1Year 9§2,270 98.38 781,963 %.Tj 538,450 5056 451,876 59.26
> 1Yearto 5 Years 15,680 162 185 024 181,847 2012 15,12 20.69
> 5 Year - - . - 18,M 2032 182507 20.05
G2 o . 0
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The Bank and subsidiaries’ deposits with remaining maturities of less than or equal to 1 year
at the end of 2008 totaled Baht 952,270 milfion, increasing by Baht 170,307 million, or 21.78 percent,
over the Baht 781,963 milion at the end of 2007. Deposits with remaining maturities of over 1 year at
the end of 2008 were Baht 15,680 million, increasing by Baht 13,821 milion, or 743.46 percent, over
the Baht 1,859 million at the end of 2007.

At the end of 2008, the Bank and substdiaries had loans with remaining maturities of less
thar or equa to 1 year totaling Baht 538,450 million, rising by Baht 86,574 million, or 19.16 percent,
over the Baht 451,876 milion at the end of 2007. Loans with remaining maturities of over 1 year up to
5 years amounted to Balt 181,847 mifion, increasing by Baht 24,125 million, or 15.30 percent, over
the Baht 157,722 million at the end of 2007. In addition, loans with remaining maturities of over 5
years equaled Baht 183,711 milion, increasing by Baht 30,804 million, or 20.15 percent, over the
Baht 152,907 mi¥ion at the end of 2607.

From the above table, it can be seen that, as of December 31, 2008, deposils with remaining
maturities of less than or equal 1o 1 year were larger than loans with remaining maturities of tess than
or equal to 1 year, This is considered normal for commercial banks in Thailand, as they normally fund
their lending or investments in long-term assets from Short-term Babilities. However, since most
deposits are renewed upon maturity, it is considered fikely that they wil remain with the Bank longer
than their stated contractual term, thereby hefping to support funding for the Bank's lending.

In order to promote greater flexibility and variety in the Bank's funding structure, as well as to
provide more altematives in investments for the public and the Bank's depositors, the Bank has
issued Short-Term Debenture Projects 2/2005, 1/2006 and 2/2006, with a total value of Baht 27,110
million ai the end of 2008. Moreover, "K-BfE Investment” products have been offered to both retail
and corporate customers, afier the BoT granted permission for commercial banks to offer bills of
exchange to bomow meney from the private sector, effective August 2006. As of December 31, 2008,
our B/E owtstanding totaled Bakt 69,607 million.

2.3 Capital Requirements and Credit Ratings

a Capital Funds

As of December 31, 2008, the Bank had capital funds of Bai 143,076 million, comprising
Tier-1 capital totaling Baht 93,564 milion, and Tier-2 capital totaling Baht 49,512 milion. The capital
adequacy ratio of the Bank equaled 15.05 percem, significantly above the BoT's minimum
requirement of 8.50 percent. Details of the capital adequacy ratio of the Bank are shown in the
following table:

16




Capital Adequacy Ratio’

{Units; Percent)

A g,

& S S 1 m ‘
9 84 10 7% 10 33 1035 1074
5.2 368 4.01 3 8

T TS T B T )

Nuie: ' These nmos dn nnt mchde the net proﬁts oi each accountmg penod Accord‘mg ] BoT mgulalnns. lhe nei protil of the
first hatf of the year shafl be inchuded in the instiution's capital after approval by the Bank's Board of Directars. The net
profit for the second hall of the year shal be chided in that capital after approval by a General Meeting of
Sharehaolders. However, ¥ there i a net loss, the loss must be deducted from capital immediately.

™ Based on the risk assets of the Bank.

Capital Adequacy Ratio
(Including the net profi of each accounting period)
{Units: Percent)
B UEI%EIL @WE !IIHLEBL EIEHDZEL Nuecss i
Tier-1 Capﬂal 10 53 11 2 11.34 11.7'1' 11.6'."
Tier-2 Capital 521 3.68 4.01 n 3.87

o Maintenance of Ratios

The Bank maintains fiquid assets, on average, of a least 6.00 percen of deposits and some
kinds of borrowing, tn compliance with BoT regulations. As of December 31, 2008, the Bank had cash
in hand, cash at central cash centers, deposits with the BoT and efigible securities totaing Baht
248,377 miion.

a Credit Ratings

In 2008, the Bank's credit rating given by Standard & Poor's remained unchanged.
Meanwhile, Moody's investors Senvice revised the Bank's rating outlook of long-term foreign cumrency
deposit and subordinated debts to "Negative” from "Stable”. At the same time, Fitch Ratings also
revised the Bank's rating outiook of intemational ratings (foreign currency) to "Negative” from
"Stable”. These credit rating revisions are found to be in fne with a downward adjustment in the
country’s credit rating outiook to "Negative” from “Stable” by many intemational rating agencies.
Details of the Bank's credit ratings are shown in the following table:
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KASIKORNBANK's Credit Ratings

" Moody's knvestors Senvice

Foreign Currency
Outook Negative Stable
Long-erm - Debt na’ na’

- Deposit Baal Baal
Short-term - Debt/Deposil P2 P2
Subordmated Debt Baal Baal
Bank Financial Strength Rating (BFSR) D+ D+
Qutlook for BFSR Stable Stable
Domestic Cumentcy
Outlook Stable Stable
Long-lerm - Deposit A3 Al
Short-term - Debt/Deposit P-1 P1

Standard & Poor's ™
Qutlook Stable Stable
Long-term - Debt/Certificate of Deposit BBB BBB
Short4esm - Debt/Certificate of Deposit A2 A2
Subordinated Debt (Foreign Cuency) BBB- BBB-
Bank Fundamental Strength Rating (BFSR) (Local Curmency) C C
Negative Stable

Long-term Issuer Default Rating BBB+ BBB+
Short-term issuer Default Rating F2 F2
Subordinated Debt BBB BBB
Indradual
Support 2 2
Nationa! Credil Ratin
Outlook Stable Stable
Long-erm AAftha) AA(tha)
Short-term F1+(tha) F1+{tha)
Subordinated Debt Ah-(tha) AA-(tha)

Note: * Moody's Investors Senvice does not assign ratings to the Bank's long-erm debt.
™ The hase levels for investmen grade on long-term credi ratings for Meody's Investors Service, Standard &
Peor’s, and Filch Ratings are Baa3, BBB- and BBB-, respectively. For short-term credit ratings, the base levels
for imvestment grade as viewed by these three agencies are P-3, A-3, and F3, respectively.
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3. Operations of Core Businesses

3.1 Business Overview

In 2008, KASIKORNBANK's core business operations encountered greater complexity, due
to the changing business emvironment, especialy the economic slowdown and financial crisis
abroad, as well as changes in local regulatory requirements and inensifying market competition. To
maintain the Bank's competitiveness and leadership in financial services, particularly in responding to
customer needs, we continued to develop new products and services to mee! the diverse needs of
customers who are grouped into seven segments. Still, amid greater risks from the global economic
changes, the Bank also makes certain that appropriate preparations have been undertaken by all
concerned parties in various business units.

KASIKORNBANKGROUP

} Retail Business
V
Signature | Middle
Income
\ » Cash Management = Consumer Loans
Product Groups % Securities Services = Credit Cards
—————/ | = Bancassurance Sevices = Deposits and Fee-Based lncome
» Corporate Finance * Mutual Fund Business
» Domestic Credit Product and Letters of Indemnity - » Bancassurance
Bormowing
* Trade Finance
= Currency and Interest Rate Risk Management Products

3.2 Customer Segments
= Multi-Corporate Business
Overview
The Muli-Corporate Business segment covers customers with annual sales values over
Baht 5,000 milion, based on many major businesses of the courtry. Sensing their complex
financia) needs and preferences toward diverse financial services, KBank, thus, has conducted
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extensive studies to better understand their financial needs in all dimensions. We also strive to
offer a wide range of financial sohwtions, including funding, credit extension and underwriting
services on corporale debentures, together with risk-hedging services via derivalive producls
that are compatible with their financial structures to help them minimize risks incurred from
market velatility, such as commodity price fluctuations.

Operating Environment and Business Operations

In 2008, confidence and business among large corporate eniities were affected by the
slowing economic growth which was caused by a number of negative factors, including
exorbitant crude oil prices in the first half of the year, and heightened domestic pofiical
uncertainty, as well as the financial crisis in the U.S. and other major markets.

Therefore, the Bank has been assessing risks sesulting from these economic factors on
our customers’ businesses with an aim to provide tador-made financial sohuions. In the
meantime, we have launched several leaming activities through seminars and training programs
to provide useful knowledge for customers, fogether with offering our product knowledge to
ensure customers' effective preparations against fising economig risks. The Bank, in this regard,
has facused on providing services beyond conventional banking sphere to include, for example,
advisory services with the aim of assisting customers toward sustainable business expansion.
Meanwhie, the skills of our Relationship Managers (RMs) have continually been upgraded for
grater expertise, deeper knowledge and more professional consulting capabififies. To sirengthen
the cordial relationships that we have with our customers, KBank organized several social
activiies, including sports and recreation events of interests to them. Of note was an incentive
irip where customers were accompanied by KBank executives fo the Befing 2008 Olympic
Games.

Large Corporate Business
Overview

Customers in the Large Corporate Business segment are medium-sized corporate
enfities with annual sales values between Baht 400 - 5,000 million, for which the Bank has
developed a variety of financia products where we provide financial convenience through the
offesing of wide-ranging and specialized services, e.g., capial financing services. Ours product
and semices include a complete range of loan facifities, such as working capital financing,
capital expenditure loans and trade finance, etc.
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Operating Environment and Business Operations

Due to greater complexity in the customers' business undertakings, resutting from the
national economic slowdown, the Bank reafizes the need to conduct comprehensive studies of
customers’ businesses and then financial needs in all major industries. This study has helped the
Bank to offer customers a wide array of financial services, assisting them 1o make effective and
timely adjustments against unforeseen changes. Such services of ours include knowledge and
advisory services with guidedines to enhance business survivabifity amid chafienging economic
conditions. These services have been offered through various communication channels —
including seminars on timely topics such as economic and industrial trends, as well as nisk
management. Other useful information, e.g., in-depth analyses for major industries, and
“K Connect” magazines has also been offered. Al of this are parts of our key strategic moves to
enhance cordial relationships that we have with our customers, in addition to regular company
visits by our executives and other social activities.

Medium Business
Overview

Customers in the Medium Business segment are medium-sized firms with annuat sales
values between Baht 50 - 400 million. Narally, such customess require a wide range of

financial services, but need less complexity than larger corporate entities. Therefore, the Bank
offers reasonably-priced, end-to-end product and service packages to meet their needs.

Operating Environment and Business Operations

The nationa! economic slowdown in 2008, coupled with domestic pofitical tensions that
led to the airport closures near the end of the year, have affected our customers, especially those
in export-related and tourism businesses. To provide timely assistance to them and minimize the
possibifity of default, the Bank dispatched special teams to provide advice and take extra care of
customers facing adverse consequences from the crisis, thus enabling them to continue their
business operations. In order to meet our loan growth targets while maintaining sound loan
quality, we emphasized credit extension to certain industries that are still showing healthy growth
potential with reasonably low nsk, in addition to providing credit support for upcountry
entrepreneurs, and supply chain financing. We also launched new products to better meet
customer needs, such as K-Cheque 2 Cash. Meanwhile, innovative and novel activities have
been made available with the K SME Care program. These activities include capital and
knowledge supports provided via different channels. All are done with an aim to equip medium-
scaled entrepreneurs with knowledge to handle economic risk more efficientty. A forum for
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promoting our customers’ products and services has also been provided under this K SME Care
program.

Regarding our pubfic relations activities promoting KBank products and services and
work to enhance our relationships with customers in this segment, the Bank launched several
new activities in 2008. There were, for instance, seminars and training sessions, thank-you
parties, golf competition and health-awareness programs, wherein 2,364 customers participated.
We also organized seminars Yo introduce products and sevices to them, featuring most recently
the "Cash Focus Group” and "Trade Solution” with participants representing 2,808 companies in
Thailand attending those. Similar seminars were launched for potential foreign customers in
China and Japan. Furthermore, we requiarly participated in many events to promote KGroup's
comprehensive range of products and services, which received a wam welcome from
customers. Regarding the Bank's participation in the Money Expo 2008 at the Queen Sirikit
National Convention Center, 124 customers from this seqment applied for our credit suppor,
worth several billion Baht.

Small and Micro Business
Overview

Customers in this segment are small and micro businesses. Small businesses are those
with annual sales values between Baht 10 - 30 million, and micro businesses are those with sales
values not exceeding Baht 10 million a year, mostly sole proprietorships or famiy-owned
businesses with financial needs mainly relevant to their dady transactions. In meeting these
needs, we provide comprehensive financial products bundled as packages, including deposits,
fund transfers, credit facilites, plus hire purchase and leasing services.

Operating Environment and Business Operations

Given a relatively large customer base in this segment, especially micro businesses, we
have been studying their behaviors and financial needs to gain a betler understanding of the
natwre of their businesses, funding sources, and factors influencing their decisions in credit
applications. The study also covered the customers’ expertences and expectations toward
KBank products and services for further development and offering of products and services that
better meet their needs. In 2008, the Bank successiully developed new credit products and
conducted a number of sales promotions, specifically catering to this segment, through several
projects. Of note was the "K-SME Credit - Fast Credit Process-Long Credit Term plus High
Credit Line” program, which was organized in cooperation with private business partners,
allowing us 1o offer loan facilities for the purchase of automatic fuet-refiling machines. We have
also provided loans for micro businesses for payments of their leases of trading premises in



specified property development projects. Plus, we provided NGV equipment installation
financing services for bus opesators under concessions with the Transport Co., Ltd., in addtion to
the offers of innovative products and new activities under the K SME Care project.

To strengthen customer relationships, we launched sales promotion and public refations
activities for increased awareness in our products and services. Of notes were nationwide
seminars, attracting 10,222 participants. This was in addition to local events held at the Bank's
branches across the country, and loan fairs in some major provinces, in which there wese 9,022
participants applying for our credit products. At the Money Expo 2008 at the Queen Sirikit
National Convention Center, 1,500 customers from this segment applied for KGroup credt
support, worth several billion Baht.

Signature Segment
Overview

Customers in this segment generally have high income, or have entrusted KGroup to
manage their high-value investments or deposits. To strengthen our cordial relationships with
these high-value customers, KGroup has offered tailor-made activities and incentives, in addition
to comprehensive financial solutions and advisory services, for higher retums on therr assets. We
also strive to make a good impression in service defiveries whenever the customers come in
comact with KGroup sales and service channels.

Operating Environment and Business Operations

To enswe effective responses to their needs, the Bank has conducted extensive
research and studies of customer behavior in various dimensions in 2008. Of note was a
comparative study of their satisfaction and requirements for products of the Bank and peers. The
Bank, in cooperation with subsidiaries, has appfied the results of this study to the development of
joint products and services with other K Companies, and launched some special sales
promotions that better meet customers’ needs. The studies also covered impacts from some
govemment measures, and the results thereof have been used as essential information for propes
preparation for customers. The studies also enabled us to map out plans to cope with possible
changes in customer behavior, and to promole brand awareness of the Bank's leading financial
advisory services. For instance, KBank organized seminars and distibuted information
pamphlets on the topic of the Deposit Protection Agency Act B.E. 2351, available at KBank
branches nationwide.  Moreover, we also provided financial advisory services and
recommendations on investment altematives, as well as information on products of KBank and
subsidiaries.
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In addition 1o the distribution of owr "Wisdom of Wealth” magazines in 2008, we
organized many exclusive activities to enhance our relationships with the customers in this
segment, in addition to providing extra special privileges for their convenience. Moreover, the
number of our "Signature Comers” was increased to five, meeting our target for the year, while
"Signature Exclusive Centers™ were expanded to six for greater convenience and personalized
services for these customers.

Middle Income Segment

Overview

"Widdle Income customers” refers to those employed in the public or private sectors with
regular incomes. With an aim of fulfiling the needs of these customers and assisting them in
financial planning for their future financial stabiity, KGroup has offered end-to-end products of
KBank and subsidiaries. Emphasis has also been placed on the enhancement of the convenient,
swift, and efficient sales channels according to our cross-sefling strategy. Financial products
have been presented as a bundled package that fits festyles at each stage of ife of the
customers. New customers are being sought through our corporate payroll services, including
development of cooperation with new business allies, allowing us to provide fmancial services
compatible with Bestyles of middle-income eamers for efficient futfilment of their needs at
different stages of life.

Operating Emvronment and Business Operations

In meeting the diverse needs of customers, KGroup, in 2008, not only presented our
products and services through cross-selling activities, but also introduced new nnovative
services, such as the "K-Stock 2 Fund", which helps customers shorten the tme used in
buying/seling stocks via KSecwrities, while offering them higher retums from
purchasefredemption of their investments in the Money Market Fund under the management of
KAssel, compared to the previous transactions conducted via savings accounts. The Bark also
adopted credit card settlement for the purchase of investment units in Long Term Equity Funds
(LTF) and Retirement Mutual Funds (RMF) under KAsset for instaliment payment plans, together
with improvement in the customer database for better accuracy, meeting standards set by the
Bank of Thailand.

Following our faunch of the K-WePlan service for financial health checkups and planning
according to customers’ objectives, particularty our first service center at the Siam Square
branch in late 2007, we have broadened the scope of such services dwing 2008 via growing
numbers of branches providing the K-WePtan senvice, covering Bangkok and the vicinity, as well
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as branches in other major provinces. Given this effon, the number of K-WePan-enhanced
branches reached 166 branches at the end of 2008. Moreover, our service area has been
redesigned for better functionality and privacy. Financial planning tools and advisory skills of our
financial planners have been developed, while systematic examinations have been reqularly
amanged to strengthen customer confidence in our professional advisory services. According to
a recent customer satisfaction survey, more than 85 percent of customers using K-WePlan
showed "Very High Satisfaction” with our services, and more than 80 percent of the poled
customers said they would recommend our services and financial planners to their friends. In
addition to the aforementioned activities, we continue to launch marketing actvities, especially
the promoticn of our products and services at financial events in all regions across the country.

Mass Segment
Overview

Customers in this segment generally require conventional banking services, preferably
those which are easy to use and convenient. In this regard, KGroup has been striving to offer
products and services that match their daily financial needs, as well as meet our criteria of cost
efficiency. The products and services must be easy to understand and user-friendly, while the
customers are encouwraged to switch to our e-service channels for payments, and debit cards for
purchase of goods and services. The products are mostly offesed as bundled packages,
consistern with customer requirements and appropriate for customer sub-segmentation.

Operating Environment and Business Operations

A large customer base in this segment has led the Bank to see the potential for their
upgrade to become middle-income customers. This has encouraged us to conduct extensive
surveys and studies of customers’ needs and behaviers. The Bank has used the study results for
development of comprehensive product and service packages, as well as for the strengthening
of cordial relationships with target customers, especially university studemts and private
organization employees. Al of these efforts wese promoted through marketing activities
designed to equip this group of customers with knowledge of KGroup products and services.
Greater convenience has also been maintained in every sales and service channel of the Bank,
which has been expanded and enhanced in several locations, with easy and convenient access
for customers. We have also upgraded service technology, such as the enhancement of
functionafity of our mobde phone banking services for greater convenience and security, efc. In
the meantime, we have also encouraged customess to switch to our e-banking services. All
these efforts were to promote KBank as the Main Opesating Bank among customers, and as the
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"One-Stop-Shop Financial Services™ center, as well as to emphasize KGroup leadership in

technology and innovation.

3.3 Product Groups, and Sales and Service Channels
3.3.1 Product Groups

In 2008, the Bark continued to offer products 1o meet diverse needs of each customer

segment as foflows:

Domestic Credit Products and Letters of Indemnity-Borrowing

Domestic credit products are divided imo twa café“gories: ) working capital finance,
such as overdrafts and promissory notes; and 2) long-term credit products of
investment capital finance of various types. For SME customers, our focus is on loan
products consistent with the nature of their businesses. The Bank also offers several
contingent bank quarantee products, such as lettess of indemnity-boawing, avals,
letters of guarantee on loans and financial statements.

Main Business
Operations

New Products and Services

o "K-Receivable Solutions” - developed by KBank in cooperation with KFactoring for
large businesses - feature safe of account receivables at discount to the Bank to
obtain working capital, with conditions that are more advantageous than
conventional factoning products.

o "K-SME Machine Credit" - through coordination between KBank and the
Federation of Thai Industries (FTI) - offers credt lines 1o customers up to 100
percent of the appraised value of their machines.

o "K-Energy Saving Loan” provides a credit line for energy-saving, or aftemative
fuel-related projects.

o "K-SME Extend” helps SME customers gain access to loans with tem up 1o 10
years for the procurement of fixed assets.

o "K-Max 150%" offers credit fines at up to 150 percent of the value of borrower’s
collateral, in response to the needs of customers, especially those with Emited
collateral assets.

o “K-SME Machine Fund” - developed by the Bank in cooperation with the Thai-
German Institute (TGI) and Office of Small and Medium Enterprises Promotion
(OSMEP) - provides long-term financial support for machinery upgrades, research
and developmem on prototype machinery, or the installation of production
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Domestic Credn Producls and Letlers o! Indemnny Borrowmg

Detaﬁ

process-related IT systems.

Product Development and Service Enhancements

e As part of the Bank's efforts to pursue more prudent loan disbursements and thus
minimize our risks, the "Revolving Loan Floorplan” product, has been developed
for our automotive dealership customeys.

o Credit products have been bundled with other products, e.g., bill of exchange
products that are used as collateral on loan applications.

o We have improved our letters of indemnity (L/1) for the payment of electricity bills
that enable approval of additional L credit lines to qualified customers without
calling for additional collateral. The Bank's approval process on this preduct has
also been streamlined to ensure greater convenience, speed and higher
efficiency.

o The Bank offered an e-maled monthly statement service on all types of LA
products for customers, free of charge. We helieve thal this service is more
efficient and convenient for customers in their Ll data management.

Trade Finance

Detaﬂ

Overview

Trade finance diers many mipon and expon semces such as letters of credit (UC) '

bils for collection, trust receipts, intemational fund remittances, and foreign exchange,
efc.

Main Business New Products and Services

Operations o "K-Export Document Sohutions” is an export documentation service specificaly

designed to minimize difficulies and emors during export procedures, as well as
ensuring effective collection control.

Product Development and Service Enhancements

o The Bank, in cooperation with allies globally, has developed more advanced trade
finance products to offer three value-added advantages to our customers: (1)
more efficient and swifter venfication of customer documents and fund transfers
via electronic finks with our allies worldwide; (2) risk management for trade
partners, working capital, foreign exchange and interest rates via cooperation with
allied banks; and, (3) logistics management for customers. This resuits in greater
efficiency and speed in our trade finance service.
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Trade Finance

e capabilities of our Trade Service Specialist (TSS) have been improved to
ensure greater efficiency in their advisory services, exclusively catered lo each
impori-export business customer as needed amid heightened volatifty in
intemnational markets, due to the global economic and financial crisis in 2008.
Advice Centers have also been put in place to assist TSS in providing customers
with indepth advice, which has received overwhelming responses from
customers.

Cash Management

Overview

T Cash managemenl services prmnde efﬁuent eﬂecuve end-to-end working capltal

solution covering coflections, payments and fiquidity management sevices, as well as
other services, with the aim of helping our customers increase their retums on excess
cash. Al of these services are provided with the clear objective of encouraging
customeys to choose KBank as their main bank for cash management transactions.

Main Business
Operations

New Products and Services

o "K-Cheque 2 Cash” enables cuslomers to obtain advance short-term credit
through post-dated cheques that have not yet reached their due date for payment
- a handy aid to liquidity for our customers.

o "K-Corporate Cheque” provides corporations with a complete packaged cheque
processing solution, i.e., cheque issuance, printing of cheques and related details,
as well as maifing them to recipients for our customers,

o "K-Cheque Alert” offers customers cheque-related information, such as the
number of cheques proceeded and amount of money 1o be cleared, pius
outstanding balances and setumed cheques, which helps ensure the highest cash
management efficiency for customers. KBank is now the only bank in Thaiand that
offers complete cheque-related information.

o "K-Clearing with Funds” is a facility that backs up customers’ cheques being
cleared with funds invested in a K-Cash Fund. Whenever there are insufficient
funds in customers’ current, savings, or overdraft accounts to cover a cheque
withdrawal, the amount is covered by money in customer's K-Cash imvestments.
Meamwhile, customers receive high returns on unused investment funds.

e "K-Customs’ - developed by the Bank in cooperation with the Tha Customs
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Cash Management

B etaisy

Departmem provides dlectronic Custums paymem$ via the onfine, real-hme
e-Customs system that permits debiting of a KBank account or payment by
express cheque.

o "K-Corporate Payment Card” features a new KBank bill payment service with a
smart card in lieu of cheques or cash to facilitate business transactions within a
supply chain-financing network. This service enabdes card payments specifically
for trade finance purposes and is the first of its kind in Thailand.

o "K-SME Smart Account” offers a financial information delivery service, that covers
transaction status information and account movements via the telecommunications
technology of SMS messaging and the Infernet, thus helping fo ensure greates
liquidity management efficiency for our customers.

Securities Services

- WEELB

Overview

Secunhes services consist of mutual fund supemsory services, custodlal services for
provident and private funds for domestic and foreign individuals or companies, plus
registrar services on unit trusts, govemment bonds and debentures. The Bank also
provides support services on Syndicated loans, such as acting as a security agent for
callateral control, a credi faciity agent and a bondholder representative.

Main Business
Operations

Product Development and Service Enhancements

o The Bank has developed our service network to meet the needs of asset
management company customers making investments abroad.

o We have extended our custodial services o foreign institutional customers who
want to invest in Thaland, aside from serving domestic asset management
companies infent upon setting up private funds that plan to mvest in foreign
securities.

o Qur collateral agency for syndicated loan programs has been extended to cover
loan projects that have not been financed by the Bank, or are non-syndicated loan
programs, in addition to other refated services provided by our experienced and
qualified personnel. As a sesult, the Bank in 2008 was able to achieve higher
income from our agency services — such as the syndicated loan agency, a
coflateral agency for syndicated loan programs and as a bond holder
representative — as targeted.
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Bancassurance Services

FC

Overview

Bancassﬁrahceu Ser:\fuitﬁ:vés”prbvide credit_insurance pmducts“ - bundied with

conventionat banking products - for our customers. This product offesing is in addition
to a wide range of ife insurance products for both individuals and business customer
employees as group plans, plus non-ife insurance products for property and expon
protection.

Main Business
Operations

New Products and Services

o "PERFECT Business Smart” is a ife insurance product that offers added protection
with permanent disabifity coverage 10 our loan customers.

Product Development and Service Enhancements

o The Bank, in cooperation with our Preferred partners, has improved our customer
service procedures for each product group, based on an in-depth study into
customer needs. Of note is our acceptance of insurance premium payments via a
greater variety of service channels 10 increase convenience to our customeys.

s We have moved to improve our service network with our Prefered partners to
ensure greater convenience and network coverage for customers.

Corporate Finance

R s K : - p

Y

Overview

There are two major categones of services provided: 1) financial advisory serﬁices,

and, 2) corporate finance semvices, covering a full range of financial products and
financial advisory services. In addition to offering services as a broker-dealer and
underwriter on state emerprise bonds, debentures, bill of exchange and property fund
imvestment units, the Bank provides research on the deb! marke, economy, foreign
exchange and capital markets.

Main Business
Operations

Product Development and Service Enhancements

o We have provided funding arrangements for corporate customers via debentures
and short-term bils of exchange (B/E), syndicated loans and property funds.
Several customers entrusted KBank with the underwriting of their debentures
during 2008. Meanwhile, we have also provided syndicated loans to customers in
major industries, including energy, real estate, agriculture, as well as finance and
securities. The main objective of the financing is to support business operation and
expansion, as well as to repay loans.

» We continue to place a focus on debenture trading in the secondary market,
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Corporate Finance

TR AT ROETER

pm\ndmg iqudity for bolh issuers and mvestors in the bond markeL

o The Bank has launched callable B/Es as another investment alternative for those
who seek higher retums at minimal risk.

Currency and Interest Rale Risk Managemem Products

Overview

T We offer comprehenswe hedgmg suluhuns !or managemem nt of foreugn exchange and'

interest rate risks, as well as volatifity in commodity prices. Our products, including
swaps, forwards, options and other derivatives, are avalable to customers i &l
segments.

Main Business New Products and Services

Operations o We have introduced a new range of risk management tools o protect against

volatility in the prices of commodities, such as oil, copper and soybeans. Amid
easing commodity prices in the second quarter of 2008, many customers, both
producers and comsumers in the energy sector, have tumed to the risk
management services offered by KBank.

Product Development and Service Enhancements

o The Bank provides foreign exchange risk managemem products, inchiding
forward contracts, and FX Opions for importers and exporters to minimize the
impact of foreign exchange volatility on their income amid the global financial
crisis.

o We offer interest rate swaps for customers with loan obfigations as a hedging tool
against changes in the interest rate trend during 2008. At the same time, given
rising credit risk at foreign commercial banks, many customers switched to long-
term transactions with KBark.

e We provide Cross Cumency Swaps to exporters and asset management
companies eaming interest income in foreign currencies for efficient foreign
exchange and interest rate risk managemen.

With our determined business operations, we, in 2008, have successfully provided
2 wide amay of sophisticated risk management products that have led to rising
transaction volume and more fee income from them over 2007.
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K SME Care

K SNEE Care is aimed at enhancing the business poténﬁal and sustainable growih for

Overview
our SME customers by providing them with capital, knowledge and business
opportunities, in addition 1o the Bank's conventional financial products and services.
Main Business Product Development and Service Enhancements
Operations Business operations under the K SME Care program are categorized into four

areas:
o (:Capital
- K-SME Verture Capital: In 2008, we signed agreements for the K-SME Venture
Capital program with eight SMES in communications and [T system development,
beverages, jewelry, advertising and services, with a total investment of Baht
143,924,000 mifion.
o A:Advice
- We provide advisory sesvices through the "INNOSMES" project, which is a
support fund under K SME Care. The project has been launched in
cooperation with the National Innovation Agency (NIA) to encourage SME
entreprenewrs to create innovations by developing new products, production
Drocesses or new services on a commercial basis. Support funding from NIA
is provided 1o qualified SME proprietors.
- In cooperation with the Thadland Greenhouse Gas Management Organization
(TGO), we introduced the "Energy Efficiency to Cope with Global Warming by
K SME Care” program. The program is aimed at supporting Thai SMEs in
undertaking energy efficiem sofutions to reduce the emission of greenhouse
gas and to creale renewable enesgy systems. In order to achieve those
objectives, knowledge and financial support via soft loan facifties are
provided to participating SMEs.
o R:Research
~ The 140 "K-SME Analysis” weekly, monthly, and quarterly research articles
were provided to our SME customers during 2008.
— We offer onfine business-matching services at www.ksmecare.com, as a
forum for sharing information and promoting our customers’ businesses and
products. In 2008, there were around 10,000 subscribers to this website.
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K SME Care

.. | E: Educét%on

— We organized the fourth to seventh training courses under the "Sustainable
Management Enhancement Program for SME Entrepreneurs”, with a total of
2400 participants completing the program. SME participants obtained
valuable knowledge and took part in value-added activities that included
seminars, lectures on business management topics - including brand
creation, account and tax management and logistics - in addstion to a team
building workshop, company visits, plus other activities to foster cordial
refationships between SME entrepreneurs and enhance the SME network.

— We launched the "K SME Care Network Chub®, to bring together SME
proprietors, wherein they participated in useful activities and services for club
members and society. They also received subscription to the K SME Care
Post magazine, and were invited to special seminars, social activities and a
"K SME Care Fair 2008" — a funfilled festival for SMEs — to support
members’ marketing activities.

Consumer Loans

Overview In meeting the diverse fmancial needs of our éls'logmers with the hig esl efﬁdencj;
we have developed a full spectrum of consumer loan products and services, such as
"K-Home Loan plus Feng Shuf’, "K-Home Loan for Mufti Purpose” and a wide vartety
of personal loans. In addition to these efforts, complete information on homes and
home loans is also provided through the "K Home Smiles Club” website for thex
convenience.

Main Business New Products and Services

Operations o "K-Home Loan Plus Feng Shuf": the Chinese art of posiioning one’s home and

furishings in harmony with nature for good fortune is featured with our Feng Shui
consulting services to K-Home Loan customers.

o "Sman Package”, which imegrates personal loans with other deposit and loan
products, payment due alerts and fife insurance products, are also offered.

o The "Camefour-KBank Express Cash Card” was offered, featuring an unsecured
revolving consumer credit fine where withdrawals can be made via ATMs.




Consumer Loans

EDetal

Major Sales Promotional rogram arid“PilliIiE elations Activities

o The Bank offered discounts and privileges including complete information and
advice on homes via K Home Smiles Club.

o As part of our continuing effort to increase sales tumover, the Bank, in cooperation
with leading property devetopment companies and other business alliances have
provided fair participants with privileges and special discounts, in addition to other
activities to strengthen our ties with customers. One example was a mink-concert in
the fourth quartes of 2008 that attracted over 1,000 customers and their family
members.

Credit Cards

|

Overview

For maximum efficiency in our financial services, the Bank's credit card products

and services have been continuously developed and improved. We offers a broad
array of credit card products and services, including services classified by
cardholder type, such as cards for individuals and corporate customers; co-branded
cards where special benefits from our Prefemed partners are provided to
cardholders; and services classified by card brand, such as the KBank-VISA Card
and KBank-MastesCard. A ‘contactless’ credit card equipped with advanced
paymem technology has also been introduced, in addition to atractive sales
promotional benefits, offered exclusively to cardholders through the
wwaw.kbankcard.com website.

Main Business
(Operations

New Products and Services

e A new high-tech "KBank-VISA payWave Card”, a ‘comtactless’ credit card
equipped with advanced technology has been offered by the Bank to facilitate
quick and safe bill payments at any mercham bearing the Visa payWave sign.

o A new co-branded "Camefour-KBank Credit Card” was started on September 16,
2008.

o The "Smart PAY By Phone Program” has been offered to facifitate K-Credit Card
customers in applying for an installmem payment plan to repay their previous
spending. Customers are invited to choose payment periods with specific
conditions. This service starled in September 2008.

¢ The lanch of the K-Card Club Website (www.kbankcard.com), as an exclusive




Credit Cards

channel for K-Credit Card customers keeping them informed about our card-
related benefits.

Product Development and Service Enhancemenls

o The Bank, in cooperation with our Preferred partners, will be launching a new
corporate credit card to help control spending and reduce operating costs for our
corporate customers. The service is expected 1o be operational early in 2009.

e A new computerized system for card accepting merchants has been introduced to
ensure minterrupted service, in case of a host system breakdown.

e The Bank has reached an agreement on credit card acceptance services with the
air ticketing agencies of all airfines that are members of Intemational Air Transport
Association (IATA).

Major Sales Promotional Program and Public Refations Activities

e Special sales promotional activities for the "Visit Phuket, Chiang Mai, Hua Hin,
Patiaya and Khao Yai with KBank™ program were staged for K-Credit Card
customers at those five major tourist destinations.

o We have also launched other marketing activities, such as exhibition booths at
special events and fairs, co-promotion programs with business allies to provide
complimentary gifts to K-Credit Card customers whose spending meeis cenain
criteria as an added incentive for use of K-Credit Cards. Along with this, the Bank
continued to increase the number of card-accepting merchants in various
businesses.

Deposits and Fee-based Income

Ove e Bank has dev npeda é'brﬁﬁc,
as well as investment altematives with atiractive interest rates. They include special
fixed-term deposit accounts, Ready-to-Use Time Deposits bundled with personal
accident coverage, and also bills of exchange with step-up interest rates, in addition
to other financial services for customers’ convenience.

Main Business New Products and Services

Operations e Three new fixedterm deposit savings plans — the “Fixed Deposit Flexible 4
Month", “Fixed-Star” and “Fixed-Plus® accounts — are tailored to meet the needs
of depositors.




Deposits and Fee-based Income

o The co-branded "Camefour-KBank Debit Card" has been introduced by the Bank,
in cooperation with the large hypermart opesator, Carrefour, to offer special
privileges to niche markets.

o "Balance Change Alent” is a new K-mAlert mobile phone-based service that sends
shot text messages (SMS) to account owners when their account balance
changes, at the beginning of each hour.

e Educational expenses for tutoring centers can now be paid in reaktime
electronically at any KBank branch, which adds to customey convenience when
enroling at many such instiutions offering onine reservation sysiems, and
provides instant onfine confirmation. This sesvice started in mid-June 2008.

e A utiity water bil payment service has been available at KBank courters since the
third quarter of 2008. This new payment channe! is added to the existing automatic
debiting option with KBank accounts.

Major Sales Promotional Program and Public Relations Activities

o The "KBank Savings Festival” was staged to showcase a wide amay of deposit
products with various maturities 1o meet the diverse needs of customers.

o A wide amray of deposit products and bills of exchange programs with a variety of
maturities was launched, being the "Attractive Interest Rates at KBank", "K-B/E
Step-Up", "Fixed-term Deposit and B/Es to Celebrate Mother’s Day”, "Ready-to-
use Time Deposit”, "Star Plus Fixed-term Deposit” and “Fixed-term Deposits to
Celebrate Father's Day” 1o satisfy customers.

Mutual Fund Busine

R R Tt 1

Overview

e have oﬁe}ed numerous muiual fund products to vestors with atiractive returns
and tax benefits within acceptable risk levels. Customers are able to choose the
products that best suit their investment goals, such as funds investing in equity and
debt securities, domestically and intemationally. Special flexible funds aimed at
managing risk levels in accordance with investor age are also provided, along with
property funds, provident funds, Long Term Equity Funds (LTFs), as well as funds
investing in alternative energy shares, and gold investment units.

Main Business
Operations

New Products and Services
o The Bank, in cooperation with KAsset issued a mmber of new investments in




Mutual Fund Business

008

33 fixed-income funds for investments both at home and abroad

Four FFs (foreign investment funds): K Aftemative Energy Equity Fund,
investing in foreign altemative energy industries; K Middle East & North Africa
Equity Fund, focusing on stocks in the Middle East and North Africa; K
Agricufture Fund for investments in foreign agricultural futres contracts; and
K-Gold for investment in the investment units of SPDR Gold Trust, which
together make up at least 80 percent of the fund's NAV on average in an
accounting year.

One property fund: Centara Hotels & Resorts Leasehold Propenty Fund for
investment into the leasehold properties of the five-star Centara Grand Beach
Resort Samui Hotel.

Long Term Equity Fund (LTF): Our K Strategic Defensive LTF has low nisk to
meel the needs of risk-averse investors who are also seeking lax benefits.

o "K-Stock 2 Fund' is a service that helps customers simplify transactions with
KSecurities, while offering them higher retum on auto-debited or deposit
transactions on our Money Markel Fund under the management of KAssel
compared to previous transactions fimited 1o finks with savings accounts.

Bancassurance

M

Realizing that risks to customers’ IiveS ;nd property could arise any time, the Bank

provides a wide range of insurance products to guard against accidents and
unexpected losses. In addifion, we have developed products that are easy o
understand with a variety of insurance premium plans to suit customers’ payment
preferences.

Main Business
QOperations

New Products and Services
o "Pro Saving 614", "Pro Saving 10/14 and "Pro Saving 14/14” plans are products

that

offer savings plans, plus security for customers’ famiies, with varied premium

payment options to sult individua customer needs.

e "Pitaksin-Care" life insurance products have been developed to offer Bexible forms
of protection where customers may elect 1o forego the full ife insured sum, or may
vary their coverage over the full basic term protection. The "Pilaksin-Senior” plan

3




Bancassurance

offers a mortgage protection insurance plan for KASIKORNBANK serior-cilizen
home loan customers.

o Two health insurance products, i.e., Health Protect and Health Protect for Seniors
plans, have been introduced by the Bank.

o The Bank has offered insurance service for customers who want to apply for an
insurance policy via KBank branches, or make premium payments via their
K-Credit Cards through our Vinual Electronic Data Capture (VEDC) system
installed at all KBank branches nationwide.

o A premium payment SMS alert has been intreduced to reduce late payments of
insurance premiums, which may lead to cancellations of insurance policies,
especially amid economic slowdown where customers may forego poficy renewal.

Product Development and Service Enhancements

o A new life insurance product has been developed 1o meet the diverse needs of
customers at every stage of their ife. Auto insurance products are also expected
to be offered via the Web Application system of Muang Thai Insurance PCL. atthe
beginning of 2009,

3.3.2 Sales and Service Channels

To meet the needs of customers in al segments, we have continued to expand and improve
our sales and service channels with the aim of enlarging the Bank's customer base and providing
greater convenience to customers. Our sales and service channels include:

e Branch Network
To better serve our customers, the Bank opened 58 new branches in 2008, bringing the total
to 662 branches nationwide. Our branches are dlassified info four types, based on different target
customers and their needs at each location, as follows:

1. Ful-Functioned Branches, including main and sub-branches, that provide financial
services to customers of all segments, from retail to large corporate customers.

2 In-Store Branches, as well as branches at discount stores and tourist atiractions to
serve transactors and Middle Income customers during non-traditional banking
hours, such as on weekends. The Bank has new hours of operation for these
branches at 11.00-20.00 hrs. everyday for customers' increased convenience.

3. Signature Exclusive Centers provide exclusive services to our Signature customers.



In 2008, we added one more Signature Exclusive Center, at Ratchada Phisek Huai
Khwang Branch, bringing the total to six centers.

4. Branches providing services to customers at specific locations, such as large
corporate customers in industrial estates, the white collars and university students.

In 2008, KBank launched new hours of operation, opening 8.30-16.30 hrs. on Mandays to
Thursdays, and 8.30-18.00 hrs. on Fridays, a1 Bangkok and metropofitan branches, as well as
upcountry branches where there is high activity in business transactions.

o Foreign Exchange Booths
In addition to bocth renovation, the Bank, in 2008, set up many new foreign exchange

booths, bringing the total to 76 beoths. These bocths are located at major tourist attractions such as
department stores, malls, public-gathering venwes and airports in Bangkok and upcourtry.
Meanwhile, eight mobile booths were put into service for use at trade fairs and other events, further
enhancing customeys’ convenience, especially for foreign exchange and ATM transactions.

 Intemational Trade Service Offices

Our Intemational Trade Service Offices provide a complete range of services for
intemational trade-related transactions through our professional advisors and advanced IT systems
that are in ine withintemational standards. These services include advisory services on trade-related
documentation, requiations, foreign exchange, as well as refevant risks. Moreover, our service quafity
and time are guaranteed by the adoption of imaging workflow technology, while important decuments
are efficiently collected and managed in the form of electronic files under a centrafized data system
for swift searches. At the end of 2008, our International Trade Service Offices totaled over 60 offices
nationwide.

o Cheque Direct Service Offices
The Bank's Cheque Direct Service Offices offer both conventional and express cheque
issuance services for our business customers through 13 KBank branches. This service not only
helps save time and reduce procedures related to cheque collection and payment, but also promotes
customer confidence, as our cheques are issued in the form of cashier's cheques that can be debited
directly into customer accounts.

o Corporate Business Centers

Our Corporate Business Centers offer a complete range of products and sewvices to
efficiently meet the needs of our corporate business customers with annual sales values between
Baht 400-5,000 million.
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o SME Business Centers

The SME Business Cemters are in place nationwide to provide a wide range of financial
services 10 our SME business customers with annual sales values between Baht 10-400 million.

» K-Contact Center
With our emphasis on providing the highest service quafity and utilizing our main sesvice
channels - including an Interactive Voice Response (IVR), staff person-to-person service, faxes, email
and web chat services - to fit the preferences of all customer segments; the Bank has further
developed our K-Contact Center throughout 2008. Our efforts included:
— Senice Development: The Bank offers an account suspension service via K-Contact
Center to prevent possible losses to customers’ accounts, in addition to call transfer
services to our Preferred partners (Muang Thai Insurance PCL) for customers seeking
in-depth information about related businesses or service applications, started on June 1,
2008. We also extended our call services to credit cardholders of Preferred partners,
i.e., for the PTT Energy Card, Happy Onfine Credit Card, K-Corporate Payment Card,
and offering a special telephone number for Camefour customers. Along with this, we
have also offered Relationship-based Telesales and Customer On-Board services.
~ Service Quafity and Efficiency Development: To maintain the quality of our sales and
services, as well as our business competitiveness, the Bank conducted K-Contact
Center customer satisfaction surveys from intemal umits and other companies on our
various sales and service channels, including IVR. The findings showed that customer
salisfaction was above larget. As part of the Bank's effort to maintain KGroup's
corporate image, the Bank now has a forum for inquiries into issues related 1o KGroup
and KBank products and services via www.pantip.com. The sysiem has also been
improved to ensure that the customer database is complete, acciwate and up-to-date.

o Electronic Banking Services
Our electronic banking services are provided through five main channels, inchuding:
1. K-ATM, K-CDM and K-PUM
1.1 K-ATMs
As of the end of 2008, the number of the Bank's ATMs came to 5,102 units, up from 3,797
units as of the end of 2007.
1.2 K-CDMs
The Bank's Cash Deposit Machines, as of December 2008, totaled 707 units, up from 502
units at the end of 2007.




1.3 K-PUMs
The Bank's Passbook Update Machines, as of December 2008, totaled 699 units, up from
644 units at the end of 2007.

2. Infernet Banking
2.1 K-Cyber Banking

At the end of 2008, the number of individual customers using the Bank's K-Cyber
Banking service increased 15 times over 2007. In 2008, the Bank developed K-Cyber Banking
through different dimensions, including:

— Online reaHime inter-bank funds transfer service is now avalable with K-Cyber
Banking to five more banks, for a total of eight banks now participating in this
service. KBank is the first and only bank to offes real-ime transfers via the internet,
with e-mafl or SMS confirmation messages sent to both the sender and receivers of
funds.

- We introduced a facility for K-Cyber Banking members {o add their own account al
any KBank branch, starting from April 16, 2008, in addition to the existing account
adding by fax or postal channels.

~ Enhanced security has aso been provided to customers using a One-Time
Password (OTP) via e-mail,

- K-Cyber Banking system upgrades have been undertaken to ensure increased
stability and the capacity to cope with the rising number of users.

— Hardware Token technology has been introduced to ensure enhanced security for
customers when logging into the system and making onfine transactions. We also
conducted a study and trial on Software Token application for mobile phones.

2.2 K-BizNet Banking
The number of customers using our K-BizNet Banking service for small businesses, as of

the end of 2008, rose 13 times over 2007.
3. K-mBanking
As of the 2008 year-end, our K-mBanking service increased 4.3 times over the previous
year. In 2008, the Bank developed K-mBanking through different aspects, including:
- We increased the number of participating meschants whe accept bill payments via
our K-mBanking service.
— We aiso added a function to verify the Reference Number of each participating
merchant, as specified during customer payment. The development of other
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functions, including balance inquiries, money transfers and payments, are in
progress and are expecied to be completed in early 2009.

- The development of K-mBanking system has been undertaken to accommodate

airtime refill across different mobile networks and online game payment. The service
is due for completion in the first quarter of 2009.

4. K-Paymen Gateway
As of the 2008 year-end, the Bank's payment service for onfine businesses rose 1.4 imes

in volume over the end of 2007 in the number of stores using our services. In 2008, the Bank
extensively developed K-Payment Gateway through different aspects, including:

New developments 1o our K-Payment Gateway system, permitting merchants to
search for more detaded transaction information and reports.

Improvement in our Authorization Backup system to handle online processing in
case of temporary system shitdown.

Upgrades in the application system for Verified by VISA/MasterCard SecureCode,
plus on the payment screen and reporting System o ensure greater efficiency and
user-friendliness.

Expert advisory services on onfine payment systems by our K-Payment Gateway
Clinic on a monthly basis have been provided, in continuation from the pervious
year.

The Bank, in cooperation with KAsset, has imroduced Virtual EDC services for LTF
and RMF purchases, using K-Credit Cards via KBank branches, and for acceptance
of insurance premium payments and sales of bancassurance using our K-Credit
Cards at both KBank branches and with sales agents.

5. ATM S
In 2008, the Bank launched our ATM SIM - one of our newest high-tech services, in

conjunction with Totat Access Communication PCL. (DTAC), a major mobile phone service provider in
Thalland. This new service allows customers to access their accounts via their mobde phones and
perform a variety of ATM transactions, the only exception heing cash withdrawals. We have also
improved our "ATM SIM" service for increased accessibility and greater efficiency 1o handle the rapid
increase in this service’s popularity. In addition, new functions have been developed to enable real-
time interbank fund transfers via mobile phone instructions using the ATM SIM to seven banks that
feature transfer confimation services to the recipients. The service has received overwhelming
response from customers as evidenced by business growth of more than 300 percent since begining
in mid-October 2008.

2



In recogrition of our efforts to develop our core business operations in every dimension, we
have been widely honored with many prestigious awards and other marks of recognition during 2008.
They include:

"Best Bond House”, "Dealer of the Year”, "Top Underwriter” and "Deal of the Year"
awards for 2007, granted by the Thai Bond Market Association in the first quarter of
2008.

Thailand's Top Underwriter for Debentures ranked by the Thai Bond Market Association
and IFR Asiamagazine.

"Thadland's Best Deal” award in 2007, as well as "Best Trade Finance Bank" and "Best
Investment Bank” awards under the Country Awards for Achievement 2008 Project from
FinanceAsia Magazine.

"Best Local Currency Bond Deal in Southeast Asia” awards in 2007 and 2008, "Best
REIT Deal in Southeast Asia” award in 2008, as weil as "Best Financial Supply Chain
Bank” and "Best Bond House" awards under the Country Awards for Achievement 2008
Project organized by Alpha South East Asia magazine.

"Best Debt House™ and "Best Domestic Investment Bank™ awards by The Asset
magazine.

"Excellence in SME Banking” award by The Asian Banker magazine.

"Thailand ICT Excellence Awards 2008", which praised us with the "Project of the Year”
award for our ATM SIM semvice, as an innovative project; and “Best IT and
Communications Business Enabler” award among banking and finance businesses, for
our intemational banking business services, by the Thaland Management Association
(TMA), in cooperation with the National Electronics and Computer Technology Center
{NECTEC), Software Park Thailand, and the College of Innovative Education of
Thammasat University. _

"CE Awards 2008 for our attempt to use the voice of customers in our retad customer
experience managemeni, by G-CEM, which is one of the world's leading service
providers in customer experience management.

"Best Retail Bank 2008" award with the largest number of visitors, and also "Most
Atractive Booth” award at the 8" Money Expo 2008, May 8-11, 2008, at the Queen Sirikit
National Convention Center in Bangkok.
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3.4 Financial Position
o KASIKORNBANK's Loans and Deposits

KASIKORNBANK's Loans Classified by Business and Product Groups

(Uni: Milion Baht)

Loans 3n,3n 348,671 141,43 256,255 301,013 15414
Domestic Credit Loans 20,957 326,389 192,653 2.7
Trade Finance Loans 18,218 22,282 63,298 18,296
BIBF Loans 1,102 304 “
Housing Loans 112,046 92,288
Credit Card Loans 20,505 16,758
Consumer Loans 8,885 6,427

Regarding the Bank's loans classified by business and product groups, an increase in the
BanK's total loans, as of the end of December 2008, was led by a Baht 47,658 million increase in SME
Business loans to Baht 348,671 milfion at the end of 2008, from the Baht 301,013 million seen al the
end of 2007. This increase in SME Business loans was mainly from domestic credits, particularty in
the commerce, agriculture and comstruction materid industries. Following this were Corporate
Business loans, showing an increase of Baht 45,122 million to Baht 301,377 miffion, from the Baht
256,255 million at the end of 2007, especially in the financial instiution (excluding the hire-purchase
and financial lease sector) and property businesses. Then, growth in Retadl Business loans totaled
Baht 25,962 million to Baht 141,436 million, from Baht 115,474 million at the end of 2007, due mainly
10 an increase in housing loans.

KASIKORNBANK's Deposits

(Units: Milion Baht)

Total Deposts 100.00 93788 704408 1843800 2351
Current Accounts 492 41,648 W A N8
Savings Accounts 4575 MM AT 5104 130
Fixed-Term Deposd Accourts 03 99 M94M 18455 %6




As of December 31, 2008, total deposits - comprising deposits of our corporate, SME, and
retail business customers - amounted to Bakt 368,788 mifiion, rising by Baht 184,380 million, or 23.51
percent, over the Baht 784,408 milion seen at the end of 2007. This was mainly attributable to
increases in fixed-term deposit accounts, after we introduced various deposit products meeting the
diverse needs of customers.

o Operating Performance of K Companies

Operating Performance of K Companies

{Units: Mition Bahi)

Kleasing  Quistanding Loans 213
KAsset Assels Under Management (AUM) 352,644 319,035
Market Share (Pescent) 16.50 14.35
KSecuries  Trading Volume 116,660 90,529
Market Share (Percent) 141 1.06

Note: KResearch is not inchided, as the company does not engage in financial business.

In 2008, the operating performance of KFactoring and Kleasing - K Companies that
incorporate related financial services and provide loan factities to customers - showed major
increases of 7.14 and 53.02 percent in their credit extension, respectively. Moreover, these two
companies continued to emphasize efficient risk management in response to changing economic
circumstances, and control of their loan quafity in accordance with the same risk appetite and
standards applied by the Bank.

Meanwhile, KAsset saw their 2008 growth of assets under management (AUM) at 10.53
percent over the previous year, which was significantly higher than the 3.50-percent contraction rate
of the market average. The company's AUM market share improved to 16.50 percent in 2008.
Exceptional performance was also achieved by KSecurities. After only three years in operation,
KSecurities was honored with the "Best Securities Company™ award for 2008 by the Stock Exchange
of Thailand (SET). Furthermore, the company's market share in the securities brokerage business,
gauged by trading volume, jumped to 26" place in 2008 from 30® place during 2007. However, the
company’s corporale finance business was hurt by unfavorable economic conditions. Some of the
company's initial public offering deals have been postpored into 2009, while a precise timetable of
these deals remains pending appropriateness and the right opportunity.
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3.5 Treasury Operations

In addition 1o managing interest rate and Bquidity risks against future interest rate trends and
fiquidity conditions, the Central Treasury Department also manages the Bank's investment portfolios
with the aim of achieving maximum retums at appropriate risk levels. It should be noted that all of
these activities are caried out in strict adherence to the Bank's policies, goveming authorities’ rules
and requfations, as well as operations of KGroup's various business units.

o Operating Environment and Business Operations
Circumstances in 2008 showed the world economy in perit and significant changes in the

global policy interest rate trend. Initially, from the beginning of the year until the third quarter of 2008,
more attenion was given to inflation risk than the risk associated with the national ecenomic
expansion, due to the unprecedented increases in crude oil and commodity prices in the world
market. The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) of the BoT thus resolved to maintain the 1-day
repurchase rate — the policy rate — at 3.25 percent throughout the first six-month period, before an
increase in the policy rate by 0.25 percent in each monthly MPC meeting in July and August to 3.75
percent. However, there was a greater economic risk in the final quarter of the year, due to growing
concerns over the widespread global economic and financial crisis, in addition to the local political
uncertainties in Thadand. On the other hand, domestic inflationary pressures eased significantly,
following a drop in crude ol and commodity prices, as well as implememation of the “6-Point, 6-Month
Package: Weathering the Economic Crisis for Thai People” program initiated by the Thai govemment.
As a result, the MPC announced a hefty cut in MPC rate by 1.00 percent to 2.75 percent, in the final
MPC Meeting of the year on December 3. KBank, in this regard, had adjusted our interest rate risk
and liquidity management strategies, 1o be appropriate for the situations in different periods.

The intensifying global economic and financial crisis, especially in the final quarter of the
year, has not only led to a deepening and prolonged recession, bul impacts of the crisis as reflected
in higher credit, liquidity and counterparty risks, have also resulted in tighter Bquidity across the
global money market, shown through a greater swing in the short-term money market rates. The
fiquidity shortage also prevaled in FX swap. To remedy the crisis, central banks worldwide
concurrertly adopted a more accommodative monetary policy, in parallel with liquidity imection into
the market. The US Federal Reserve (Fed), for instance, announced a drastic cul in the Fed Funds
rate down to a range of just 0.00-0.25 percert by the end of 2008, from 4.25 percent al the end of
2007. The Fed aso vowed to embark on other possible quantitative easing measures to rectify the
crisis.

Amid this global economic and financial crisis, KBank has experienced only minimal
impacts, due to precautious preparation and preventative measures, through the more prudent
analysis of risks associated with our investments. The Bank had steadily and significanty reduced



our foreign investment portiolio from the middle of 2007, and shified our attention to domestic
investments carrying low risk with high fiquidity. Also, future risks and investment opportunities have
been closely monitored, while a 10-year subordinated debenture, totafing Baht 17,000 million, was
offered late in 2008 to help strengthen our capital base, helping us to be ready for future changes in
business circumstances. Moreover, we continued to place considerable emphasis on investment risk
assessment, as well as development of relevant system.
o Financial Position

For 2008, the total investments of the Central Treasury Department averaged Baht 161,843
milion, decreasing by Baht 17,728 million, or 9.87 percen, from 2007. Money market investments
accounted for 37.37 percent of the total investments, while investments in the capital markel
accounted for the remaining 62.63 percent.

Central Treasury Department’s income
(Unis; Milicn Baht)

T Temd WD zuf @m@a T
Interest and Dividend Income *

Interbank and money market tems 3520 2,048 3,755 (1700)  {(46.46)
Investments 54.80 30 4,047 @m (6.84)
[ . Wi BB TR ()
Note: * The ﬁgures abowe 2 managerial fiqures.

= Includng loans.

In 2008, the Central Treasury Department earned total interest and dividend income of Baht
5,818 million, falling by Baht 1,984 miltion, or 25.43 percent, from 2007. This was mainly due to falling
interest rates and a decrease in investments.
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4. Risk Management and Risk Factors’

4.1 Overall Risk Management
KASIKORNBANK has engaged in a consofidated risk management lramework, covering fisks

of the entire financial conglomerate, with the target of achieving sustainable retums, business growth,
as well as value-added benefits to our shareholders and investors. Our major risk management
inchudes credit, market, liquidity and operaticnal risks, as well as other risk factors. To ensure our risk
management effectiveness, the Bank adheres to risk management strategies that are in ling with best
practices. These are, for instance:

® Regarding our overall risk management, acceptable risk appetites of the Bank have been
identified, while the value-based management framework has been applied to our
business management.

® |n managing each type of risk, the Bank has adopted sophisticated risk management
tools, such as customers’ credit scoring for our credit risk management, the Value-at-Risk
tool for our market risk management, an early waming system and contingency funding
plan for our liquidity risk management, and key risk indicators used in our operational risk
managemen.

The Bank's risk management poficy consists of the following main elements:

a Risk Management Principles
The Bank's risk management includes credit, market, Gquicity, operational, and other risk

management. The principles of Risk-adjusted Retum on Capital (RAROC) and Econemic Profit are
also used to measure risk management performance. The Bank operates under the following Risk
Management principles:
e Business Lines Accountable for Risk

Business units own the risks assumed, and are responsible for continuous and active
management of all risk exposures, so that risks and returns are optimally managed in ine with the risk
appelite. Meanwhile, support units, which provide services to core business urds and share commen
business goals, are accountable for managing business-desived operational risks.

o Independent Risk Controls
An independent nsk control process is implemented with the estabiishment of control
functions responsible for providing an independem and objective view of risk-taking activities 1o
safequard the integrity of the entire risk process. In addition, these control functions are set to ensure that

? For the anmual report, this chapter is shown in the "Risk Management and Risk Factors” section.
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the risk level is in fine with the risk appetite.
o Defimed Risk Management Policy
The Risk Management Commitiee determines risk management poicy undes quidefines from
the Bank's Board of Directors.
o Integrated Risk Management
The management of various kinds of risks incurred from al aspedis of the Bank's business
transactions is carried outin an integrated framework at all levels within the organization.

o Risk-adjusted Perfformance Measurement
The performance of business units is measured and evatuated on a risk-adjusted basis.

o Risk Management Process
To enswe effective risk management, the Bank has outiined a risk management process,

which includes the following key steps:
¢ Risk Identification
Key risks are proactively identfied in detad, including types and sources of risks, as wel as
other risk-related factors, both internal and external, Assessments and projections of the Bank's current
and expected nisks are also in place.
o Risk Measurement
Various models and methodologies for risk measurements suitable for different business
characteristics are utiized These models and methodologies are vesified, approved and reviewed
reqularty.
o  Risk Monitoring and Control
Risk measirement pokicies and appetites designated by the Bank's Board of Directors, which
are implemented through various quidefines, procedures and risk limits, are continuously monitored.
e Risk Reporting |
Timely and adequate tisk reports covering al aspects of operations are required to ensure
highest effectiveness in risk management.
The Bank's risk management process has accounted for both normal and crisis Situations,
which is in Ene with risk management best practices.

a Risk Management Structure
The Bank's organization has been structured to facilitate all aspects of nisk management,

while each business unit's responsibifities and segregation of duties have been clearly identified in
accordance with good internak-contrel practices. The Bank's overal risk management framework
encompasses the following organizational structure:
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o " The Bank's_Board of Directors has the ulimate responsibiity for approving all risk

* management poficies and quidefines, setting risk fimits and risk appegites, and ensuwing the
establishment of effective risk management systems and procedures in ine with intemational
standards.

o The Audit Committee & responsible for reviewing risk management processes and the
intemal risk control system, enstring their adequacy and eflectiveness.

Furthermore, the Bank's Board of Directors has assigned the following commiltees and sub-
commitiees to assist in managing various risks.
o The Risk_Management Committee is responsible for overseeing and monitoring risk
management poficies and overal risk profle per the policies and guideines approved by the
Bank's Board of Directors.

o The Asset and Liabifities Management Sub-Committee is responsible for managing interest
rate, iquidity and foreign exchange risks.

o  The Credit Policy Sub-Committee is responsible for establishing credi policies that are in fine
with the Bank's strategies and credit risk appetite.

The day-lo-day responsibility for measuring and monitoring all related risks has been
defegated to the Internal Risk Management Department. This department is accountable for
developing sophisticated fisk management tools by converting all related risks into a single
comparable term of capital. This concept enables the Bank to estimate and control the magnitude of
various types of risks, set pricing that reflects the risk level of different customers and businesses, and
allocate capital to property reflect retumns and risk levels.

o KASIKORNBANK Risk Management amid Global Ecoromic and Financial Crisis
Under gtobal economic uncertainty spreading from the sub-prime crisis in the U.S., which

is causing severe impact to leading financial instiuions worldwide, KBank, actively responding to the
crisis, has effectively managed our situation as follows:

o KBank has been closely monitoring the 1.5, financial crisis and its subsequent impacts

on financial markets and the world economy. Investment strategies have been revised,

with reduction in investment in foreign assets prior to the imception of the crisis, in mid-

2007. In-depth analyses regarding the risks associated with various mvestment

alternatives have been performed. Therefore, no exposre in the sub-prime morigage

securities was undertaken, and the Bank was not affected by the impairment of such
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assets.

o The Bank has assessed any possible impacts on credit quality which might affect
customers’ loan repayment capabiity. Hence, the credit risk management processes
have been adjusted with an aim of minimizing losses from any events of default caused
by the global economic crisis.

o The Bank has also been performing stress tests to assess any possible losses and
continuously reporting obtained resufts to senior management during the crisis in order to
ensure timely decision-making. The contingency plans for stressed situations have been
addressed, for example, fiquidity contingency plans under the scenario of severe deposit
funs.

o The Bank's management has closely monitored and proactively managed fiquidity
structure, which includes the diversification of sources of funds to avoid a fquidity
shortage due to a particular source.

4.2 Risk Management
o Credit Risk Management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a countesparty or borrower may default on contractual
obligations or agreements. Such a default may be caused by the counterparty’s inability to pay
because of financial encumbrances, o their intention not to abide by the agreements, resulling in a
loss to the Bank.

Credit Risk Management Guidefines

The Bank has adopted a risk management procedure ai intemational standards, based on
sound balance between the business and credit underwriting functions to promote transparency, as
well as checks-and-balances in credit processes. Credit-related staff all share the goals of promoting
and atiaining good credit quality.

In so doing, the Bank has strengthened a rebable credit cufture within the organization,
emphasizing sound efficiency in credit operations and quality, under appropriate monitoring and
controls, through the development of the slandard automated operational and support systems. As
for personne! management, the Bank has defined the operationa! procedures, roles, duties and
responsibiities from the business divisions down to mdividua levels, for common understanding and
communications on the same grounds. The Bank has also provided continuous training for credit-
related officers to upgrade their knowledge and skill to be appropriate for the natures of customers
under their supervision.

Credit Poficies and Credit Risk Management Tools

In order to defme clear operational targets for staff, the Bank has estabished business
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strategies based on an acceptable risk appetite. These business strategies have been ranslated into
a consistent set of credit policies and action plans that cover all customer segments and credit
product lines of the Bank and subsidiaries under KGroup, especially financial products of KFactoring,
and Kleasing. Proper qualifications for credit eligibiity of our customers have been established to
fully comply with iternational standards and regulatory requirements of BoT.

In addition to the Bank's constant improvements in our credit risk management tools, especially
in the aspect of customers’ risk assessment and loan portfolio diversfication, credit policies are
reqularly reviewed and updated to ensure that they are in ne with the guiding principles and
rationale, and are always available as a reference for staff through the Bank's onfine information
systems. Customer risk rating tools have been devetoped and wiized to support credit underwriting
and set the appropriate risk-based pricing for each group of customers. As for performing business
customers, their credit ratings are classified into fwelve difierent ratings. Three additional ratings are
set specifically for non-performing business customers. Regarding retadl customeys, credit scoring is
in place to improve credit approval standards and efficiency.

As for the sub-prime mortgage crisis in the U.S., which caused widespread effects worldwide in
2008, it has generated some impacts on the Thai economy, including the credit quafity of some target
customers. The Bank, in respaonse, has developed tools for credit risk monitoring, together with a clear
contingency plan for any unexpected events, for maximum efficiency in risk monitoring. Additionally,
the Bank has assessed some possible impacts on income and asset values among entrepreneurs and
households, especially the impacts on thei debt servicing capabifity, which would reduce any
possible loss from an event of default. The Bank has also revised the criteria and methods for credit
risk management, classified by customer segments, as below:

1. As for owr medium and large business customers, the Bank has graded industies which
are likely to experience adverse impacts from the crisis as high, medium, and low. Criteria
for customer selection have been set, while customer status, as well as monitoring and
control of credit uses, have also been reviewed.

2. As for our small business and retail customers, under the credit scoring method, the Bank
has adjusted certain factors used in credit underwriting of customers in high-risk industries
to better reflect the changing economic environment.

o Quistanding Loans
As of December 31, 2008, the Bank's consofidated outstanding loans stood at Baht 904,008

million, increasing by Baht 141,503 million, or 18.56 percent, over Baht 762,505 milkon at the end of
207.
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As of December 31, 2008, 60.75 percent of the Bank's outstanding loans to customers were
loans exceeding Baht 20 million. Credit extended to the 20 largest berrowers, excluding Phethai
Asset Management Company Limited and the companies in KGroup, accounted for Baht 53,821
milion, or 5.98 percent of the Bank's total loan portiofio, which is not high compared to total
outstanding loans of the Bank. Classified by customer type, juristic persons accounted for Baht
567,564 million, or 63.02 percent of outstanding loans; while sole proprietorships and individual
customer credit accounted for the remaining 36.98 percent In terms of maturity, credit with
maturities of less than or equal to 1 year accounted for 59.79 percent of the Bank's total loans.

The Bank's Consolidated Lending Portfolio - Profile

Less then 20 MB Over 20 MB
As of December 31, 2008 325
Credt Amount
movemenizm 30 S
Busingss entiiies Individuzal
As of Degember 31, 2008 | 6302 D
Type of Customer
As of December 31, 2007 6156
Less than or equal o 1 year Over 1 yewr
As of December 31, 2008 519 XN
Credit Maturity

As of December 31, 2007

. 57 |

0 % 4%  60% 80% 100%

The Bank’s consolidated lending portfolio, including accrued imerest receivables, as of the
end of 2008 and 2007, is depicted in the following:
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The Bank's Consolidated Lending Portfofio
(Accrued Interest Receivables inclusive)

As of December 31, 2008 As_of December 31, 2007
Otwers  Agricuural & Mring Oﬂm Agicutural & Miring
10.73% 1% 3.07%
Housing Loans Huusng Loans
1297%
Utties & Services Utiibes & Sevvices
931% 8.72%
Real Estate & Red Estate ﬁ
Cnmnmon
601%
Mandecturing & Commerce Manufacturing § Commerce
51.62% 60.35%

# Nor-performing Loans
As of December 31, 2008, the Bank's consolidated NPLs stood at Baht 33,686 milion, equal
10 3.09 percent of the total outstanding credit, inctuding that of financial institutions. For Bank-only
NPLs, the amount totaled Baht 30,630 million, accounting for 2.81 percent of the total outstanding
credit, including that of financial institutions, which decfined from the end of 2007. These NPL figures
are shown in the table below.

Non-Performing Loans

(Units: Miion Bahi)
[ i om0 o READ eS|
The Bank's consolidated NPLs 33,686 34,980
Pescent of total outstanding credd, including that of financial mstitutions 3.09 44
The Bank-only NPLs 30,630 31915
Percen of total oulstanding cred, including that of financial institutions 281 4.06

The Bank of Thailand (BoT) has required commeycial banks to report additional information
on NPLs, which includes:

— Net NPLs, which refer to non-performing loans after alowances are deducted.

- The ratio of net NPLS to total loans after deducting aflowances for bad loans.

As of December 31, 2008, the Bank's consofidated net NPLs stood at Baht 15,712 miflion,
equal to 1.47 percent of the total outstanding credit, including that of financial institutions. For the
Bank-only net NPLs, the amount totaled Baht 13,591 milion, accounting for 1.27 percent of the total
outstanding credit, including that of financial institutions, which declined from the end of 2007. The
net NPL figures are shown in the table below:



Net Non-Performing Loans

{Units: Milion Baht)
The Bark's consolidated net NPLs 15,112 17,600
Percent of total outstanding credil, including that of financial institutions 14 229
The Bartk-ony net NPLs 13,501 15,716
Percent of total outstanding credil, including that of fmancial institutions 121 205

In 2008, the Bank and subsidiary companies entered into debt restructuring agreements with
borrowers with pre-written-off outstanding debts totafing Baht 48,128 miflion. At the same time, the
Bank-only pre-written-off outstanding debt amounted to Baht 47,696 milion. The details of debt
restructuring and losses from debt restructuring as of the end of 2008 and 2007 are shown in the
following table:

Debt Restructuring and Losses from Debt Restructuring

{Units: Mifion Baht)
Debt restructuring of the Bank and subsidiary companies 48,128 29,960
Losses from deb restructuring 2993 1424
Debi restructuing of the Bank only 41,6% 28,94
Losses from det restructuring 2938 1,20

 Allowance for Doubiful Accounts and Revaluation Aowance for Debt Restructuring
As of December 31, 2008, the Bank's conscfidated aflowances for doubtful accounts and
revaluation allowance for debt restructuring totaled Baht 29,772 million. This amount was equivalent
to 127.40 percent of the level required by the BoT. As for Bank-only allowances for doubtful accounts,
the amount stood at Baht 28,502 million, which was equivalent to 125.17 percent of the level required
by the BoT.
o Foreclosed Properties
As of December 31, 2008, the Bank's consolidated foreclosed properties had a cost value of
Baht 16,135 million, accounting for 1.24 percent of total assets. At the same tme, Bank-only
foreclosed properties had a cost value totaing Baht 12,616 milbon, accourting for 0.97 percent of
lotal assets.
Meanwhile, consofidated allowances for impairment of foreclosed properties stood at Baht
1,743 milion, equivalent to 10.80 percent of the cost value of those fareclosed properties. As for
Bank-only figures, allowances for the impairment of foreclosed properties totaled Baht 1,387 million,
representing 10.99 percen of the cost value of foreclosed properties. Curent allowances, both
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consofidated and Bank-only, are befieved to be sufficient to cover holding, maintenance and disposal
expenses, as well as losses on the liquidation of foreclosed properties. The details of foreclosed
properties and their associated allowances, as of the end of 2008 and 2007, are shown below:

Foreclosed Properties
(Linits: Miion Batx)
e e Yy e o BRBAR o DR SLA:

Consolidated for properties 16,135 17,343
Pescent of total assels 1.4 114
Allowances for impaiment of consofidated foreclosed properties 1,143 1,918
Perceni of consolidated foreclosed properties 10.80 14
Bani-onty foreclosed properties 12,616 12,7120
Percent of total assels 0.97 128
Allowances for impaiment of Bank-only foreclosed properties 1,381 1,467
Percent of Bank-only foreclosed properlies 10.99 11.53

® Phethai Asset Management Company Limited

As of December 31, 2008, Phethai AMC had resolved and/or restructured NPLs amounting to
Baht 72,294 million, or 98.00 percent of the total initial unpaid principal balance, with an expected
recovery rate of 48.00 percent. The details of NPL resolution and/or restructuring over the past five
quarters are shown in the table below.

Loans Resoived/ Restructured at Phethai Asset Management Company Limited
{Units: MaBon Baht)

P

LR et
gement Company Limited
Cumulative loans resolvedirestructured 12,294 12100 161 11,510 70,262
Percent of the total initial unpaid principal balance 98.00 91.00 96.96 96.62 94.93

o Thai Asset Management Corporation (TAMC)

The Bank has tansferred the sub-quatty debis of bomowers, who all had characteristics
matching those in the Emergency Decree on the Thai Asset Management Corporation {B.E. 2544)
and the Asset Transfer Agreement, to TAMC.

In exchange for the transferred assets, TAMC issued the Bank a 10-year, non-ransferable,
callable note, guaranteed by the Financial Institution Development Fund (FIDF). The notes’ yields
imclude an annual coupon, resel quarterly, at the weighted average of deposi rates of five major Thai
commercial banks, paid for by a 1-year, extendable, non-transferable, FIDF-quaranteed note.

36



Despite the asset transfer to TAMC, the Bank remains exposed to a proportion of risk in our
share of TAMC's potential losses. According to the Emergency Decree on the Thai Asset
Management Corporation (B.E. 2544} and the Asset Transfer Agreemer, at the end of the fifth and
tenth years dating from July 1, 2001, TAMC and the Bank would share gains or losses arising from the
resolution of the Bank's fransferred assets.

During the year ending December 31, 2008, the Bank did not transfer any additional assets
to TAMC. As a resul, the total transfemed assets, with a gross book value of Baht 14,557 million as of
December 31, 2008, were priced at Baht 10,072 milion. Meanwhile, the Bank recorded FIDF notes in
payment, totafing Batt 10,072 mifion.

According to primary information as suggested by TAMC, the Bank had Baht 23 mikon
losses arising from these sub-quality debt accounts.

o Market Risk Management
Market risk arises from changes in interest rates and exchange rates, as well as in securities

and commodity prices, which can cause volatifty in the Bank's mcome or the economic value of

assets and hiabifities of the Bank and K Companies, either at present or in the futwre.

Market Risk Management Guidelines

The Bank utiizes market risk management principles that are efficient and suitable for the
changing environment, while asset and fabifty structures are propery managed, and market risk is
controlled in accordance with the risk appetite. Also, the Bank's market risk management is set to
comply with the BoT's requirements and related regulations, and with the policies controlled by the
Risk Management Committee. In addition, transparency in our market risk management structure has
continually been maintained, reflecting segregation of duties, while independence of risk control
functions has been emphasized.

Market Risk Management Procedures and Tools

Core banking operations that are exposed to market risk can be divided ino two major
groups: asset and Eability management activities, and trading book actiwities.

e Market Risk in Asset and Liability Management Activities

Interest Rate Risk Management

The Assets and Liabifities Management Sub-Commitiee (ALCO) is responsible for
monitoring and controlling intesest rate fisk stemming from mismatches between the interest rate and
the asset and liability structures of the Bank. ALCO's objective is to generate the highest retums o
the Bank, while maimaining risk within levels approved by the Risk Management Committee and the
Board of Directors.
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The Bank analyzes mismalches of repricing periods in assets and habities to
evaluate the interest rate risk level. These sensitivity analyses are used to analyze the effect of
changes in deposit, lending, money market and capital market rates on the Bank's interest income
over the next twelve months, as wel as on our financial position and off-balance-sheet items. With
results obtained from these sensitivity analyses, the Bank's asset and liability structures, which are
finked to various types of interest rates, are property managed.

Analyses of financial assets and fiabifities based on contractual repricing periods of
KBank and subsidiaries, as of the end of 2008 and 2007, are shown below:

Consolidated Financial Statement as of December 31, 2008

(Units: Mfion Ba

. i % N :
Financiat Assets
Cash - . - - . 21,751 21,751
Interbank and money markel
tems 8,466 186,191 . . - 4132 198,789
Investmen 6,700 26,687 25,592 n22 1370 58001 11847 104,65
Loans 624,641 105,241 1172 52,843 52,338 25131 59,200 904,008
Accrued interest receivables - - - - - 1,485 1,485
Customers’ Eabiity under
acceptances - - - . . 492 492
Other assets . . . - - 4,876 4876
Told 639,807 318119 32,764 84,055 59,708 472091 60394 ! 1,242,056
Financial Liabikties
Deposits 442,984 315,675 | 146,384 15,680 . 4,221 967,950
Interbank and money market
items 10,446 3289 569 140 896 35N 18,91
Liabiities payable on
demand . - . - - 10,883 10,883
Borrowing . 82,900 15227 33,0 6,962 16 138,159
Bank's fiabiiity under
acceplances . . . - - 492 492
Other iabities . . - - - 1151 1151
Tota 453,430 401864 | 162,180 48,874 1858 69,340 1,143,546
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Consolidated Financial Statement as of December 31, 2007

{Units: Miion Baht)

Financial Assels

Cash - - - - . 18,051 - 18,051
Interbank and money market

items 4,952 50,398 62 . - 2,9% . 58,408
Securtties purchased undey

resale agreemenls - 10,700 . - . . - 10,700
Investment 18,432 1,633 16,737 2 17,763 12176 | 1,469 99,322
Loans 952,810 85,304 1,087 624 2Im 8945 | 52,024 762505
Accrued imerest receivables - . - . . 1,263 . 1,263
Customers' fabiity under

acceplances - . - - - 1462 - 1,462
Other assets . . . . . 5293 . 5293
Tolal 576,194 148,035 17,886 65,736 45,474 50,786 | 53493 957,004
Fmancial Liabiiies

Deposits 392,692 313,718 33832 1,839 - 11,681 - 183,822
Interbank and meney market

tems 1671 8,763 600 343 - 2,802 . 14,185
Lizbilities payable on

demand - - - - - 11 . 1117
Borrowing - 38,198 8 30N 18,724 - - 58,100
Bank's iabibty under

acceptances - . - - - 1,462 . 1,462
Other fabikties - - - - - 6,101 - 6,107
Totd 394,369 360,738 35,309 2483 18,724 63,169 - 874,193
@D@g BENCRNEEY S T iR g : B k ‘-s‘
ﬁmm "‘ , L. ‘ {1'2'983) Rt an "

Equity Risk Management

The Bank has ne policy of adding to our equity investments, and has plans to
reduce the size of these investments that are unrelated to our core financial businesses. In this
endeavor, we will analyze relevant information and timing to ensure maximum benefit to the Bank.
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o Market Risk in Trading Book Activities

Trading book activities are handled under the guidance of the Bank's policy set
particularly for activities that involve the purchase and sale of currencies, fixed-income securities and
derivative instruments, as wefl as debt and property fund underwriting. The Capital Markets Business
Division is responsible for managing risk status as a resuit of changes in interest rates, exchange
rates and derivatives embedded under these transactions. In addition, the trading book activites
inciude equity underwriting, whose risk status is under management by K Companies. All trading
book activities are under the close supervision of the Internal Risk Management Department and the
Risk Management Committee to ascertain that the aggregate risk of trading book activities is within
the imit structure. This fimit structure is constantly monitored through the use of the Value-at-Risk
{VaR) Limit and Sensitivity Limit methods.

Furthemmore, a stress-testing system has been developed to estimate potential losses
caused by various shocks on the Bank's financial positions not captured in VaR calculations. In the
stress-testing procedure, due attention is also paid to some 'Past Crisis Scenarios’ and the adverse
consequences thereof, such the Asian economic crisis in 1997, and the 9/11 attacks in the U.S., efc.
This stress-testing procedure also includes *Hypothetical Crisis Scenarios’, such as different change
patierns of yield curves, efc. A testing procedure for the Bank's VaR model, known as ‘Back Testing’,
has aiso been improved and implemented for sounder market risk measurement. In two charts
below, the chart on the lef shows a comparison between estimated results using the VaR method and
hypothetical profits and losses. It was found that the differences between the two series were within a
satisfactory range. In the meantime, the Bank also monitors the distribution of daily market nisk-
related gains and losses, as shown in the chart on the right, to complement our routing sk analyses.
AD of these analytical assessments confirm the efficiency of the Bank's risk management tools,
thereby promoting efficient market risk management as being in fine with intenationat standards.

In 2008, the Bank was in the process of adopting and implementing a Capital Markets
Business System to enhance business capability and risk management, allowing us to handle nisks
associated with some new products in the market. The new system is now in partial use.

Back Testing for Trading Portfollo Duily Market Riak-Ralated Oalne and Lossss

Froquncy

e ——————— Loaw Proik




The VaR for 1-day holding period, 99-percent confidence level of trading book, was Baht
52 million on average throughout 2008, meaning trading business had average daily potential loss of
less than Baht 52 miiion in 99 out of 100 business days.

In the derivative business in 2008, the Bank engaged in an increasing number of
transactions to meet the diverse demand from customers, such as Foreign Exchange Forward,
Inmerest Rate Swap, Interest Rate Option, Foreign Exchange Option, Structured Notes, Credit
Derivatives and Commodity Deivatives, efc. Al these transactions were under risk appetites as
specified by the Board of Directors. Meanwhile, the Bank continued to develop necessary platforms
and procedures for timely and suitable management of risks incured from these new, more
sophisticated products. We also plan fo upgrade calculations of capital adequacy with respect to
these complex derivatives and other financial instruments.

The Bank had emphasized study and development to strengthen our credit risk
management capabifity, by mitigating credit risks from our lending portfolio through our capital
markets products and tools, such as Credit Default Swap and securitization, efc. These instruments
enable us to manage concentration risk more effectively with higher Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR),
while allowing more efficiency in responding to the customers’ needs. In the long run, this strength
will enable the Bank to maximize Risk-adjusted Return by adopting financial instruments and models
for loan portiofio management.

As for debt, equity, and property fund underwriting under management by KGroup in
2008, there was some large equity underwriting in property and energy sectors. We, in this regard,
have adopted the procedures for risk measurement and control, according to the imits as specified,
under oversight and control by the Internal Risk Management Department and Risk Management
Committee.

Interest Risk Management

The Bank has entered transactions, such as Interest Rate Swap, to satisfy customer
demand for interest rate risk management. Interest Rate Risk has been confrolled under limits, by the
Intemal Risk Management Department and Risk Management Commitiee. Risk analysis, under the
'VaR' method, has also been adopted for effective management of interest rate risk.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Capital Markets Business Division manages the purchase and sale of foreign
currencies on a daily basis, which can induce exchange rate risk, thereby affecting the Bank's profit
and loss and financial status. The Bank has a policy of maintaining this risk at a low level by seting
fimits on foreign currency positions in accordance with the Bank's business and requirements of the
BoT. These limits are kept under the close supervision of the Intemal Risk Management Department
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and the Risk Management Committee. In addition, the VaR method is used to manage foreign
exchange risk.

o Liquidity Risk Management

Liquicty Risk arises from a failure to meet obligations when they come due, because of an
inabifity to convert assels into cash, or to obtain sufficient funds to meet cash needed with
appropriate costs within a imited time period, which may then result in a loss to the Bank.

Liquidity Risk Management Guidefines

The Central Treasury Department is responsible for managing liquidity in order to meet cash
needed by the Head Office and branches by managing highly Equid Baht and foreign currency
assets, as well as balancing short-term and long-term funding altematives. The Bank has also
adopted the uniform liquidity risk monitering procedures for K Companies for the more effective
fiquidity management of the whole KGroup. The Asset and Liabifity Management Sub-Committee
(ALCOY) is respansible for setting up poficies and guidelines for managing liquidity, which must be
complied with Equidity risk standards approved by the Risk Management Committee and the Board of
Directors.

Liquidity Risk Management Procedures and Tools

In managing liquidity risk, the Bank set a farget for maximizing efficiency in liquid asset
management at the most appropriate costs, which can be achieved through maintenance of fiquid
assets to sufficiently meet cash needed in both normal and critical situations, and in line with the BoT
guidelines. As of December 31, 2008, the Baht 329,431 million of iquid assets held by the Bank and
subsidiaries consists of cash, interbank and money marke! ilems, and net investments in securities.
This amount increased by Baht 146,430 million over the leved as of December 31, 2007.

Futhermore, the Bank has paid due attention to the assessment of our future liquidity needs,
by estimating cash receivables and payables in different currency denominations, taking inlo account
all factors involved, especially assets, fabiiies and contingent babties. The Bank has also
enhanced capability of our early waming system to cover more various types of risk and frequencies,
for ensuring the more extensive risks assessment for effective risk management. Moreover, a
contingency funding plan has been prepared for a smooth and timely response to critical situation,
such as liquidity shortage.

Additionally, constant monitoring of changes in the balance sheet structure and customer
behaviors likely to affect the Bank's cash flow is another important procedure for liquidity risk
managemenl. Calculations and analyses of various fiquidity ratios are conducted, as they are used
as early-waming indicators to facilitate liquidity management and related decision-making. An



important Equidity ratiois the Loan-to-Depasit Ratio, which stood at 93.39 percent as of December 31,
2008, decreasing from 97.28 percent at the end of 2007.

As for development of a new database system, we have started using the new system for
conducting fiquidity risk monitering reports since August 2008, while assumptions used for balance
sheel management and development of treasury product information have been reviewed for higher
efficiency in reporting procedure and liquidity risk managemen.

The Bank, moreover, has emphasized tmely monitoring of changes in business environment,
which might affect liquidity risk management, particulary changes in regulatory requirements, such
as the abofition of the 30-percent Unremunerated Reserve Requirement for short-tesm capital inflows
since March 2008, changes in BoT monetary poficy management tools, as wef] as enforcement of BoT
Notification, dated August 3, 2008, regarding “Liquidity Risk Management among Financial
Institutions. These changes also included the local political instabiity, inflation, along with the global
economic and financial crisis. All these were the major factors urging KBank to adopt a more
cautious stance in fiquidity management. Meanwhile, the Bank has improved the management and
measurement of risks for the effective projection and forecast of future volatiity, in order to define
management strategies that fit most to the situation.

Financial assets and liabiities, as of the end of 2008 and 2007, based on their contractual
maturities, are shown below:

Consofidated Financial Statement as of December 31, 2008

{Unis: MiGon Bah)
Financial Assets
Cash . - 21,151 21,151
Intesbank and money marked ftems 12215 | 185,574 198,789
Investment 518 21619 26,990 35,536 8,032 5,840 104,655
Loans 2001331 32041 17240 1818471 1837 904,008
Accrued interest receivables 16 1,443 1 19 6 1485
Customers' fiabdfity under . 492 . - - 492
acceplances
Other assets - 1,176 - . - 3,700 4,876
Total 213542 [ 537,841 M2 7402 191,149 1M 1,242,056
Financial Liabi
Deposits 490211 315675 | 146,384 15,680 967,950
Interbank and money market tems 14,019 3289 569 n 109 Py 18,91
Liabilities payable on demand 10,883 - - - . 10,883
Bomowing - 82,900 14,135 16,561 23,962 138,159




Ban¥'s fiabdity under acceptances 42 492
Other iabi¥ties 2,352 1420 207 . 304 115
Total 404708 | 163100 ( 32419 | 240N 3935 1,143,546
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Consolidated Financial Statement as of December 31, 2007

Financial Assets

Cash 18,051 18,051
Interbank and money market dems 8214 50,194 58,408
Securities purchased under resale

agreements 10,700 10,700
Investment 172] 14358 2985 37817 18463 6,526 99,322
Loans 173842 | 269,735 8299 | 151722 | 152907 762,505
Accrued interest receivables 12 1,20 13 18 1,263
Customers' fability under

acceplances 1,462 . 1,462
Other assets . 1,086 - - - 4,207 5293
Total 182,240 | 348,75 30,284 [ 195552 | 17,388 28,784 957,004
Deposis 8431 3378 33,812 1,859 783,822
Interbank and money market Rems 4,615 8127 1,143 300 14,185
Liabilties payable on demand ALY . - - - nm
Bomowing 38,198 87 3mm | 187M4 58,100
Bani's fiabiity tnder acceptances 1462 . 1462
Othey Kabilities 114 2,481 24 80 - 9,023 11,939
Total 450,226 | 364,046 1923 3383 19,04 9023
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o Operational Risk Management
Operational risk refers to the risk of direct or indirect losses, resulting from inadequate or
fafled intemal processes, personnel, operating and IT systems, or extemal events.
Operational Risk Management Framework
Operational risk exists in all banking products, procedures, business units and IT systems,
which can potentially incur losses to the Bank, as well as to our customers and shareholdess. The



Bank has placed greal emphasis on effective operational risk management, and has continually
improved our risk management framework to control and mitigate operational risk proactively. The
objective of this framework is to implement effective operational risk management practices with a
single standard that is systematically implemented across the entire KASIKORNBANK FINANCIAL
CONGLOMERATE. In so doing, our managemen! teams also gain an overall operational risk profde as
essential information for their decision-making and maintaining compliance with BoT reguiations, as
well as other relevant laws and intemational standards.

Operational Risk Management Structure
Al of our staff are accountable for operational risk management according to the framework

and policies established by the Intenal Risk Management Department, which is overseen by the Risk
Management Commitiee, that also reviews and approves the operational risk management framework
and guidefines for implementation within the Bank, plus at subsidiaries and assaciated companies
that operate in knancial or suppont businesses.

Meanwhile, the Inmemal Audit Departmemt, which is under the Audit Commitee, is
responsible for reviewing and vatidating the operational risk management framework to ensure the
effectiveness, propriety and transparency of risk management within al of our units.

Operational Risk Management Procedures and Tools

The Bank's procedures for operational risk management include risk identification,
assessment, control and monitoring, as wed as reporing. Al of these processes are camied out
periodically for accurate risk assessment and effective control to enstrre that risk is within acceptable
levels. Operational risk management tools and IT systems have been installed and improved upen
continuously to effectively monitor and assess operational risk management. These tools include:

e Risk and Control Sef-Assessment (RCSA) — The Bank employs self-assessment tools
within our business 1o identify significant operational risk, as well as to effectively control
and prevent losses. Risk management expertise is disseminated to employees to create
awareness and aid in efficient management of day-to-day operations, while a great
emphasis has been placed upon proactive management of opesational risk before any
loss is incumed. In addition, the results of our risk assessments and controls are
reqularly reported to high-level executives and the Risk Management Committee to
present an overall operational risk profie.

¢ Qperational Risk Event Database (RED) — The Bank has implemented 2 database
system and developed procedures to collect and report on operational risk events,
along with analyses of the actual causes of a given risk and prevention of them. This
helps avoid repetition of such events and is essential to developing situational models




for operational risk capital maintenance. The operaticnal risk event database is afso
used as an important inpu for Risk and Control Seff-Assessment.

Key Risk Indicators (KRf) — In addition to indicators used by almost a hundred leading
banks worldwide, the Bank has put into place various KRIs to effectively reflect the levels
of risk arising from systems, employees, and processes. In cooperation with business
units that are susceptible to risk, operational risk management staff identify KRls and
collects related information at regular intervals in order to monitor and track changes in
the risk level over ime, as well as serve as an early warning tool.

Business Continuity Management (BCM) — Throughout 2008, the Bank has continued to
implement our plan for Business Continutty Management (BCM) to mitigate and control
the impact of incidents that could cause major inerruptions to our main business
operations - examples being emergencies such as flooding, stomms, fire, termorist
attacks, epidemics, and pofitical unrest. We have established the "BCM Taskforce”, with
members representing afl relevant departments, fo menitor progress and to supesvise
implementation of BCM activities in general. This taskforce ascertains that the BCM
project is effective and appropriate for handling any incidents that coutd occur.
Although such incidents coufd cause suspension of our normal operations, we have 10
ensure that all crilical business functions can be camied out uninterrupled, and the
normal functions can be resumed in a timely manner,

In addition, other preparations incfude risk assessment, identification of criscal
business functions, business impact analyses, maximum allowable outage, business
continuity management strategy selection, and business continuity plans. In this regard,
the Bank has mapped out a plan to cope with impacts from a bird flu outbreak, a crisis
communication plan — that includes identification of the severity level of such cnises —
as well as establishment of an Incidet Response Team and Executive Crisis

“Management Team. The teams comprise high-level executives from all units concemed
with managing such incidents and deciding on actions for the highest efficiency and
effectiveness. We have also tested all contingency plans to ascertain that critical
business functions would continue to perform normally, even during sudden
catastrophes.

IT Systems for Operational Risk Management — The Bank's T infrastructure has
received continuous upgrades 1o suppon the development of our operational risk
management framework, with the purpose of enhancing our efficiency in risk
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management procedures and tools. In particular, these [T systems are important for
recording data for later analysis and reporting on operational risk events.

Aside from this, the Bank has also undentaken assessments of operational risk in regards to
new products and working procedures, to ensure that they have acceptable risk levels and that there
are appropriate controls in place before they are introduced to the Bank's customers. As for external
fraud, the Bank has placed great importance on implementing a security System to guard against
risks inherent to major products, such as credit cards, ATM cards and cheques, etc., for which the
Bank has a special unit tasked with investigating imegular transactions and risk factors. The Bank has
also installed state-of-the-art IT equipment and systems to thwart, recover from and/or reduce losses
incurred by such crime.

Overall operational risk reports an the Bank's products, together with reports on operational
risk events, are regularly presented to the Risk Management Committee to keep the Committee
abreast of curent operational risk profiles, ensuring that our work in risk management is in fine with
the Bank's related poficies and international practices. Furthermore, in order to meet Basel |l
standards on capital reserves for operational risk, the Bank has collecled data and prepared
siluational modeling to faciltate computations of the necessary capital reserves against this form of
isk. In addition, the Bank continues to develop, improve and upgrade our operational risk
management tools, procedures and systems.

o Other Risk Management

& Risks associated with Guarantees and Avals
Certain ransactions with customers are in the form of guaramees on their borrowing or
performance, letters of credit, or avals on notes. Such transactions are considered to be lending, which
requires submission of collateral. Regarding fisk control in this area, the Bank uses the same criteria as
used in the Bank's normal credit approval processes. As of December 31, 2008, the Bank's contingent
obligations were Baht 102,209 milion, compared to Baht 3,921 million at the end of December 2007,

® Risks Incurred from Contractual Obligations on Derivative Instruments

The Bank conducts various derivative transactions as tools for risk hedging, including
exchange rate, interest rate, as well as the Bank's securities price risks. To increase our income, the
Bank also provides derivative instrument trading services to customers and business allies, as well as
conducting our own derivative instrument trading in accordance with the Bank's poficies. As of
December 31, 2008, the Bank had foreign exchange contracts on the purchase side of Baht 370,011
miflion, with Baht 380,317 million on the sales side, compared to Baht 338,139 milion and Baht
372,471 milion, respectively, at the end of December 2007. In addition, the Bank had interest rate
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contracts on the purchase side of Baht 633,826 million and Baht 633,372 milion on the sales side,
compared to Baht 386,792 milion and Baht 402,904 millon, respectively, at the end of December
2007.
e Risks Related to Capilal Adequacy

As of December 31, 2008, the Bank's capital adequacy ratio was at 15.05 percem, which is
significantly above the BoT minimum requirement of 8.50 percent. To ensure that our current capital
level is fairly sufficient to absorb possible impacts from any change in the economic situation and
BoT's requlations, for the present and future, the Bank continues to manage and monitor capital
adequacy closely.

o The 'Basel I Capital Accord

Over several years, the Bank has continued to improve its risk management instruments,
systems and procedures 1o be in fine with imtemationally recognized best practices. Value-based
Management (VBM), Risk-adjusted Retum on Capita (RAROC) principles and the assessment of
capital adequacy based on stress testing results and business plans have been implemented to
ensure that the Bank has an efficient risk management system that can address global economic
volatility.

The Bank has also placed great importance on information disclosure, which would be
another channel for investors, shareholders, analysts and other relevant parties to assess the Bank's
risk management govemance. A working group has been established to supervise the disclosures to
ensure comprehensiveness, accuracy and transparency of information, as well as compliance with
intemational disclosure standards such as IFRS 7 (Intemational Financial Reporting Standards 7).

Hence, the BoT's Basel Il regulations, which also aim for effective capital management to
capture any significant risks which may occur in the complex financial market, have always been in
fine with the Bank's curen risk management policies. The Basel Il Capital Accord consists of the
three folowing pilars:
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¢ Minimum Capital
f Requirements
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businesses.
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use beter sk management
techniques in monitoring  and
managing the¥ risks.
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access  key  ifomation,
including:  capial  struciure,
capital adequacy, risk exposire
and assessment.

KBank has successfuly implemented Basel Il, and the Bank's capital calculation
methodologies for both credit and operational risks have been approved by the BoT. The Bank is
also a leading institution which proactively notiies the BoT of key concems and impacts of Basel [] via
the Basel il working forum, which was estabBished by the Thai Bankers' Association in cooperation
with the BoT. This helps pave the way for an effective fransition to the new capital standards.

As for an assessment of capital adequacy, as of December 31, 2008, the Bank has begun to
maintain requtatory capital in accordance with Basel Il principles. The capital adequacy ratio (CAR)
of the Bank equaled 15.05 percent, with Tier-1 capital accounting for 9.84 percent, greater than the
BoT minimum requirements of 8.50 and 4.25 percent for total capital and Tier-1 capital, respectively.
This indicates the Bank's solid financial strength, which enhances market confidence in the
sufficiency of our capital 1o accommodate risks arising from changes in the economic environment,
and comply with BoT regulations. The implementation of the Basel Il Capital Accord has led to a 0.8-
percent decrease in our CAR, which is less than the 1.5-percent average drop in thal of the banking
system. It was also the smallest decrease among large Thai commercial banks. This decrease in the
Bank's CAR was due to opesational risk capital, which is a new requirement under the Basel Il
standards. However, as the Bank adheres to best practices in risk management and capital
management, considering appropriate retums with respect fo acceptable risk appetites, the Bank's
business operations remain unaffected by implementation of the Base! Il principles.
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o Performance Measurement using Risk-adjusted Return on Capital (RARGC) and
Economic Proft

Throughout 2008, the Bank continued with development of the Value-based Management
(VBM) framework and efforts to put it into practice. With the VBM framewerk, the Bank is confident
that the highest value creation will be achieved for our shareholders through the adoption of the Risk-
adjusted Return on Capital (RAROC) and Economic Profit (EP). Economic Profit shows net profit after
adjusting for both the risk charge and the cost of capital. The Bank has developed VBM guidefines
which are integrated into varicus managemen applications. These include risk management and risk
measurement in terms of economic capilal that reflect true risk profie by risk type, strategic and
business planning based on risk/retum trade-off analysis, identification of overall risk capacity
expressed as Available Financial Resources (AFRs) such as Tier-1 capital, hybrid capitdl, etc. In
addition, the Bank has set the overall risk appetite level and determined key risk limits at portfofio level
to monitor, contral, and ensure that the overall leve! of risk taking wil be within risk capacity.

tn addition, the Bank has measured business performance and analyzed economic profits
for customer segments, product domains and individual products. Meanwhile, refated business units
have adopted the value-based analysis for business viability assessment of investment projects to
dynamically and efficiently adjust business strategies in line with the changing market environment.
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5. Operations of Support Groups

With the aim of enhancing competiiveness and upgrading operational efficiency of core
busmesses, KASIKORNBANK continued to develop all necessary support functions throughout 2008,
concesning human resources and IT faciiies. To summarize:

o Human

Resource Management for the Highest Business Efficiency of

KASIKORNBANKGROUP
In 2008, the Bank, through the Human Resource Division, provided human resource
management seivices, in pursuance to the HR Roadmap, in accordance with the Bank's strategic
direction and business plans for the KGroup. In detail:
e Recruitment: The Bank adjusted strategies of recruitment procedures for more efficient
recruimen of high-potential staff with sufficient numbers of new staff to meet demand of
our business units, comprising:

The Bank marked success from participation in the Career Exhibition 2008, with a
total of 8,500 candidates applying for employment at KBardk, higher than the total of
1,100 candidates recorded last year.

The Bank began the K-Intemship Program by accepting appfications from master's
degree-candidate students with good performance to understudy our Relationship
Managers as "Assistant Relationship Managers” (ARMs). After selection, they are
sent to be intens at our business centers, which are experiencing a shortage of
quafified applicants.

We also mapped out a long-term plan for recruitment and selection of high-potential
staff, by granting "k Excellence” Awards to well-performing students ai target
univessities, which would encourage them to work with the Bank after graduation.

o Leaming and Development: The Bank developed skills and amanged leaming courses in
accordance with the Training Roadmap, especially job-specfic skills, as well as
management and leadership. Several leaming modes were adopted, such as classroom
leaming, extemal seminars and e-Leaming. This included continuing improvement in
current leaming courses and development of new courses 1o equip the employees with
necessary skills to do the work.

o Development of Leadership and Competency:

The Bank emphasized the development of leadership and competency of managers
and officers in accordance with corporate directions and targets, including the
current market competition. Improvement and revision in competency have been
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proceeded to ensure greater details, clarity and timefiness. Meanwhile, the
Leadership Development Program has been improved for higher efficiency.

- The Bank continued to lay down several curricula lo accommodate the duties and
responsibilities of leaders at each level under the Management Development
Program (MDP). In 2008, performance management courses were amanged for unit
heads and team leaders for their better understanding of the Bank's performance
management poficies and procedures.

- We employed the 360 Degree feedback management tool to aid us in developing
both core and leadership competencies among our supervisory-level offers. This
had been based on perspectives from their immediate surounding, including
personal perspective, Ene supervisors, colleagues, subordinates, as wel as
customers.

— The Bank launched a campaign to promote "11 People Management Behaviors of
KASIKORNBANK Leaders”. The Leaders’ 11 desirable bebaviors in People
management are defined in four main areas i.e., career development, performance
managemenl, rewards & recognition, as well as working environment and
organizational culture. Usefu! management tips were sert, once a month, to all the
middle management level and higher via the Lotus Notes system. Entiled "Groom
Your People”, these fips were aimed at providing knowledge to supervisors, and
mforming them of the ways to develop and encourage potential employees to reach
the next efficiency frontier.

Employee Retention and Incentives: The Bank conducted an employee survey in 2008,
to recognize factors that affect their working efficiency and quafity of fife. The survey
results generally showed higher satisfaction results (Pull Index) among them.

Performance Management: The Bank has urged our employees to set their individual
targets in accordance with the targets of their respective units and Bank-wide targets in

2008, together with special emphasis on "People Management Behaviors” for middle

managers and above.

Remuneration: The Bank has improved our "Sales Rewarding and Incentive System” to
achieve better performance resudts in 2009, especially among those directly involved in
sales (Frontine Officers), under dlear income targets in order to promote greater quality
and quantity of sales.

Labor Relations:

- The Bank stil pursues a cordial labor relations management policy to continuously
maimain sound efficency in this respect. We have reqularly and comtinuously
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maintained close relationships with the labor unions and employees on a bilateral
approach. Our actions have proven successful, as acknowledged by the
"Outstanding Labor Relations and Wetfare” award of 2008, presented by the Ministry
of Labour, for four consecutive years. Furthesmore, the Bank implemented additional
labor relations activities, especiafly in special events and occasions, besides some
orientation courses and advisory services on labor-related issues to other
organizations within KGroup and support service providers to KGroup.

- We continued to promote better understanding of the Bank's business strategies and
staff contributions to the Bank's achievements, through efficient communications
within the organization. Some of our interesting imitiations and activities included the
extensive promotion for a good credit cufture, and the Recogniion Program for
exemplary and outstanding performance, as a role model for other staff at the Bank.

« Refinements to the IT Infrastructure: The Bank has developed the Human Resource

Informaticn System (HRIS) for continued development of the Employee Self Service

System, in order to reduce operational redundancies, time required to perform functions,

and expenses, which strengthens our working efficiency. This included the launch of an e-

Expense project to allow employees to reimburse health care and children’s educatonal

enrolment fees, and 1o follow up the reimbursement results by themselves, which has

reduced the number of follow-up phone calls by over 90 percent. This also markedly
reduced our telephone expenses. We have prepared to extend this project to other
welfare systems provided to our staff, such as borrowing.

o T Management
o [T Security Policy and Infrastructure

In 2008, the Bank upgraded the efficiency of our IT firewall systems protecting main servers.
This increased the security of information transmission within the Bank's IT network, as well as
providing better detection and protection with state-of-the-art safequards against malicious intrusion
attempts directed toward our main servers.

Aside from this, we also examined the entire IT security system used within the Bank's
network, along with a review of security control procedures and an enhancement of information safety
to build customers’ assurance in the operational security of our IT systems, and the Bank's electronic
banking facilities.

The Bank has prepared our IT procedures and platforms in response fo the Computer
Crimes Act B.E. 2550, in the capacity as a 'service providey’ of [T network services, comprising:
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- The Bank has set a mechanism for user identification, such as login usernames and IP
+  addresses, eic.
- The system has been upgraded to keep all log dala completely and securely, under
prevention of unauthorized comections. The log data must be kept for at least 90 days,
under the Log Criteria for Users of Computer Networks Act B.E. 2530.
- The Bank has reset the time server to sync with the infemational time, ensuring reliabiity
of our data storage.
e [T Outsourcing
In order to support business expansion and enhance the efficiency of the Bank's various
services, we undertook preparations for our new IT systems, by setting up a new computer backup
center at the Chaeng Watthana Main Branch Office Project. Also, the Bank renovated the electrical
system al the Rat Burana Headquarters Information Technology Center by instalfing two power supply
systems to avoid a 'single point of fadure’ problem, to help ensure uninterrupted sesvice in our
computing operations. Moreover, working space in our IT center has been renovated for maximum
utiization, facilitating expansion of our banking services in 2009.

o K-Transformation

As of the end of 2008, the progress of the Bank's "K-Transformation” strategic project,
comprising four main components, is shown below:

1. Know Our Customer (KOC)

In addition to the completion of customer database development for marketing activities
covering key aspects such as overal customer profiles, products/services that they use and their
behavior, which has already led to the launch of pilot marketing campaigns, the K-Transformation
project has aso completed new marketing campaign management tools, which wil ensure
information readiness for the Bank's staff in making decisions about product and service offers to
targeted customers, at the right price and the right Gme. It is now in the process of developing an
additional system to facifitate marketing activities of the Retail Business Division, including Enks with
sale and service channels of the Bank.

2. Multi-Channe) Sales and Sevices (MSS)

In order to build sales and service channel capabiiities with the aim of delivering a
satisfactory and consistent customer experience, the K-Transformation project has confirmed
business requirements with the Bank's business units. In addiion, we have developed new
operational procedures in six areas, including marketing, sales, services, deposit transactions,
receipts and payments, as well as credit services. At present, we are in the System Design & Buid
phase.
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3.7 Capital (ITC)

The K-Transformation project has confirmed business requirements with the Bank's business
units. Under the current System Design & Build phase, we are in the process of upgrading our core
banking system and providing finks to other IT systems. Our aims are to meet the needs of the Bank
business units and to enhance their compefitiveness, enabling them 1o develop new products and
services with complex features much faster.

4. Financial Information System (FIS)

We have completed a new Financial Information System covering basic features mctuding
financial management, reporting and budgeting. This new system also upgrades our information
management by featuring information from the centralized, automated and consofidated financial
data of KGroup, including a new Chart of Account (CoA), IAS 39 intemational accounting standard
compliance, a single Bank-wide platform for planning and budgeting, as well as procurement support
and payments.
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6. KASIKORNBANK's Investments in Subsidiary and Associated Comparies

a Subsidiary and Associated Companies
'Subsidiary companies’ refer to companies where the Bank has the authority to control their
financial and operating policies, both directly and indirectly, to benefit from their business activities.
‘Associated companies’ refer to companies, where the Bank has significant influence, but are
neither subsidiaries nor joint ventures. The Bank takes part, tut not complete control, in decision-
making with regards lo these companies' financial and operating policies.

a Investment Policy
The Bank's investment policy can be summarized as follows:

o Strategic Investments

The Bank invests in companies for strategic benefit. The Bank and these companies
collaborate on the review of business strategies and cooperation. Such work is achieved through the
sharing of various resources, equipment, tools and channels for utmost efficiency and minimum
operational redundancy.

e (Qutsourcing Investments

The Bank invests in companies that support the Bank's operations. These are
companies providing semvices that are not the core business of the Bank, and thal would face
inflexibiity if they were to remain a pan of the Bank. Bank executives are appointed as directors of
these companies to oversee their management and operating poficies, with one director having
control over the firms’ operations. This helps ensure standardized service quality, as wel as
maximum efficiency and benefits.

The Bank's investments in subsidiary and associated companies as of the end of 2008 are
fisted in the table below:
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Details of Investments

Investment in Asset Management Comparry

1. PHETHAI ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.,LTD. Bangkok Asset 500,000,000 800,000,000 10000 Ordinary 100,917,509
Tel. 0-2694-5000 Ex1.5208 Fax 0-2694-5205 Management

Investment in KASIKORNBANKGROUP

1. KASIKORN RESEARCH CENTER CO.,LTD. Bangkok  Services 100,000 100,000 10000  Ordinary 3938998
Tel 0-2273-1144 Fax. 0-2270-1218

2. KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.,LTD. Bangkok  Mutwal Fund 21154214 2114214 10000 Ordinary 486,290,235
Tel 0-2673-3999 Fax, 0-2673-3900 Management

3. KASIKORN SECURITIES PUBLIC CO.,.LTD. Bangkok  Securiies 60,000,000 59995762 999 Owdinary 47276110
Tel 0-2696-0000 Fax. 0-2696-0093

4. KASIKORN FACTORING CO.,LTD. Bangkok Factoring 1,600,000 1,600,000 100.00  Ordinary 88,118,985
Tel 0-2290-2300 Fax. 0-2276-9710

5. KASIKORN LEASING CO.LTD. Bangkok Leasing 80,000,000 90,000,000 10000  Ondinary 4,168,685
Tel. 0-2696-3999 Fax 0-2696-9988

Investment in Support Service Providers to KASIKORNBANKGROUP

1. PROGRESS GUNPAI CO.,LTD. Bangkok Services 200,000 200,000 100.00  Ordinary 34,301,906
Tel 0-2273-3900 Fax. 0-2270-1262

2. PROGRESS PLUS CO.,LTD. Bangkok  Services 230,000 230,000 10000  Ordinary 5,797,480
Tel 0-2225-2020 Fax. 0-2225-2021

3. PROGRESS LAND AND BUILDINGS CO.,LTD. Bangkok  Real Estate 1,516,000 1,516,600 10000  Ondinary 339,637
Tel 0-2275-1880 Fax. 0-2275-1889 Development

4. PROGRESS FACILITIES MANAGEMENT CO.LTD.  Banghok Semvices 50,000 50,000 100.00  Ordinary 4,584,256
Tel 0-2273-3288-91 Fax 0-2273-3292

5. PROGRESS MANAGEMENT CO.,.LTD. Bangkok Services 60,000 60,000 100.00  Ordinary 5,213,980
Tel 0-2275-1880 Fax. 0-2275-1889-91

6. PROGRESS SOFTWARE CO.,LTD. Bangkok Services 100,000 100,000 100.00  Ordinary namIR
Tel 0-2225-7900-1 Fax. 0-2225-5654-5
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1. PROGRESS STORAGE CO.,LTD.

Services

30,000 30000 10000 Orinary 10331470
Tel 0-2273-3833 Fax. 0-2271-4784
8. PROGRESS SERVICE CO.,LTD. Bangkok Services 20,000 20,000 100.0¢  Ordinary 12,690,742
Tel 0-2273-3293-4 Fax 0-2273-3292
9. PROGRESS H R €O.LTD. Bangkok Services 10,000 10,060 100.00  Crdinary 9,584,583
Tel 0-2270-1070-6 Fax. 0-2270-1068-9
10. PROGRESS SERVICE SUPPORT CO.LTD. Bangkek Services 40,000 40,000 100.00  Ordinary 16,255,630
Tel 0-2470-5414 Fax. 0-2470-5355
1. PROGRESS APPRAISAL CO.,LTD. Bangkok Services 5,000 5,000 100.00  Ordinary 27,318,699
Tel 0-2270-6900 Fax. 0-2278-5035
12. PROGRESS COLLECTION CO.,LTD. Bangkok Services 50,000 50,000 10000  Ordinary 674,467
Tel 0-2273-3210 Fax. 0-2273-2559
13. K-SME VENTURE CAMTAL CC. LTD. Bangkok Joint 20,000,000 20,000,000 100.00  Ordinary {2.906,436)
Tel. 0-2693-2333 Fax. 0-2693-2323 Venture
14. KHAO KLA VENTURE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT Venture
CO. L. Bangkok Capital 1,000,000 1,000,000 100.00  Ondinary (4,448,389)
Tel. 0-2693-2333 Fax. 0-2693-2323 Managemen
Investment in Associated Companies
1. PROCESSING CENTER CO.,LTD. Bangkok Services 500,000 150,000 3000 Ominary 120,948,638
Tel 0-2237-6330-4 Fax. 0-2237-6340
2. RURAL CAPITAL PARTNERS CO.,LTD. Bangkok Jomnt 1,000,600 215000 2150  Ordinary {155,985)
Tel 0-2718-1852-3 Fax. 0-2718-1830 Venture
3. M GRAND HOTEL CO.,LTD. Banghok Hotel 100,000,000 20,000,000 20.00  Ordinary (31,602)
Tel - Fax -

Note: * These operating performance figures are shown in subsidiary and associated companies’ financial statements.
= KHAO KLA VENTURE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT CO., LTD. is a subsidiary company of KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO., LTD. Since

the Bank has fuly owned KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO., LTD., which helds 100-percent shares in KHAQ KLA VENTURE CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT CO., LTD., it means that the Bank has indrectly held 100-percent shares in KHAQ KLA VENTURE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

0., LTD.
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To @ The President
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®

The Stock Exchange of Thaitand

Subject . Notification of the Resolutions of KASIKORNBANK PCL's
| Board of Dircctors Meeting No.2/2552

The Board of Direclors Meeting of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

No. 2/2552 helt on February 26, 2009 has resolved the foliowing significant matters as follows!

1. To aporove the Batance Sheet and Statement of Income for the yeor ended Decembir

. 41, 2008 which have bean considered by the Audit Committee and sudited by the Certified Public

Accountant,

©. To approve the appropriation of profit from year 2008 operating resuits and divider

pavment as follows!

- Legal resene amounting to Bahi 130,000,000

- Dividena on ordinary shares at the rate of Baht 2.00 per sharg, of which the Bank
has paid interim dividend at the rate of Bant 0.50 per share on September 25, 2008, and will pay
the mmaning dindend at the rate of Bant 1.50 1o the shareholders, by setting the record date on
April 17, 2008 (o determing the shareholders entitied to receive dividend, and sstting the
shareholder register book ¢losing date and suspending shares transfer on April 20, 2009 10
corpile the shareholder list pursuant to section 229 of the Securities and Exchange Act. The
ciaiclena pavment shatl he made on Aprit 28, 2009,

The Beard of Directars deemead that the rate of dividend specified above is apprapriate,
which is 32.32 percem of the 2008 net profit.  The Bank's capital funus remain steong io

accommindate continuous growth and Lusiness expansion.

3. To proposc to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 10 approve amending the
iescletion of the Anaual Gencral Mecting of Shareholders No. 83, held an Apnl 8, 20C5 under the
zgenda tem No. O refarding the issuance and sales of debentures of the Bank by expanding the
tosal 1ssue sige of the debentures, from not exceeding USD 3 billion to not exceeding Bahi

170,000 miltion. in addition, offenng for sale to high net-worth investors and compliance with the

Capial Market Supervisory Board have been incorporated to comply with the amended ragulation,
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Mher condrions for the issuence and sale of debentures would he the same as 2lready approved

in the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders No. 93 in all respects. (Attachment 1)

4. Ta propose to the General Meating of Shareholders to approve the Muangthal Foais
Halding Company Limited” 5 shares acguisition and proceed the connected transaction in arder o
expand KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED's (“}(Bank") scope of business 1o include iife
insurance, by acguiring no less than 30% of ithe shares or economic interest in an existing fife
nsurance company. the Board of Directors meeting of KBank {only the directors with no cenflict of
interes! i this transaciion attended and voted in the meeting, while the direclors with conflict of
mterest, namely Mr, Banyong Lamsam, Poi.Gen. Pow Sarasin, Mr. Bantheon Lamsam, angd Ms.
Sujtpan Lamsam. did not aitend and had no right to vote) approved a pan 16 expand i{he
investment in Muangthai Life Assurance Company Limited ("MTL"). by acquiring additional ordinary
shares in Muangthar Fortis Holding Company Limited \"N‘TFH"), which is a Thai company hokling
sharas in MTL for 754 of the total shares issued by MTL. The investment is for KBank 1o increase
s sharaholding in MTFH up tc approximately 51% of the total shares issyed by MTFH, which will
resuit s KBank holding approximately 38.254% of the cconomic interest in MTL. In this regard, the
additonal orcmary shares n MTFH will be acguired via the procedures whwere: (1) KBank will
subscribe for, or acquire. the new ordinary shares issued through capital-increase by MTFH, based
on the proportion of sharehclding, as well as new ordinary shares left unsubscribed by the exisling
shareholders: and () KBank witl acquire shares from the existing shareholders, whereby some of
tne existing sharcholders are connected persens of KBank. After the said acousiton of MTFH's
sdditonat ordinary shares, persons with conflict of interest of KBank will hold shares in MYFH
{whch wi'l become KBank's subsidiary}. and Muang Thai Insurance Public Sempany Limited
SMTY {whieh will become KBank's affiliated company), of more than 10%, whereby such
persans will nold shares in MTFH and MTI at approximatety 24.41% and 13.08%. respectively. [n
this respect, the Board of Directors has considered, and is of the opinion that such sharehclding
structure e MTFH and MTL wil) be in the best interest of KBank. In addition, prior o the
abovementioned KBank's acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH, adjustment will be
made (¢ MIFH's shareholding structure. MTFH is to selt all the shares it holds in Muang That Real

Istate Puniic Company Limited. Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited and Muoang Thal Group
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Service Company Limited, o another company which will be newly incorporated {“Hulding Company
2").

and. The Board of Direclors has resolved to propose lo the shareholders meeting for
approval, the matter of the acquisition of additional ordinary shares in MTFH, the agrecment to
ergage in Lhe connected transactions. and other procedures related to. or required for e
wransaction. The material agendas of the proposal can be summarized a3 follow:

1. Approval of the acquisition of MTFH's additional grdinary shargs, o the wtal amount af
10,191,635 shares, at a "share acquisition price” and "price per share’ calculated by the following
formuta.

Srarc ocawisition price = Not more than Bahi 7,244 Milion {catculated from the value of

MTL snd MTI for the part which MTFH holds shares in}, plus
cash and assel, minus liabilities of MTFH, al the closing date of
the transaction,

Price per sharg = share acquisition price, divided by the total amouns of share to

he purchased by ®8ank of 19,191,639 shares,

ang the aporoval 1o proceed with the connected transactions with the connected persons of
KBank, in the acquisition of the abovementioned shares.

In this respect, the price af MTEH's shares, which KBank is Lo purchase. may beé readjusted
depercing on tie results of the Due Diligence invesugation and the relevant negotiations, as well
as the readjustment from the effects of the variations of hMuang That Broker Company timited
{“mM18™Y's book wvalue al March 31, 2008 and the variations in MTFH's cash, assels and
habiizies at the closing date of the ransaction.

The calculated vatue of the transactions for the acguisition of the new orcinary shares
issued trongh capital-increase by MTFH, and the acquisition of MTFH’s shares from the existing
sharcholders whae are the connected persons of KBank, which falis into the ambi of a connected
rransaction, is approximately 8aht 3,612,160.28% in (otal (calcutated based on the preliminary
valug of the abovementioned tansacticn of Baht 7.244 Milfion, the total ameunt of shares of
19,191 635 shares and the amount of shares belonging 1o ihe connected persons of 8,589,748
shares ). which exceeds 2% of WRank's totad net tangible assets. K8ank iz reguired 1o disclass
mfornation pertaining its engagement in the connected transactions, including obtaiing approval

from KBank's shareholders for the engagement in the transactions.
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2. Approval of the subscription for, or investment in shares in Holding Company &, which is
5 company o be newly incorporagted. n an amaunt not more than 10% of the toial issued shares
in Holding Company 2.

The acquisition of additionat ordinary shares in MTFH and other necessary andsor related
processes 10 compleie the transaction {the “Share Acquisition™} will proceed when the conditions
nrecedeni or condilions related o the Share Acquisition are completed, or KBank forfens its nghts
it mny ccndition as the Board of Directors, the President, or other persons that the Board of
Directors or such persons have authorized. deems it appropriate o ¢o S0.

3. Approval from the shareholders meeting for any acts undartaken by the authorized
directors, the President. or persons who have reccived authorization from the aforementioned
persons, that are necessary and relevant to the investment expansion in MTL, the additional share
acgwsiunn in MTFH, as well as for any required or retevant authorizations.

In this regard, KB8ank has appointed Kim Eng Securities {Thatland) Pubtic Company bimited
o be the intdependent finangial advisor to give apinien far the shareholders in relation to the
connected transaclions.

In order for the foregoing apgendas to be approved by the shareholders meeting, the meeting
must pass a resoiution with at least three-fourths of the Al votes of shareholders attending ant
having a sight (o vole, exchiding shargholders who have a conflict of interest in the matter.

The acquisilion of additional erdinary shares in MTFH. as well as the purchasing or
restiment v Holding Company 2 by KBank, when comparing the size or value 0f the transaciion
according 1o the Notification of the SET regarding the Disclosure of information and Aciviies by
Listed Comganics in the Acguisition or Selting of Assets B.E. 2547 {2004), doas not fall under
the ambit of the said Notification, and thus, KBank ar¢ not reguired to compile a report anc
thisclose the information to the SET or send notice 10 its shareholders. However, lor the purpose of
providing information to investors, KBank has considered disclosing such information under the
Naiificztion. for the purpose of using it as a guideline for the disclosing of infermation regarding the
acquisinen of additional orchnary shares in MTFH.

The information regarding the Share Acquisition in MTFH, the engagement in connecled
rransactions, and other related lransactions, including information on connecled perscns and/cr
persons thai may have a confliet of interest with KBank 15 available in the Information Memorandum

in relation to the KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED's Share Acquisition in Muang Thai

wrea v de s PTIORT oy TOT

R NE A 5 '“(nﬁ}fff@ W it 'i‘LLLfﬁa\I_i)

[l T —ﬁrﬁﬁ_w-wf-u-m-tncxt-ﬁv - a—:m;m Tt S 4

) i} -[.' B . - - ?- ) ) V
I P R SR P P ,.111 Yy "KKT}LIYE K-:\*_'.t‘ L\}."'., j""l‘.“s;- lﬁ!‘ﬁf )




L

SWIGNSAENSINY A,
oo KASIKORMEANK ¢ TR i8] k?*”_g
fu»fjﬁ EHOR! et

Drasarn Trovaivorokis

forhs Holding Corapany Limited and the Connectsd Transaction, which KBank has disclosed herein
together, {Attachment 2 and 3)

KBank will send copies of the mnvitation 0 the Annual Generad Meeting of sharehcigers o
tha Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand to
cansider the adeguacy of the information. Copies will be sent to the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand &t least B working days prior 10 the date
for 1ssuance to shareholders.

5. To propose (0 the General Meeting of Shareholders 1o approve the amendment of Articie
7. tis and Adicle 34, of the Bank's Articles of Associaton 1o comply with the laws currently
applicable o the Bank. as follows:

“Article 7. bis  The Company shatl notify the transferces to dispose of his shares if the
rransler of shares shall resull in such persor holding shares beyorkd the number specified by faws.
fxcept for where the Company has authorized or obtained permission pursuant to the financial
IRstiion business laws.”

"Article 4. Where the Compary or any of its subsidiaries enter into & connected
ransucuan, or @ transacten felating to an acquisition or disposition of matenal sssets of the
Company of any of its subsidaries, the Company shall comply with the rules and procedures under

the laws,”

6. Ta approve the convening of the General Meeting of Shareholders Mo, 97 which will
lake plece on Friday, Aprl 3, 2009 at 1400 hours at the Bank's Head Officc No. 1 Se
Kasikarntha, Ratburana Read, Khwaeng Ratburana, Khei Ratburana, Bangkok, by setting the record
date on March 12, 2009 to determine the shareholders who have the right 1o atiend the Aonual
General Meeting of Shareholders, and setting the sharcholder register book closing date and
susperding shares Uansfer on March 13, 2088 © compile the shareholder list pursuant o
Sacticn 225 of the Securiies and Exchange Act, to consider the following agenda!

1. Yo consider adopting the Minutes of the General Mesting of Shareholders No. 98
Roard of Directors’ opinion : it is considered approgriate for the Meeting of

Sharehclders 1o approve the said minutes.

n

1o acknowiedpe the Board of Dircstors’ report on year 2008 operations

Board of Lirectors™ opinion | it is considered appropriate to report the year

2008 operations to the Mesung of Sharehalders.
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10 consider approving the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Income for the vear
ended December 31, 2008
Board of Directors’ opinion | lt 13 considerea appropriate for the Meeting o
Sharchelders 10 approve the Balance Sheet and ihe Statement of income for the
yeur ended December 21, 2008 which have been considered by the Audit
Comnmttee and audited by the Certifice Public Accountant.
To consider approving the appropriatihn af grafit from 2008 operauing results and
dividcnd payment
Boord of Directors' gpinion ! It is considercd appropriate for the Meeting of
Sharehoiders to approve the appropriation of profit from 20038 operating results and
dividend payment as foliows!

- Legal reserve amounting to Baht 130.000.000

- Dwidend on ordinary shares at the rate of Baht 2.00 per share. of which Lhe
Bank has pad intenm dividend at the rote of Baht 0.50 per share on Seplember
25, 2008, and will pay the remaining dividend at the rate of Baht 1.50, by selling
the record date on April 17, 2000 Lo deternung Whe shareholders enulied 10 regeve
dividend. and setting the shareholder register book closing date and suspending
shores transfer on Aprll 20, 2009 to compile the shareholder hisi pursuant ta
seclicn ?25 of the Sesurities and Exchange Act. The dividend payment shall be
made on Apnl 28, 20049.
To consider amending the resolution of Annual General Mesting of Shareholders No.
83, neld on B April 2005, regarding the Issuance and 3ale of Debentures of the
Bank
Boarg of Direstors’ opiniGn | it is considercd apprepriate for the Meeting of
Shareholders to approve the amendment of the resolulion of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders No. 93 held on April 8, 2005 regarding the issuance and
sale of debenwres of the Hank by expanding the total issue size of the debentres,
from not exceeding USD 3 hiltion to not exceeding Baht 170,000 mithan, and
incorporated wordings 10 somply with the amended regulation. Other conditions for
the issuance and sale of debentures would e the same as afreacy approved i the

annual General Meeting of Shareiolders No. 93,
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6.

1o consider acquinng shares of Muangthai Fortis Holding Company Limited and the
connected transaction

Boarg of Directers' opinion | The Beard of Directors {excluding the directors vaith
conflict of inleresi, namely Mr. Bamyong Lamsam, PokGen. Pow Sarpsing Mr
Banthoon Lamsam, and Ms, Sujitpan Lamsam, who did not atiend and had no right
to vme) supparted the plan to expend the investment in Muangthal Life Assurance
Cempany Limited (“MTL"), by acqui'ring additional ordinary shares in Muangthai
fortis Holding Campany Limited (“MTFH™). which is a Thai company holding shares
in MTL for 758 of the wial shares issued by MTL. The investment is for KBank 1o
nave shareholding in MTFH st approximately 51% of the total shares issued by
MTEM, whigh will result in ®Bank holding approximately 38.25% of the economic
interest in MTL, and the Board of Directors has resolved to propose to KBank's
shareholders mesting for approval. the matier of the acquisition of addition i
ordinary shares In MTFH | the agreement 10 angage in the connected ransaclions,
and other progeduras related to, or required for the transaction as the directors may
advise.

To consider amending the Articte 7. bis and Article 34. of the Bank's Artintes of
Association

Baard of Diregtors! opinion * i is considered appropriate for the Meeting of

Shareholders to approve the amendment of Articke 7. bis and Article 34, of the
Rank's Articles of Assaciation as propased, to comply with the laws currenty
applicable to the Bank,

To consider the election of direclors 10 replace those retiring by rotation

Board of Directors’ opinion - The Board of Directors, exctusive of the nominated
directars, endorsed the proposal of the Human Resources and Remungration
Commitice and considered it apprapriate for the Meeling of Sharehoiders 10 re-elect
Mr. Somchai Bulsook, Ms. Sujtpan Lamsam, Professor Emeritus Khunying Suchada
Kiranandina, Dr. Abhiai Chandrasen, and Mr. Hiroshi Ota who are due to retire Dy
rotatian, as the Bank's directors for another term. The Board was of the view that
they are fully guatifier. without any prohisted characteristics for election as

direciors of financial institution in sccordance with related Jaws, In addiion, they
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performed ther duties with full responsibiity. prudence and integrity ; compliance
with the regulatory requirements, objectives and Articles of Association of the Bank,

as well as resolutions of the Annual General Meeiung. Considering the gualifications
of an ndependent director praposed for consideration and approval at the current
Annual General Meeting.

The Board vicwed that, Mr. Somchai Bulsook. infdependent director, who had
prior husingss refationstup with the Bunk. te.. The bank exicnded loans and
contingent labilities to the company that he had cantrol over, Those lcans and
cantingent lishilies were the normal gourse of pusiness of the Bank, without any
ingication, which might prevent him from the exercise of independent discretion,
Currently, the business relationship as earlier mentioned no longer exists.  The
independent director, as referred earlicr, possesses knowledge, capability and

experiance, which will be very usefut for KBank business. In addition, the busingss

relaticnship shall not have any impact on the discharge of dutics and provision of

impartial commaents to the Bank.

To consider 1he appointment of & new dirgctor

Board of Dirgctors’ opinion | It is considered appropnate for the Meeting of the
Sharehalders to appoint Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan, who has been consigered and
ncminated by the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee, as an additional
direetor of Whe Bank. in capacity of independent director. makmg a otal of 18
cirectors. Mr. Sobson Ketsuwan has gualification per definition of independent
disecior as defined by the Bank, and is fully quaiified wifiout any prohibited
craracienstivs jor clecuon as direclors of financial nstitution it accardance win
reales laws, and has consented to be recommendad or neminated as cirecicr of

the Bank,

. To consiter approving the remuneration of directors

Board of Qirectors’ opinion : it is ronsidered appropriaté for the Meeting of

Shareholders te approve remuneration for direciors, the Advisory Directors ¢ the
Management Cominittee, the Board Commitiees, the L.egal Adwser, as well as the
Board of Directors” special bonus for 2009 to be at the same rate as thal of 2008

per the resolution of the Meeting of Shareholders No. 96. And as Lhe Bank has
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anpointed an additional director, it is thus considered appsopriate for the Meeung of
Sharehokiers 10 approve remuneration for the Board of Directors’ Meeting, and ihe
Snard of Directors' special bonus for the newly appamnied director, at the same rate
as other directors, as recommended by the Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee,

1. Te consider the appeintment and the fixing of remuneration of the auditor
Board of Directors’ opinion | Its 5onsidered appropriate for the Mecting of
Shareholders to appoint Mr. Thirdthong Thepmongkorn CPA Registration Number
3787 or Mr. Winid Silamongke! CPA Registration Number 3378 ar Ms. Wilai
Buranakittisopan CPA Regisiration Number 3920 or Ms. Semboon Supasinpinyo
CPA Registration Number 3731 of KPMG Phoomchai Audit Limied as the Bank’s
auditor. and 1o fix the remuneration of the audiior for the year 2000 at Bahi
12,615,000 as proposed by the Audit Commitiee.

2. Other businesses (if any)

Pliease be informed accordingly.

Yours sincerely,
ool

Board of Chrectars and Executive Administration
Offtce ot Corporase Secretary

Tel. O 2470 2679




